
            

 

Children and Young People's Scrutiny Panel 

 
THURSDAY, 27TH FEBRUARY, 2014 at 17:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Brabazon, Bull, Christophides, Engert and Newton (Chair) 

 
 
Co-Optees: Ms Y. Denny (Church of England representative), 1 Catholic Diocese 

vacancy, Mr E. Reid (Parent Governor) and Mrs M. Ezeji (Parent Governor).  
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business (late items 

will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be dealt 
with at item 12 below). 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 

who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Members’ Register of Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interest are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 



 

2 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, 

paragraph 29 of the Council’s constitution. 
 

5. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 28)  
 
 To approve the minutes of the meetings of 12 November 2013, 5 December 2013 

(budget), 18 December 2013 and 3 February 2014 (evidence session). 
 

6. FOSTERING SERVICE REVIEW AND IMPLEMENTATION  (PAGES 29 - 96)  
 
 To receive an update on progress with Haringey’s Fostering Review and 

Implementation Programme which ran between May 2013 and January 2014. 
 

7. EARLY HELP OFFER FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE  (PAGES 97 - 108)  
 
 To update the Panel on the development and implementation of Haringey’s early help 

offer for children and young people. 
 

8. EARLY YEARS REVIEW (CORPORATE DELIVERY UNIT) AND UPDATE ON 
WORK TO DATE  (PAGES 109 - 144)  

 
 To report on the Early Years Review undertaken by the Corporate Delivery Unit  and 

progress made to date. 
 

9. MULTI-AGENCY SAFEGUARDING HUB (MASH) AND FIRST RESPONSE 
SERVICE INFORMATION SHARING - OUTCOME OF AUDIT  (PAGES 145 - 168)  

 
 To report of the outcome of an audit of Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) and 

First Response Service Information Sharing. 
 

10. TWO-YEAR-OLD EARLY ENTITLEMENT - CONCLUSIONS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 
PROJECT  (PAGES 169 - 180)  

 
 To consider the conclusions and recommendations of the Panel’s in-depth piece of 

work on the two-year-old early entitlement. 
 

11. WORK PLAN  (PAGES 181 - 182)  
 
 To consider the future work plan for the Panel. 

 
12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and 

Rob Mack  
Senior Policy Officer 



 

3 

Monitoring Officer 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Level 7 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 020 8489 2921 
Email: rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 
Thursday, 20 February 2014 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 

 
Councillors Brabazon, Bull, Engert and Newton (Chair) 

 
Co-opted 
Members 

Ms Y. Denny (Church representative) and Mr E. Reid (Parent governor 
representative) 

 
CYPS76. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Christophides.  

 
CYPS77. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None.  

 
CYPS78. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS  

 
None.  

 
CYPS79. MINUTES  

 
In respect of the Professional Development Centre, the Panel noted that a 
feasibility study was being undertaken on its future.  Although it had a limited 
future in its current role, the Centre was required to be used for educational 
purposes.  
 
AGREED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of 26 September be approved. 

 
CYPS80. CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS - CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN  

 
The Chair stated that he was pleased that the Panel was to be involved in the 
overview of the Haringey 54000 project.  He felt that Panel meetings should be 
built into key dates for the project.  The Interim Director agreed that this would 
be done. 
 
In respect of school expansions, the Cabinet Member reported that there 
needed to be sufficient space to expand.  The issue was looked at each year 
and particular attention was given to where children were likely to need places.  
Both Stamford Hill and St Marys had bulge classes for Year 1 which had been 
necessary to accommodate the number of children who had moved into the 
area.  Both of these schools had the necessary space to expand.  
Consideration was also currently being given to expanding St Marys and St 
James.  There was a lack of additional space in other schools in the areas 
concerned.  The Council was not able to build new schools and was relying on 
free schools to address the shortfall of places.  Only good or outstanding 
schools were able to expand.  If the expansion was to be permanent, a 
statutory consultation process was required. 
 
The Chair raised the issue of the need for additional places in the Muswell Hill 
area due to housing developments in the area.  The Cabinet Member reported 
that the feasibility of expanding Muswell Hill School had already been explored 
and was currently being re-examined.  Whilst there would appear to be 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

sufficient space, expansion on the site had nevertheless proven to be 
problematic. 
 
In respect of church schools, the Panel noted that their admission 
arrangements differed from each other.  Admission arrangements for them 
were likely to change as they grew and a process of negotiation would be 
required to ensure that arrangements were able to meet the needs of local 
communities.   
 
Panel Members requested an update on the overspend incurred in the 
expansion of Rhodes Avenue school and efforts to recover this.  It was agreed 
that this would be followed up and a briefing circulated to the Panel in due 
course. 
 
Panel Members requested further information regarding the possibility of 
Technopark being used as the site for a free school. The Cabinet Member 
reported that the Council had not been a party to any negotiations that might 
have taken place.  These would have taken place between the school and the 
Education Funding Agency.  There was a clear need for additional school 
places.  In the first instance, these would need to be at primary level but 
secondary places would also be needed in due course to accommodate the 
children concerned.   
 
The Assistant Director of School Improvement reported on the process for 
delivering improvements to the Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) which was currently in 
special measures.  Various options were being explored.  The most likely of 
these was a tri-borough model, with the unit having academy status.  If the 
academy option was chosen, the local authority would have a role as sponsor. 
 
In answer to a question, the Interim Director reported that issues relating to 
personal budgets for children with special educational needs would be 
addressed.  Efforts were being made to set up a forum so that the experiences 
of service users could be shared.  The service would also be able to learn from 
the experience of Adult Services with personal budgets. 
 
AGREED: 
 
1. That Panel meetings be added to the key dates for the Haringey 54000 

project; and 
 

2. That an update on the overspend incurred in the expansion of Rhodes 
Avenue school and efforts to recover it be submitted to a future meeting of 
the Panel. 

 
CYPS81. SAFEGUARDING UPDATE  

 
The Interim Director reported that the serious case review relating to Child T 
had been published by the Haringey Local Children’s Safeguarding Board 
(LCSB) in October.  The date of publication was at the discretion of the Chair of 
the LCSB.  There were 50 to 70 children nationally who died from non 
accidental injuries each year and this number had not changed significantly in 
the last 20 years.  There were also around 200 serious case reviews per year.  

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

These were all published unless it was not in the interests of surviving children.  
There was a serious case sub-group of the LCSB who were responsible for all 
serious case reviews.  Reviews proceeded as soon as possible unless they 
were not able to do so due to ongoing investigations.  The objectives of case 
reviews were to learn from the case in question and to reduce the likelihood of 
there being a re-occurrence.   
 
The most recent review related to incidents that took place in 2010-11, when 
the service had been in the process of rebuilding.  It was accepted that it could 
and should have intervened at an earlier stage.  A number of reports had 
highlighted the improvements that had taken place in the last three years.  In 
particular, management systems had been strengthened and this had been 
recognised by OFSTED.  Performance had been addressed with a particular 
focus being taken on quality. However, it needed to be acknowledged that no 
local authority was able to guarantee that children in its area would not suffer 
any neglect.  There was an overarching safeguarding action plan arising from 
the review and each agency had its own recommendations to follow up.   
 
The Panel noted that there were two other serious reviews taking place in 
Haringey at the moment.  It was agreed that the Panel would be informed of the 
dates that the reviews in question covered.  The Assistant Head of Legal 
Services reported that there was statutory guidance regarding the processes 
that had to be followed.  Reviews were confidential until publication.  The 
Interim Director reported that a Member development session was to be 
arranged in January and this would cover the various processes that needed to 
be followed.  The Panel noted that the Cabinet Member for Children attended 
the LCSB but as an observer.  Membership was outlined in regulations and 
covered a wide range of professionals.  It was agreed that the membership of 
the LCSB would be shared with the Panel.   
 
Panel Members stated that criticisms had been made of Members in the past 
for not being aware of safeguarding issues and asked for reassurance that this 
was no longer the case.  The Cabinet Member felt the Members were now in a 
better position to know of any potential issues that there might be in relation to 
safeguarding.  She was, for example, informed routinely of the numbers of 
children missing from care, met regularly with front line social workers and 
senior officers and received a lot of information from the Children’s Trust.   
Whilst she accepted that she did not know everything that happened within 
safeguarding, she felt she was sufficiently well informed to undertake her role 
effectively. 
 
The Assistant Head of Legal Services reported that the responsibility for 
scrutiny of safeguarding lay with the Panel.  The Children's Safeguarding Policy 
and Practice Advisory Committee was not a scrutiny body although it 
performed a questioning function.  Its role was to advise the Cabinet Member 
for Children.  
 
The Panel were of the view that, in order to assist it in undertaking its scrutiny 
role, the Chair of the LCSB should be invited to meet with the Panel twice per 
year to report on relevant issues and answer questions.  It was agreed that a 
letter would be drafted from the Chair inviting the Chair of the LCSB to attend.  
It was proposed that relevant partners from the LCSB also be invited to Panel 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

meetings looking at safeguarding issues.  The Assistant Head of Legal 
Services stated that the LCSB was not a Council body and any invitation to the 
Chair would need to reflect this in its wording. 
 
Panel Members commented that the Laming report stated that it was the job of 
Councillors to ask questions.  As such, questioning needed to be welcomed 
and encouraged.  If Members had not been concerned about recent cases, 
they would not be fulfilling their responsibilities.  The two recent high profile 
cases that concerned Haringey had involved contrasting issues. In one case, 
disproportionate consideration had been given to the view of parents whilst in 
the other, the reverse was arguably true. The safeguarding role of the authority 
required complex information to be evaluated and difficult judgements made.   
 
The Cabinet Member stated that judgements were the responsibility of 
individual social workers. It was essential that they were supported effectively 
through, amongst other things, reflective supervision.  The Interim Director 
stated that supervision was taken very seriously and all staff should be 
receiving it.  For new staff, this would be on a weekly basis.  Action would be 
taken against any managers who were found not be providing supervision.   
 
The Interim Director stated that there was a quality assurance process in place 
for safeguarding.  This involved senior officers meeting with teams and going 
out on visits to clients.  There was also a Quality Board to support this process 
but she wanted this to acquire a more dynamic role.  There was no agenda for 
complacency.  The Panel noted that 40-50 cases were audited every month.  In 
addition, there were regular workshops arranged for staff.  It was also 
necessary to have the right culture.   
 
The Panel requested confirmation that information sharing protocols had been 
agreed with NHS partners.  It was agreed that this would be verified and 
notified to Panel Members. 

 
AGREED: 

 
1. That the Panel be informed of the dates covered by the two serious case 

reviews currently taking place; 
 

2. That the membership of the Haringey LCSB be shared with the Panel;    
 

3. That the Chair of the Panel be requested to write to the Chair of Local 
Children’s Safeguarding Board (LCSB) to invite him to attend future 
meetings of the Panel on a regular basis to report on current issues and 
answer questions and that partners represented on the LCSB also be 
invited to attend meetings where safeguarding issues are to be discussed; 
and  

 
4. The confirmation be provided to Panel Members that information sharing 

protocols are in place with NHS partners. 
 

CYPS82. MULTI-AGENCY SAFEGUARDING HUB (MASH) AND FIRST RESPONSE 
SERVICE INFORMATION SHARING  
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

The Panel noted that the size of the sample used in the audit was determined 
by the external auditor.  The areas that were covered in the action plan were 
those identified by the auditor as requiring action. The Panel requested a short 
briefing note summarising the findings of the auditor.  The Chair stated that his 
preference was for reports to the Panel to be succinct and specific rather than 
re-submitted reports that had been made to other Council bodies. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That a short briefing note summarising the outcome of the audit be circulated to 
all Members of the Panel. 

 
CYPS83. HARINGEY FAMILIES FIRST (TROUBLED FAMILIES) UPDATE  

 
The Panel noted that an analysis of interventions that had successfully 
achieved outcomes required was being undertaken and requested that this be 
shared with them in due course.  Confirmation was requested that people not in 
receipt of benefits were able to access support through the scheme.   
 
Katherine Manchester, the Head of Service for Families First, reported that 
more referrals were being received from people moving into the area.  The 
service was paid by the DCLG based on results and was hoping to submit a 
significant claim in January.  Payment by the DCLG was upfront initially.  
Funding would reduce though if outcomes were not achieved.  Although a claim 
had already been made for successful interventions in the case of 114 families, 
work was still continuing with them.  It appeared that a full family approach was 
likely to be the most successful. The service was trying to embed an early help 
approach.  Work was also being undertaken through the two-year-old early free 
entitlement scheme with Children’s Centres and other providers.   
 
The Panel noted that there was a map showing where the families that the 
scheme was working with were located.  Whilst these were spread across the 
borough, the majority were in Noel Park, Tottenham Hale and White Hart Lane 
wards.  The DCLG had asked local authorities to consider how they would 
further embed the programme should there be any extension of the scheme for 
an additional year.  It was suggested that in order to engage families at an 
earlier stage, a focus on early years might be appropriate. 

 
AGREED: 
 
1. That confirmation be provided to Panel Members of the eligibility criteria for 

the programme; and  
 

2. That a further report on the outcome of analysis of which interventions have 
been most successful in achieving outcomes be submitted to the Panel in 
due course. 

 
CYPS84. SUMMARY OF PUPIL PREMIUM 2012/13  

 
The Assistant Director for School Improvement reported that there was a need 
to determine the kind of interventions that were effective. It was nevertheless 
encouraging that the gap in attainment between children receiving free school 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

meals and those not was narrowing in Haringey.  Determining how to spend the 
money most effectively was a challenge for schools.  Schools were spending 
the money in different ways with some using it to plug gaps in funding.  
However, schools were becoming increasingly accountable for the funding and 
delivering outcomes from it.  There was also no guarantee that the funding 
would always be there.   
 
The Panel noted that the recommendations within the report were intended to 
provide guidance to school leaders.  It also noted that the eligibility criteria was 
being looked at by the government and, in particular, whether or not it should 
be linked to free school meals.  The Panel were of the view that that the 
success of schools that facilitated improvements should be celebrated.  They 
also highlighted that it was crucial for schools to ensure that children who were 
eligible registered for school meals. 

 
AGREED: 
 
1. That the recommendations within the report be endorsed; and 

 
2. That a further report on progress be submitted to the Panel in due course. 

 
CYPS85. GIFTED AND TALENTED PUPILS IN HARINGEY  

 
The Panel noted that the outcome of the Russell Group Academy bid was likely 
to be known shortly.  The Deputy Director (School Improvement) agreed to 
notify the Panel of the result.   He reported that Haringey was lagging slightly 
behind other London authorities in terms of the percentage of pupils that went 
onto higher education and, in particular, the top universities. The bid was 
concerned with recognising talent and nurturing aspiration and aimed at 
addressing the aspirations of all Haringey children. 
 
The Panel noted that the onus was now on schools to identify which pupils 
were gifted and talented and ensure that they were sufficiently extended to fulfil 
their potential.  The Panel raised the issue of the link that had been established 
with Highgate School.  Of particular relevance was the work that had been 
undertaken with Haringey schools on admission to Oxbridge. The Deputy 
Director agreed to report back on the further development of the relationship. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That a report be submitted to a future meeting of the Panel on progress with 
the partnership arrangement with Highgate School to provide extended 
services to local residents and schools. 

 
CYPS86. SCHOOL EXPANSIONS  

 
The Chair raised the issue of housing developments in the Muswell Hill area 
and the possibility of extending Muswell Hill School.  The Head of Admissions 
stated that the service was aware of the new builds in the area and projections 
showed an increase in school age children in the area.  However, Muswell Hill 
School was a challenging site.  In terms of meeting demand, a number of 
issues needed to be factored in including demand and standards.  A further 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

report would be made to the Panel in due course on proposals to address 
demand.  The Muswell Hill school site could be looked at again as part of this.   
 
The Panel noted that there was a statutory requirement to consult on the 
proposed changes to the admission arrangements for St James School. This 
involved allocating 50% of places to the community and 50% on faith grounds.  
 
The Head of School Admissions reported that a new two-form entry free school 
run by Harris was due to open in 2014 although it was currently unclear 
whether they had yet been able to identify a suitable site.  In addition, the 
Hartsbook School would also be opening.  The additional school places that 
were currently planned would be enough to meet projected demand.  The 
Panel were of the view that the Hartsbrook School was likely to be filled by a 
large number of children from Enfield.  The Head of Admissions stated that the 
service were aware of the potential for this and had factored it into their 
projections.   

 
AGREED: 
 
That a further report be submitted to the Panel in due course on school 
expansions and, in particular, proposed measures to address the increased 
demand in the Muswell Hill area.  

 
CYPS87. SOCIAL WORK RESOURCING  

 
Panel Members asked for clarification of the reasons for social workers leaving 
the Council’s employment. The Assistant Director for Safeguarding reported 
that the issue was being addressed by the Council’s Human Resources 
department.  It had only been possible too undertake a small number of exit 
interviews so far. The two that had taken place showed that the staff had left for 
personal reasons and to work closer to their home.  The Council had to look at 
how effective it was as an employer.  It was a difficult market at the moment 
with more jobs than people available.  The challenge was particularly strong in 
London.  It was important that the authority had the right systems in place to be 
effective in its recruitment and retention. The service was aiming to slow down 
the turnover of staff.  The quality of what was offered to staff was important.  In 
adaptation, the status of the profession needed to be raised.  The Panel noted 
that one option that was being explored was the setting up of a job swap 
scheme. 
 
The Panel noted that a review of fostering was being undertaken and there was 
a programme of work being developed to improve the service.  The Panel 
requested that an update be submitted to a future meeting. 

 
AGREED: 

 
That an update on improvements to the fostering service be submitted to a 
future meeting of the Panel. 

 
CYPS88. ISSUES FROM AREA COMMITTEE CHAIRS  

 
None. 

Page 7



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

 
CYPS89. WORK PLAN  

 
Noted. 

 
 
 

Cllr Martin Newton 
Chair 
 

 

Page 8



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

THURSDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2013 

 
Councillors Brabazon, Bull, Christophides, Engert and Newton (Chair) 

 
Co-opted 
Members: 

Ms Y. Denny (Church representative) and Mr E. Reid (Parent governor 
representative)  

  

CYPS90.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
None. 

 
CYPS91.  URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 

 
CYPS92.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None.  

 
CYPS93.  DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS  

 
None.  

 
CYPS94.  SCRUTINY OF THE DRAFT MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN  

 
The Panel considered the budget documents as follows: 

 
Financial Outturn 2013/13 and Budget 2014/15: 

 

• Revenue overspend on premature retirement cost and redundancies; The 
Chair reported that this issue had been raised at the Panel meeting on 26 
September and further details had been requested.  Jon Abbey, Deputy 
Director of C&YP, reported that information in respect of this was still 
awaited.  Historically, such commitments had been authorised without 
sufficient rigour but represented a commitment that was ongoing on the part 
of the Council.  However, it was not possible to do much in respect of those 
commitments that had already been made.  He agreed to find out about the 
position of academies in respect of this and report back to the Panel in due 
course on this and other relevant issues.  

 

• Underspend on Early Years; The Panel requested further information 
regarding this. 

 

• Capital overspend on works to Rhodes Avenue School; Mr Abbey reported 
that negotiations on this issue were still ongoing and in the hands of the 
Council’s legal advisers.  Panel Members were of the view that it was 
important that there was accountability for the money that had been spent 
and that it was important that there was greater ongoing challenge built into 
contract monitoring processes.  The lessons that were learnt from this were 
likely to be important.  Councillor Waters, the Cabinet Member for Children, 
reported that capital projects like this involved a level of complexity that 
made them a challenge to monitor and consideration needed to be given to 
how to ensure that there was accountability in such circumstances.  The 

Page 9



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

THURSDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2013 
 

Panel were of the view that a robust framework needed to be constructed 
for dealing with such capital projects and requested that proposals in 
relation to this be shared with them in due course. 

 
Appendix B – Savings Proposals: 

 
1. The Panel noted that this proposal involved integrating service based 

finance teams in Adults and C&YPS and transferring line management 
to the Corporate Procurement Unit.  It was hoped to provide leaner 
management and more efficient processes.  The savings would be made 
by deleting posts.  However, any impact on services would need to be 
monitored.  

 
2. The Cabinet Member reported that briefings for all Members on Haringey 

54000 would shortly be arranged. 
 

3.  It was noted that the posts in question had been vacant for at least two 
years and obligations in this area were now being met in a different way.  
Links with schools had been developed through representation on the 
Local Safeguarding Childrens Board (LSCB), the Schools Forum and the 
education interface within the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH).  
Schools could also access training through the LSCB.  C&YPS had 
oversight of child protection issues within education but it was now 
schools that had direct responsibility. 

 
6. The Cabinet Member reported that this proposal involved rationalising 

administrative support through smarter working and meant that it was 
possible to avoid reducing the number of social workers.  Electronic 
systems had now been developed which required less administrative 
support. 

 
7. It was noted that Public Health now had the main role in this area and 

agreed that this issue would be referred to the Adults and Health 
Scrutiny Panel as it appeared to be more relevant to the policy areas 
covered by them. 

 
8. Panel Members commented that this saving was contingent on the 

number of looked after children (LAC) reducing.  Marion Wheeler, 
Assistant Direct of C&YPS, reported that the number of LAC had 
reduced and had been diminishing at the right pace.  Adoptions had 
increased and the use of expensive and out of borough residential care 
placements minimised.  Efforts were being made to keep children at 
home or in foster care, which were regarded as better settings in which 
to mange risk. Fostering was now administered through the North 
London Consortium.  There were also national procedures and time 
targets which meant that the process was less influenced by post code. 
Time to adoption had gone down but could be distorted by children with 
complex needs and older children.  The extension of foster care till the 
age of 21 would mean additional money would be provided for the 
borough and was a welcome improvement. 

 

Page 10



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

THURSDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2013 
 

10.  The Panel noted that the procurement process linked to the fostering 
review was going ahead and young people would be given a role in 
determining the outcome. It was hoped that the new system would provide 
more local placements as well as more foster carers.  It was agreed that 
Panel Members would be added to the distribution list for the Corporate 
Parenting Advisory Committee. Panel Members noted that corporate 
procurement was within the terms of reference for the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.   

 
Financial Planning 2014/15 to 2016/17: 

 
Dedicated Schools Budget; 
In response to a question, Wendy Sagar, the Interim Head of Finance, 
reported that the Schools Forum had a consultative role in respect of the 
formula for funding schools and made recommendations in response to any 
Local Authority proposals direct to Cabinet.  It was agreed that a briefing 
note would be circulated to Panel Members on the legal status of the Forum 
and whether their recommendations could be subject to scrutiny. 

 
Early Years Block; 
Ms Sagar reported that funding for this was previously based on there being 
90% take up.  It was felt that by reducing the number of full time places 
whilst increasing part time places was likely to provide greater funding in the 
future. Panel Members commented that the take up levels were lower in the 
east of the borough and this contributed to children having lower levels of 
attainment when they began school.  The Cabinet Member reported that the 
Schools Forum was recommending that the hourly rate for the two-year-old 
early entitlement offer be increased to £6.00 per hour and that this 
recommendation was due to go to Cabinet in January.  Other boroughs 
were currently paying a higher hourly rate than Haringey and there was a 
danger that insufficient providers would participate if the increase was not 
made.  It was agreed to recommend that the hourly rate for providers of the 
two-year-old early entitlement offer be increased to £6.00 per hour. 

 
The Panel noted that the introduction of free school meals for all pupils in 
reception to Year 2 would mean that some schools would have to extend 
their kitchen facilities. This was likely to have a greater impact in areas 
where there were lower numbers of children in receipt of free school meals. 
Panel Members commented on the importance of ensuring all those 
children entitled to free school meals were registered as this was very much 
in the interests of schools.  It was noted that nutrition was being considered 
as part of the development of the new entitlement.  It was agreed that a 
briefing on the issue would be submitted to a future meeting of the Panel.   

 
Growth Proposals 

 
Ms Sagar reported that the funding specified for the Haringey 5400 project 
in 2015/16 was a one off amount.  Panel Members were of the view that the 
forthcoming briefing on the Haringey 54000 project should include details of 
the full cost of it, including the procurement process. The Cabinet Member 
reported that the initiative did not represent an outsourcing of services.  The 
strategic partner would support services as they restructured and provide 

Page 11



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

THURSDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2013 
 

expertise and capacity that the Council did not currently have. She would 
make those who were providing the Member briefing aware of the issues 
that had been raised by the Panel. 

 
Additional Savings 

 
2.  Panel Members requested further information on the provision of 
educational psychologists to schools and whether each school had access 
to one.  Mr Abbey agreed to check the position and report back. It was 
noted that each school was provided with a statutory amount but academies 
had to fund provision themselves.   

 
Capital Programme 
Panel Members queried why no capital investments for C&YPS had been 
included.  Ms Sagar reported that these were dependent on capital grants 
from the government which had not yet been announced.  It was agreed 
that the Children’s Services Capital programme would be referred to the 
appropriate Overview and Scrutiny body when available.   

 
AGREED: 

 

1. That a report be submitted to a future meeting of the Panel on school 
related premature retirement costs and redundancies; 
 

2. That the issue of the deletion of the 4YP nurse post be referred to the 
Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel; 
 

3. That Panel Members be placed on the distribution list for the Corporate 
Parenting Advisory Committee; 
 

4. That a briefing note explaining the statutory role of the Schools Forum 
be circulated to Panel Members; 
 

5. That the Cabinet be recommended to approve an increase in the hourly 
rate for providers of the two-year-old early entitlement to £6.00 per hour; 
 

6. That a report be submitted to a future meeting of the Panel on plans to 
introduce free schools meals for reception to Year 2 children; 
 

7. That details of the provision of educational psychologists to schools be 
circulated to Panel Members;  

 
8. That savings that are dependent on reduced numbers of looked after 

children be monitored and any significant variations reported back to the 
Panel: and  
 

9. That capital investment proposals for C&YPS be submitted to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee when available and following the 
announcement of capital grant allocations by the government. 

 
CYPS95.  WORK PLAN  

 

Page 12



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

THURSDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2013 
 

AGREED: 

 

That the work plan for the Panel for the remainder of the Municipal Year be 
approved. 

 
 

Cllr Martin Newton 

Chair 

 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

WEDNESDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2013 

 
Councillors: Brabazon, Bull, Engert and Newton (Chair) 

 
Co-optees: Ms Y Denny (Church of England representative) and Mr E Reid (Parent 

Governor representative)  
 

CYPS96. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

An apo logy for  absence w as received f rom  Councillo r  Chr ist oph ides.   

 

CYPS97. URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 

 

CYPS98. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None.  

 

CYPS99. DEPUTATIONS/ PETITIONS/ PRESENTATIONS/ QUESTIONS  

 
None.  

 

CYPS100. YOUTH OFFER  

 
Councillor Joe Goldberg, the Cabinet Member responsible for youth issues, 
reported on development plans for the youth offer.  The Cabinet had agreed a 
clear vision of what the Council would like the offer to be but it was not 
expected that this would be achieved immediately.  Both the National Youth 
Agency and “Hunch; A Vision for Youth in Post Austerity Britain” provided 
visions of the way forward for youth services.  Nationally, services provided for 
young people were currently in a poor state and getting worse.  Some local 
authorities were considering ceasing to provide any such services but he 
pledged that this would never happen in Haringey.   However, the budget 
reductions had provided the opportunity to look at what the service did and to 
develop a holistic vision for the future. 

 
Previously youth services had been run in a top down way.  Youth centres 
aspired to provide a universal service although in reality this was not really the 
case.  The borough’s youth centres did not necessarily attract large numbers of 
young people.  A decision had now been taken to move away from this type of 
provision and to move towards a more targeted approach. It was nevertheless 
necessary to have a range of activities available to attract the young people to 
the service.  It was also necessary to have outreach staff to identify and 
engage with the young people that the service was targeting.  The offer also 
aimed to ensure that young people were equipped properly for employment as 
well as working with young offenders to try and get them back on track.  
Keeping young people out of custody was particularly important as this could 
have a major adverse affect on their life chances.   

 
Another important priority was giving young people a voice.  It was important 
not to view this as merely another activity.  The aim was instead to provide a 
voice for young people and for them to take a central role in determining 

Page 15



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

WEDNESDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2013 
 

suitable provision and activities for them.  Young people were best placed to 
determine what they wanted.  Youth democracy was also good for the long 
term health of democracy.   
 
The Acting Director of Children’s Services stated that she wished to shape and 
develop an offer that was meaningful to young people.  It was important that 
activities were relevant to young people and adults were not the experts in 
determining this.  Young people were therefore being empowered and involved 
in commissioning of services.  These were aimed at providing a range of 
opportunities, including leisure, work and skills.  There was still some way to go 
before the vision was fulfilled. However, there needed to be clarity regarding 
what was on offer. 
 
Panel Members commented that young people also had many of the same 
concerns as other people such as community safety and clean streets and not 
all young people liked youth clubs.   
 
In answer to a question, the Cabinet Member stated that he wished to enhance 
the status of the Youth Council but it was up to them to decide how they wished 
to develop their role.  At the moment, there was not much of a relationship 
between school councils and the Youth Council although they had similar roles.  
He nevertheless wanted the young people to define their agenda and develop 
their own solutions. 

 
Young people and staff present at the meeting raised the following issues: 

 

• The Youth Parliament in Enfield was considered to be a model that 
Haringey should aspire toward.  Elections were held each year and the 
Parliament really made a difference.  Any young person was able to join in 
with the forums organised by the Parliament.  Meetings were also flexible 
and could involve larger groups of young people from different areas.  Youth 
leaders played a useful role in generating ideas but it was up to the young 
people whether they pursued them or not. 
 

• The Youth Council ought not to be considered as merely another after 
school club.  It should appeal to a wide range of young people.  Enfield 
Youth Parliament had been instrumental in reducing the level of disruption 
at Edmonton Green at the end of the school day. 

 

• Unity Radio was trying to involve young people from across the borough.  It 
was a radio station and also provided opportunities for young people to DJ.  
There were lots of very talented people in the area.  The radio station did 
not have very much money but tried to do the best that it could with what 
was available.  They needed more help from the Council.  Some of the 
young people that they had worked with had suffered bad experiences and 
they had helped them to move on.  Bruce Grove Youth Centre was now a 
lovely place although it did not have much in the way of facilities.   Working 
with the radio station helped to develop life skills and a love of music.  
External sources of funding were currently being sought. 

 

• A young person who had been in care reported that Bruce Grove Youth 
Centre was a very positive and friendly place.  Her social worker had 

Page 16



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

WEDNESDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2013 
 

referred her in the first instance.  Attending the Youth Centre had helped her 
to develop her social skills.   

 

• Wood Green Skills Hub was based in premises that had previously been a 
youth club.  It provided a range of activities which were jointly provided by 
the Council, the London Boxing Academy and the Tottenham Hotspur 
Foundation.  They currently had over 1,000 young people registered. The 
centre was very family orientated.  There was concern regarding its future 
once the lease for the whole of the site was taken over by Fusion.  The 
Centre was not just concerned with sport but with a range of activities. 

 

• Effective careers advice was not taking place in many schools.  The Skills 
Hub was now providing a targeted service for young people in order to 
provide appropriate guidance and support. 

 

• A young person reported that she attended the Skills Hub three times per 
week.  She attended even if she was not well enough to do sport and her 
brother attended as well.  A parent reported that a youth worker had been 
very supportive of her daughter and her involvement had made a huge 
difference.  The level of support went well beyond the call of duty and 
showed real dedication. 

 

• The Edge of Care Team was multi-disciplinary and supported young people 
with complex needs and lives.  A young person commented that the one-to-
one work had been very helpful.  Sometimes young people could loose trust 
in adults.  It was very useful to have someone who they could talk to 
though.  

 

• The manager of Youth Centres reported that Bruce Grove would be open 
for four nights per week from January.  Six new members of staff had been 
taken on.  The Centre was hoping to sustain the number of days in which it 
was open and to encourage more young people to attend.  Some of the 
work that was undertaken was targeted whilst other work was more general 
in nature.  It was intended to increase the amount of outreach work in the 
local community.  The Muswell Hill Centre was currently running for one 
night per week but the intention was to increase this to three.   
Consideration was also being given to reorganising the Homework Club and 
developing one-to-one support for young people.  However, it would not be 
possible to revert to offering activities on five days per week.  The Youth 
Offer was not just focussed on providing activities but also had an important 
role in providing opportunities and skills development for young people. 

 

• Members of Haringey Youth Council described the work that they 
undertook.  This including running an anti-bullying event in Bruce Grove and 
holding a question time event with Councillors.  Members had also visited 
Berlin as part of a link-up with the British Youth Council.  They have been 
instrumental in obtaining the views of young people on a range of issues 
such as votes at 16, unemployment and the school curriculum.   

 

• Mind in Haringey were working with young people to help them develop the 
necessary attributes to get them into work.  In particular, this focussed on 
encouraging them to recognise and emphasise their qualities as well as 

Page 17



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

WEDNESDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2013 
 

developing skills.  They were also working with people leaving care to help 
them build emotional resilience.  

 

• Aspire was a group for young people in care that was also run by them.  
The purpose of the group was to make sure that those who made decisions 
affecting the lives of young people in care heard their views. They 
undertook a range of activities including working with local Councillors.  
They had also managed to secure free admission to local gym facilities.   

 

• Members of the Panel suggested that the feasibility of offering free access 
to Council owned gyms for all young people within the borough of between 
the ages of 16 and 19 be investigated.  Obesity cost the NHS substantial 
amounts of money so it would not be unreasonable to suggest that health 
commissioners subsidised the cost of free leisure passes.  

 

• The need for high-quality and impartial careers advice was highlighted.  
This particularly impacted on young people in Year 12 and work was being 
undertaken with schools to address this issue.  The Interim Director of 
C&YPS agreed to take up this issue further and work with Head Teachers 
and the Schools Forum to develop an action plan.  

 

• Concern was also expressed at the quality of work experience that was 
available to young people in the borough.  It was noted that very few young 
people followed up their work experience placement by choosing the area in 
which they had worked as a future career.   

 

• The summer programme had been very successful, with over 1000 young 
people attending activities.  There had been a reduction in youth crime of 
almost 10% during the summer.  

 

• An engagement programme was being developed with the Roma gypsy and 
Traveller communities.  These were particularly hard to reach and 
consideration was being given to effective ways in which they could be 
involved.  The communities in question faced particular challenges including 
low educational achievement and life expectancy.   

 

• Panel Members were of the view that full details of all the work that was 
being undertaken with young people should be included on the Youth 
Space website.  

 
The Panel thanked the young people who attended the meeting for their 
contribution.   

 
AGREED: 

 

1. That the Panel recommend that the feasibility of providing free gym access 
to young people residing within the borough who are between the ages of 
16 and 19 be investigated and that NHS commissioners be approached 
regarding the possibility of them contributing towards the cost of this in view 
of the potential health benefits; and  
 

Page 18



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

WEDNESDAY, 18 DECEMBER 2013 
 

2. That the Children and Young People’s Service be recommended to 
develop, in consultation with Head Teachers and the Schools Forum, an 
action plan for improving the quality of careers guidance for young people 
and that this be referred to the Panel in due course. 

 

CYPS101. MINUTES  

 
AGREED: 

 

That approval of the minutes of the meeting of 12 November be deferred until 
the next meeting. 

 

 

Cllr Mart in New ton 

Chair 

 

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2014 

 

Councillo rs Brabazon, Bu ll, Chr ist oph ides, Engert  and New t on (Chair ) 

 

Co-opt ed 

Mem bers: 

Ms Y Denny (Church represent at ive) and Mr E Reid (Parent  

Governor    Represent at ive) 

  

 

  

CYPS102.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

None. 

 

 

CYPS103.  URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 

 

CYPS104.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None.  

 

CYPS105.  DEPUTATIONS/ PETITIONS/ PRESENTATIONS/ QUESTIONS  

 
None.  

 

CYPS106.  MINUTES  

 
In response to the matters raised in the minutes, Ms Redfern reported that 
since the meeting the service had addressed many of the issues raised.  
Amongst other things, there was now a bi-weekly audit of placements and 
communication was being improved.  Panel Members highlighted the fact that 
some providers were extremely keen to expand.  

 
AGREED: 

 

That the minutes of the meeting of 11 November 2013 be approved. 

 

 

CYPS107.  PANEL PROJECT ON NURSERIES AND THE TWO-YEAR-OLD FREE EARLY 

ENTITLEMENT  

 
The Panel welcomed Neeraj Sharma and Clive Grimshaw from London 
Councils, who provided the Panel with a presentation on the work that they had 
been undertaking on the two-year-old early free entitlement.  The meeting was 
also attended by Lisa Redfern, Interim Director of Children and Young People’s 
Services; Jon Abbey, Assistant Director for School Improvement and Charlotte 
Pomery, Head of Joint Commissioning Adults, Children and Voluntary Sector. 

 
Mr Sharma and Mr Grimshaw reported that local authorities had a statutory 
duty to secure funded early education for 20% of eligible two-year-olds from 1 
September 2013. The entitlement was to be extended to reach 40% of eligible 

Page 21



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2014 
 

two-year-olds from September 2014.  £755 million will be allocated to 
authorities in 2014-15 to fund the scheme.  The aim of the scheme was to 
improve outcomes for two-year-olds who had been identified as potentially 
benefitting from access to high quality early years and childcare provision.  
However, this was not a new area of provision for some London boroughs, who 
had been providing free early education for some children since 1998.  

 
Nationally, 130,000 children qualified for the two-year-old offer in September 
2013, with an estimated 26,761 (20.5 per cent) of these in London. The high 
levels of poverty in some London boroughs meant that very high percentages 
of children within them qualified for the free early education offer in 2013 and 
2014.  This figure could be as high as 80%.  From September 2014, 285,000 
children in total would qualify for the two-year-old offer, with an estimated 
50,373 (17.6%)  children in London.   

 
London boroughs had been allocated £86 million for the offer.  This worked out 
as an average hourly rate of £5.71, assuming all the money was transferred 
over to the provider.  However, this was below the rate that was provided for 
the pilot projects, which had been £6.00 per hour.  The national average rate 
was £5.09 per hour.  No specific funding has been provided to cover the local 
authority costs of administering the new duty.  

 
Research undertaken by the Daycare Trust on behalf of London Councils 
showed that the greatest challenge for boroughs was actually fulfilling the 20% 
target rather than the higher 40% target.  This was due to the fact that many 
were having to start the provision from scratch. 

 
Most child care in England was provided by private companies, although 
nurseries, sessional childcare and provision for older children was also 
provided by the public sector and voluntary and independent providers. The 
majority of places for the three and four-year-old offer had been available 
through nurseries attached to primary schools.  This was especially true of 
London.  However, the two-year-old entitlement would be delivered mainly 
through the market.  There was a smaller voluntary sector in London although 
this varied from borough to borough and some boroughs had no public sector 
provision.   

 
Childcare providers in London had the highest costs in England, due to higher 
wages and rents.  In addition, there was less availability of childminders.  While 
there were vacancies in many early years settings in London, these vacancies 
were not necessarily in the locations where they were needed nor always 
suitable for two-year-olds.  44% of providers were already operating at 
maximum capacity.  

 
Funding from government was not considered sufficiently high enough to offer 
a competitive hourly rate to attract many providers to expand or set up new 
provision to provide additional places for two-year-olds. London Councils 
research had found that a rate closer to £8 was required.  There were 
additional costs associated with looking after two-year-olds.  It was not 
possible, for instance, to use the same toys as for three-year-olds.  There were 
also additional costs associated with children with additional needs, such as 

Page 22



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2014 
 

family support, disability, attending conferences, reviews.  There was also a 
smaller proportion of good and outstanding provision in London.   

 
The Panel noted that families from minority ethnic communities were less likely  
to take up early entitlement places.  Parents/carers from such communities 
were generally less likely to place their children in early years settings.  
Funding for the scheme was split between revenue and capital. Boroughs were 
currently funded based on a full participation model, from 2015 this would 
change to a funding model based on participation levels.  

 
A number of possible solutions had been suggested by London Councils to 
improve take up and provision of places.  These included:  

 

• Moving three-year-olds from Private, Voluntary and Independent (PVI) 
providers to schools, thus freeing up space for two-year-olds;  

 

• Assessing all current providers to see whether they could take additional 
two-year-olds.  It was noted that the two-year-old entitlement was new for 
them as well; 

 

• Supporting providers who needed additional equipment and facilities to 
take two-year-olds.  The Chair commented that many providers were very 
keen to expand but not necessarily aware of the possibility of capital 
funding; 

 

• Building a register of available properties; 
 

• Providing free training for childminders to take on additional children; and   
 

• Working with partners.  
 

The Two-Year-Old Entitlement was a priority issue for London Councils and 
work would be continuing on it, including research and lobbying of the 
Department.  London Councils research had identified the need for a flexible 
approach to  deliver long term improved outcomes for the most disadvantaged 
two-year-old that also included working with the family. They were of the view 
that the government should relax the requirement to only provide 15 hours of 
funded childcare for the most disadvantaged and allow flexibility for an 
alternative model. Whereby local authorities would instead be allowed to make 
two offers to parents based on 15 hours funded childcare: 

 

• 10 hours of early education, plus additional home learning and parenting, 
developing the model trialled by the Royal Borough of Greenwich and in 
more local authorities in the 2009 offer.  Evidence had so far suggested it 
was the model that delivered the best long term outcomes; and 

 

• 15 hours of early education. 
 

To date, the DfE had  rejected any calls for greater flexibility in the programme. 
There had been dialogue with the ministerial team and lobbying, particularly in 

Page 23



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2014 
 

respect of the proposal by the government to repeal the duty regarding quality 
in the Children and Families Bill.   

 
The Panel thanked Mr Sharma and Mr Grimshaw for their kind assistance.  
They noted, anecdotally, according to London Councils, take up of the 
entitlement was likely to be below the government target of 80 per cent. 
Challenges in London meant the take up rate was likely to be approximately 50 
per cent, although some authorities may achieve higher.  London Councils 
would be undertaking further work on emerging practice to disseminate 
learning across London.    
 
Panel Members suggested that EU funding might provide an opportunity to 
increase capital resources available to develop services.  There was a 
perception that there were lots of suitable church halls available but the reality 
was that it was a real challenge to identify suitable premises and alternative 
ways of delivering the scheme needed to be explored.   
 
Ms Pomery commented that although work was being undertaken with 
childminders, many parents in London were not keen to use them.  The DfE 
was nevertheless promoting childminding heavily.   

 
In terms of communication with parents, the Panel highlighted the fact that 
personalised letters could promote higher levels of response.  They were of the 
view that communication needed to be reviewed to ensure that its effectiveness 
was maximised.  In addition, effective liaison with Primary schools was 
important in order to encourage children to move onto nursery classes 
therefore liberating places for two-year-olds in PVIs.   
 
The Panel were also of the view that health visitors could play an important role 
in promoting the scheme to parents and carers.  Of particular note was the fact 
that local authorities would be taking on commissioning responsibilities for 
health visitors from 2015 which would provide greater influence over them.   
 
Ms Pomery provided an update on the implementation of the scheme within 
Haringey.  The Council and its partners were strongly committed to delivering it 
and were seeking to be innovative and creative in approach.  There were three 
pillars of its approach: 
• Sufficiency of places.  Work was being undertaken with, amongst others,  

Corporate Property Services and childminders to increase the number and 
quality of places; 

• Access; and  
• Quality. 
 

Action was also being taken, together with partners, to improve communication.  
As part of this, a marketing day was being held.  In terms of funding, a report 
was being made to Cabinet shortly recommending an increase in the hourly 
rate to £6 per hour.  This was possible due to an underspend in the Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG).  This would be sufficient to fund the increase for the next 
two years but after this time additional resources would need to be identified.   
 
The Panel noted that there were currently 77 childminders in the borough 
whose services had been deemed as requiring improvement by OFSTED.  The 

Page 24



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2014 
 

Panel were of the view that the status of childminders needed to be improved 
and their profile increased.  This could be done through, for instance, improved 
training arrangements and the development of links with Children’s Centres. 
 
Ms Redfern reported that the Corporate Delivery Unit had been undertaking 
some work on early years and she agreed to circulate this to the Panel.  A need 
to develop marketing had been identified which it was felt was not currently 
strategic enough.   
 
The Panel were of the view that average performance would not be sufficient 
for Haringey, especially in the light of the Haringey 54000 project.  The two- 
year-old entitlement needed to be an absolute priority for the borough.  It was 
noted that there were currently 666 places available within the borough and 
that 423 had been taken up so far.  However, only 13 childminders were so far 
offering places.   
 
Panel Members suggested a number of possible locations for provision as 
follows; 

• The play building in Finsbury Park, which could possibly be used as part of 
a tri-borough project; 

• The former NSPCC Maya Angelou Centre in Keston Road; 

• The Children’s Centre next to Downhills Park; 

• The former bowling club in Park Road; and  

• The former PRC premises in Coppets Road,  
 
The Panel were of the view that the Council needed to be in a position to grab 
opportunities when they arose and that the knowledge of ward Councillors of 
their localities could be utilised to identify potential premises.   
 
The Panel noted that the on-line survey had been sent out to in excess of 800 
providers so the response rate of 25 was very low.  However, it was 
nevertheless possible to identify some points of significance from the 
responses.  In particular, it was noted that there were providers in the N15 
postcode with vacancies as well as other providers in the same post code area 
who had more than 20 children on their waiting list.  The general comments by 
providers were also of interest. 
 
Ms Pomery commented that providers should not have waiting lists as the 
provision was only for a year.  Work was being undertaken with providers to 
address this issue.   
 
The Panel were of the view that self-referral had not proven to be effective in 
allocating places and that it was important that the process was managed.  It 
was suggested that a Freephone number would assist residents who needed 
advice and information and that this should also be free for people using mobile 
phones.   In addition, it was felt that much could be learnt from the effective and 
efficient way that school admissions were administered and suggested that this 
could be the template for good practice.  
 
It was noted that take up for places for three-year-olds in the Tottenham area 
was comparatively low.  In view of the fact that further funding would be 
dependent on participation levels, it was critical that this issue was addressed.  

Page 25



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2014 
 

The transition process from two-year-old to three-year-old provision was 
critical.   

 

CYPS108.  CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
Based on the evidence that they had received to date, the Panel considered 
conclusions and recommendations as follows: 

 

• The Panel were of the view that communication could be improved, 
including: 

Ø More helpful and attractive letters, with a named contact.  
Ø A Freephone contact number that was also free from mobile phones. 

 

• The model used by the School Admissions service should be the template 
for arrangements to allocate places and fill vacancies for the two-year-old 
early entitlement.   

 

• Mapping should be published which shows levels of take-up, available 
places and children awaiting placement in each ward. A system of tracking 
outcomes should also be developed.  This could include case studies. 

 

• Health visitors should play an important role in promoting the scheme and 
helping to increase take up levels by providing information about two-year-
old offer to parents during their visits. This should be built into protocols as 
the local authority will be taking over responsibility for commissioning the 
Health Visiting Service from 2015 and there is an aspiration for a return to a 
Universal Offer. 

 

• The Panel emphasised the need for services to liaise closely with people 
who have local knowledge.   This is particularly useful in helping to identify 
potential sites for provision.  In addition, a call for suggestions for sites 
might assist in identifying sites with potential. 

 

• Consideration needs to be given to the transition process to provision for 
three-year-olds with a view to identifying how available funding streams can 
be most effectively exploited. 

 

• Intensive work should be undertaken with providers, particularly where they 
have expressed an interest in expanding, with a proactive approach 
adopted. 

 

• All professionals in contact with expectant mothers and mothers with very 
young children should be encouraged to disseminate information on the 
two-year-old offer. “Playground champions” could also be identified to 
promote the scheme to parents and carers who might be entitled. 

 

• The Panel endorses London Councils proposal that flexibility should be built 
into the scheme so that the hours can be used in innovative ways that 
maximise outcomes. 

 

Page 26



MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY PANEL 

MONDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2014 
 

• There are currently a comparatively small number of childminders providing 
places as part of the entitlement.  The Panel is of the view that the status of 
childminders needs to be enhanced so that they are encouraged to provide 
places as part of the entitlement and parents are more likely to consider 
using them.  This could be done through, for instance, improved training 
arrangements and the development of links with Children’s Centres. In 
addition, consideration could be given to forming them into 
groups/cooperatives.  Childminding could also be promoted in Haringey 
People. 

 

 

Cllr Mart in New ton 

Chair 

 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 7 

 

 

Report for: 
CYPS Scrutiny Panel 
27 February 2014 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Fostering Service Review & Implementation  

 

Report 
Authorised by:  

Lisa Redfern  
Director,  Children’s Services  

 

Lead Officer: 
Charlotte Pomery  
Joint Adult and Children’s Interim Assistant Director Commissioning 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 
Report for: Non Key Decision 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 

This paper provides an update on Haringey’s Fostering Review and Implementation 
Programme which ran between May 2013 and January 2014. 
 
There has been much progress in this time. We have talked to Haringey foster 
carers to better understand their motivations and needs. We have looked at 
alternative ways of delivering the service. We have developed an innovative new 
partnership to accelerate its growth. And we have completed a strategic review of 
our wider approach to providing the right placements at the right time. 
 
The new Placements Sufficiency Strategy (please see attached appendix) 
highlights a number of successes over recent years, including a safe and persistent 
reduction in the number of looked after children, a positive move from residential to 
family placements, improving placement stability and a strong level cost control. It 
also points to further opportunities for improvement and savings and sets out what 
more can be done to realise them. The fostering project is now focused on 
delivering these further changes. 
 

2. Cabinet Member introduction 
 
I fully support the Fostering Review and Implementation.   Outstanding foster care 
is vital to giving every Looked After Child (LAC) in Haringey their best possible life 
chances.  Ensuring we have sufficient foster carers who offer high quality care is 

Agenda Item 6Page 29



 

Page 2 of 7 

 

the only way of achieving this.   This work will mean Haringey has more high quality 
foster carers.  
 

3. Recommendations 
 
The Fostering Service Review (May to August 2013) recommended that: 
1. a refreshed Placements Needs Analysis and Sufficiency Strategy be completed; 
2. the in-house fostering recruitment and assessment function be externalised at 

pace; and 
3. plans be formulated for the continuous improvement of the in-house fostering 

service. 
 

The Fostering Implementation Project was mobilised in October 2013 to deliver 
these recommendations. This project concluded on 31 January 2014 and made 
further proposals to support the growth and success of the in-house fostering 
service. Specifically, the creation of a ‘Continuous Improvement Plan’ (‘CIP’) was 
agreed which will bring the staff teams together with Haringey foster carers to re-
design the service and jointly implement the changes needed. This work will 
respond directly to the ‘customer insight’ from local foster carers in the Fostering 
Service Review, including points of direct feedback, and will run until March 2015. 
 
It is an important feature of the work that it is designed and delivered jointly through 
the staff teams and foster carers (to maximise engagement and ownership and 
improve relationships). There is capacity to carry out this work although a 
requirement for change management resource has been identified and this has 
been sourced through the Strategic Partnership. Additional detail as to this work is 
set out in Section 5.  
 

4. Alternative options considered 
 
In addition to the externalisation of the recruitment and assessment function – the 
option recommended and approved - a range of alternative options were 
considered and appraised regarding the future delivery model for the in-house 
fostering service. These are set out in previous reports. 
 

5. Background information 
 
The Council is committed to maximising the number of local family placements 
available to Haringey’s looked after children to deliver improved outcomes and to 
offer value for money. In support of this, the Council engaged iMPOWER in May 
2013 to carry out a review of the in-house fostering service, encompassing both in-
house improvement opportunities and alternative delivery options. 
 
This work confirmed that the service has a low, and reducing, level of local fostering 
placements and that an immediate strategic and tactical response was required. 
 

5.1 Work carried out  
 

Page 30



 

Page 3 of 7 

 

Fostering Service Review (May to August 2013) 
 

 
 
 

In addition to identifying and appraising options for how the in-house service could 
be delivered in the future, the Fostering Review also conducted in-depth 
engagement work – through telephone surveys and focus groups - to enable a 
better understanding of the needs of foster carers and prospective foster carers. 
This work canvassed direct feedback on service experience and also applied a 
psychograhic system called ‘Values Modes’ to understand the values and 
motivations of foster carers. This work revealed a common values set amongst 
foster carers – a finding since validated by national DfE research – which can be 
used to target service development, as well as specific and immediate improvement 
opportunities. 
 

Fostering Implementation Project (October 2013 to January 2014) 
 
The Fostering Implementation Project was subsequently commissioned through 
iMPOWER to advance the recommendations of the Review. This work concluded 
on 31 January 2014 and delivered the following: 

 
- Placements Sufficiency Strategy, including Needs Analysis 
- New model for assessment and recruitment of foster carers  
- Service performance framework, and 

- Continuous Improvement Plan (including pledges from staff and foster 
carers)  

 
5.2 Placements Sufficiency Strategy 
 

A new Sufficiency Strategy has been developed which sets out the ambition, 
direction and required actions for placements sufficiency. This includes: 

 

Page 31



 

Page 4 of 7 

 

• Investment in the growth and development of the in-house fostering service 
to provider greater local family placement sufficiency (across all Children’s 
Services cohorts); 

• Transition from 32% in-house fostering placement share to 60% over three 
years;  

• Specific foster carer recruitment targets based around the needs of looked 
after children; 

• Development of a clear specialist foster care offer and foster carer 
development pathway;   

• A general rationalisation of commissioning routes and reinforcement of 
practice;  and 

• More active market management, particularly in relation to local residential 
provision. 

 

The Sufficiency Strategy was co-produced with Finance in order to ensure the 
financial context is clear, accurate and understood. To this end the document 
examines a number of impact scenarios (set out in the graph below) in which the 
effect of changes in the different ‘cost drivers’ – unit costs, mix of placement types 
and LAC numbers - can be seen. 
 
In order to achieve short term sustainability, both unit costs and the placement mix 
must be influenced at pace. A continued reduction in LAC numbers will add further 
comfort over both the short and long term. 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 32



 

Page 5 of 7 

 

5.3.  New model for recruitment and assessment of foster carers 
 
The new model for the recruitment and assessment of foster carers has now been 
commissioned and implemented. The external recruitment provider, NRS Limited, 
was appointed following a process of market engagement and a formal tendering 
exercise. The partnership is founded on an innovative risk and reward arrangement 
in which the provider is paid by results. 
 

5.4.  Service Performance Framework 
 
Provider performance, in terms of the number and quality of foster carer 
assessments delivered and the forward ‘pipeline’ of applicants, will be monitored 
through a new ‘service performance framework’. This framework spans the entire 
fostering service, including support, supervision, utilisation and retention of foster 
carers and will be operated through the new Continuous Improvement Plan Project 
Board (see below). 

 
5.5.  Continuous Improvement Plan  

 
The Continuous Improvement Plan (CIP), which is based on and responds directly 
to what foster carers recently told us, puts foster carers at the heart of the service. 
Engagement work tells us that: 
 

• Approved foster carers have very mixed experiences of the service and there 
are opportunities to make them feel more valued; 

• Foster carers want to be involved in the fostering service, and this 
involvement shouldn’t start or end with the placement; 

• Equally, prospective foster carers would value greater and earlier contact 
with approved foster carers, highlighting the power of ‘peer advocacy’ 
through word-of-mouth referral campaigns; 

• Foster carers are already active in and have a deep reach into our 
communities and are willing to help, along with the Council’s partners, 
generate word-of-mouth opportunities; and 

• This principle also applies to support and the Council has an opportunity to 
help build a community of mutual support in which foster carers have a 
greater stake. 

 
The plan comprises four elements (project ‘workstreams’) and will be delivered over 
12 months starting in February 2014: 

 
1. Recruitment and assessment (complementing the work of the external 

recruitment provider); 
2. Support; 
3. Utilisation; and 
4. Specialist Offer. 

 
 

Page 33



 

Page 6 of 7 

 

6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 
 

6.1 The latest 2013-14 budget for fostering placements is £16.84m comprising 
£13.821m (82%) independent fostering and £3.019m (18%) in-house.  Assuming 
the numbers of LAC in foster placements and unit costs remain constant, 
implementation of the transition to 60% in-house foster care would save £3.8m 
over the 3 year period.  Rationalisation of commissioning routes is expected to 
reduce unit costs from their current levels. 
 

6.2 Implementation of the proposed sufficiency strategy, through changing the 
placement mix and reducing unit costs, is expected to deliver £2.25m savings in 
order to contribute to the CYPS savings target in 2014-15. 

 
6.3 Further analysis will be required to clarify the level of future savings to be delivered 

through the sufficiency strategy which will be required to contribute to further, 
challenging Medium Term Financial Planning targets from 2015-16 onwards. 

 
7. Head of Legal Services and legal implications 

 
n/a  
 

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
n/a  
 

9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 

9.1 The External Recruitment Provider was commissioned with the advice and 
guidance of Procurement and is fully compliant with the Procurement Code of 
Practice. 
 

9.2 A competitive process was undertaken to ensure Value for Money was achieved. 
 

9.3 Contract management arrangements for the external recruitment provider are in 
place, ensuring KPIs are met and allowing early identification of any non-
compliance. 
 

10. Policy Implication 
 

10.1 The work carried out with regard to fostering supports the Council’s wider 
commitment to accommodating children in family settings, where possible locally, 
as set out in a number of policies. Those which underpin the Council’s approach to 
the accommodation of children becoming looked after specifically are: 

 
- Placements and Permanency Policy (published 2013), and 
- Family and Friends Policy (published 2013). 

 

Page 34



 

Page 7 of 7 

 

10.2 The Placements Sufficiency Strategy and project activities do not propose to revise 
these policies but to strengthen their effective delivery whilst securing best value for 
money. 

 
11.  Reasons for Decision  

 
n/a   (for information only). 
 

12. Use of Appendices 
 

• Looked After Children Placements Sufficiency Strategy  
 

13. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
n/a 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

    Page 1 of 60 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

January 2014 

London Borough of Haringey 
 

Looked After Children  

Placement Sufficiency Strategy 

2013/14 – 2016/17 

                                                                  www.haringey.gov.uk 

Page 37



  

 Page 2 of 60 

 

 

Document Control 

 

Author(s): Charlotte Pomery, Alastair Thompson, Edward Wallace 

Date: 06/01/2014 

Service: CYPS 

 

Approvals 

 

The signatories below have fully reviewed, and approved, this LAC Sufficiency 

Strategy. 

 

Name Role Signature Date Version 

Lisa Redfern Director    

 

Version History 

 

Version Date Author(s) Summary of Changes 

V0.1 10/12/13 EW  

V0.2 16/12/13 CP/EW/AT Revisions throughout, including to analysis 

V0.3 06/01/14 CP/EW/AT Additions to: 

- Section 2 (Executive Summary) 

- Section 5 (Introduction) 

- Section 11 (Action Plan)  

Corrections to Section 1 (Contents) 

    

Page 38



  

 Page 3 of 60 

1. Contents 

 
 
1. Contents 3 

2. Executive summary 4 

3. Context 7 

4. Purpose 9 

5. Introduction 10 

6. Summary of current position 12 

6.1 LAC population and placement profile 12 

6.2 Pressures on the LAC population 17 

7. Needs analysis – placement demand 19 

7.1 LAC profile 19 

8. Placement supply analysis 28 

9. In-house and external capacity 31 

9.1 In-house fostering service capacity 32 

9.2 External capacity 33 

9.3 Comparison of in-house and external fostering 36 

10. Financial context and scenarios 41 

11. Sufficiency plan 45 

11.1 Sufficiency Duty requirements 46 

11.2 Sufficiency action plan 47 

12. Appendix 1: Excerpt from the Children Act 1989 60 

 

 

 

Page 39



  

 Page 4 of 60 

2. Executive summary 

 

This document is Haringey’s Placement Sufficiency Strategy. 

 

It sets out how the Council and its partners will help looked after children to achieve 

successful outcomes through the provision of appropriate care and accommodation, 

and how available resources will be best used to do so. 

 

The Placement Sufficiency Strategy comprises an important part of Haringey’s LAC 

Strategy, but is only one element in the wider partnership response to the needs of 

children, young people and families. Education, Health, Housing, Social Work and 

other partners all play an important part both in the delivery of placement 

sufficiency and in enabling every child and young person to thrive and achieve their 

potential. 

 

This paper starts by reviewing who Haringey currently looks after – the profile and 

characteristics of children in care – and how those children are accommodated. 

Throughout this review it identifies gaps and opportunities for continued 

improvement. It ends by defining the actions the Council and its partners are taking 

and will take to ensure sustainable placement sufficiency in the future. 

 

In summary, recent years have followed a positive trajectory in respect of LAC 

numbers, placement mix and total cost, and analysis points to scope for further 

improvements. To provide sufficiency within anticipated budgets, many or all of 

these improvements must be made at pace. 

 

Since the peak of 638 in May 2011, there has been a strong and consistent reduction 

in the number of children in care, to 508 in November 2013.  

 

The Borough has also seen some success in the way that children have been 

accommodated in that a greater proportion of children are now within family or 

semi-independent placements rather than residential units. As a result of this and 

other positive factors, fewer placements are now breaking down. 

 

The costs of the main types of placement have remained relatively steady in recent 

years, and total placements costs have reduced too, in line with the reduction in 

looked after children and with the more favourable mix of placement types. 

 

What the analysis in this strategy shows is that more can now be done: to reduce the 

number of children coming into care and increase those returning home; to 

accommodate looked after children closer to their family homes; and to manage unit 

costs. All of these opportunities also provide prospects for better use of available 

resources. 

 

Page 40



  

 Page 5 of 60 

Firstly, despite the decrease in recent years, the level of looked after children is still 

higher than that of comparator authorities. 

 

Secondly, despite the move away from residential placements, a high proportion of 

family placements are with independent providers (60%). Haringey values and 

encourages the role of the market in providing placement choice, however the 

current level of reliance on independent provision is one of the highest in the 

country. 

 

Thirdly, independent provision is not currently commissioned in a way which allows 

providers or the Council to get the best from the relationship. 

 

This analysis and action plan centres on these 3 key themes, on how the Borough 

can: 

 

1. Enable further reductions in LAC numbers by supporting positive exits from care; 

2. Allow LAC to be accommodated more locally by the development of greater in-

house family placement capability and capacity, and 

3. Achieve better use of resources by working with the market to proactively shape 

provision which better meets the needs of Haringey’s LAC and enables providers 

to invest and innovate. 

 

Broadly, this plan involves: 

1. Implementing or re-deploying placement supports and expertise further 

‘upstream’ to prevent escalation of need and investment in more effective 

placement support to enable more children to return home more quickly; 

2. A carer-centred transformation and expansion of the in-house fostering service. 

This includes the testing and development of new service delivery models, 

investment in supervision quality, carer-led design and delivery of new service 

initiatives, and the development of a ‘specialist’ fostering service offer, and 

3. The review and rationalisation and framework arrangements and brokerage 

processes and active development of more mature provider partnerships. 

 

Section 11 sets out the detailed actions and Section 10 the financial context 

underpinning this strategy. It is clear that these actions must be taken without delay 

in order to provide greater and sustainable sufficiency. The Council has put in place 

ambitious plans and processes to ensure they are taken forward and will keep this 

strategy under close review. 

 

This strategy is set within the context of Haringey’s existing placement policies and 

the analysis and action plan are aligned to those policies and aim to better enable or 

accelerate delivery of them. The strategy will provide the reference point for 

commissioning decisions and activity over the next 3 years and as such will be 

Page 41



  

 Page 6 of 60 

reviewed, refreshed and approved annually to ensure that momentum and 

consistency is maintained, that the Borough can remain agile and responsive to 

innovation and that progress is monitored at a strategic level.  

Page 42



  

 Page 7 of 60 

3. Context 

 

“We want all of Haringey’s children to have the best 

start in life so that they can lead successful and 

prosperous lives in adulthood.” 
 

Councillor Claire Kober, Leader, Haringey Council 

Haringey’s Corporate Plan: One Borough, One Future, 2013/14 – 2014/15 

 

Haringey’s vision for One Borough, One Future, is set out in the Corporate Plan 

2013/14 – 2014/15. Within it are a number of strategic principles, outcomes and 

priorities. These include: 

 

Principles 

 

1. Investing in prevention and early help – improving the life chances of residents 

and reducing costs, and 

 

2. Promoting equality – tackling the barriers facing the most disadvantaged, 

enabling them to achieve their potential. 

 

Outcomes Priorities 

Outstanding for all: 

Enabling all Haringey children to thrive 

Enable every child and young person to 

thrive and achieve their potential 

Safety and wellbeing for all: 

A place where everyone feels safe and 

has a good quality of life 

Safeguard adults and children from 

abuse and neglect wherever possible, 

and deal with it appropriately and 

effectively if it does occur 

A better council: 

Delivering responsive, high quality 

services and encouraging residents who 

are able to help themselves to do so 

Strive for excellent value for money 

 

Delivery of the Corporate Outcomes is supported by four corporate programmes, 

including Haringey 54,000 (‘H54k’). H54k is: 

 

A programme to deliver our vision of ‘Haringey being a place where children and 

young people are known to thrive and achieve’. It seeks to achieve sustainable 

improvement in outcomes for children, young people and families with a particular 

focus on: 

 

Page 43



  

 Page 8 of 60 

• ensuring all families can access a high quality educational offer in the 

borough 

• promoting resilient families, by acting as a catalyst for a wide selection of 

high quality universal or targeted borough-based child and family activities, 

and 

• providing high quality safeguarding to those who need it. 

 

In addition, Haringey’s Children’s Trust outlines how the Corporate Priorities and 

other partnership objectives will be delivered through the Children and Young 

People’s Plan 2013 – 2016 (the ‘CYP Plan’). The CYP Plan aligns with the vision in the 

Corporate Plan and identifies 5 outcomes and 4 key principles: 

 

Outcomes 

 

1. Quality services 

2. Every child has a healthy start in life 

3. Thriving families 

4. Raised educational attainment 

5. Children and young people are safer from the risk of harm 

 

Principles 

 

1. Promoting prevention, early help and intervention 

2. Reducing inequality 

3. Developing resilience and community participation 

4. Ensuring best use of available resources 

 

This combined vision sets the ambition and strategic framework for delivering 

improved outcomes for the children and young people of Haringey. Both the 

Corporate Plan and CYP Plan recognise that they are set against a backdrop of 

reduced and reducing public sector funding settlements and that is why, more than 

ever, partners across the Borough must work together to prevent need from 

escalating and to reduce demand for more intensive and costly services. 

 

For Haringey, this means releasing capacity from expensive interventions such as 

social care and specialist services, including placements for children in care, to 

provide families with earlier help. 

 

This provides the broad context of this strategy to provide the right placements at 

the right time for children in care; a Borough-wide commitment to helping families 

earlier, a need for resource shift away from intensive interventions to support the 

early help effort and continuing financial pressures across the system. 

 

 

Page 44



  

 Page 9 of 60 

4. Purpose 

 

The purpose of this strategy is to set out the approach of the London Borough of 

Haringey to achieving placement sufficiency for the looked after children (‘LAC’) in 

our care. Through our strategy, our ambition is to meet the needs of the most 

vulnerable children in Haringey in the short, medium and long term whilst ensuring 

best use of available resources.  

 

The strategy supports the implementation of the core priorities of the Corporate 

Plan and the Children and Young People’s Plan, recognising the complex context in 

which we are operating and focusing on enabling all Haringey children to thrive 

through the provision of quality services which keep them safe from the risk of harm.  

 

The strategy is built on a detailed analysis of LAC trends to inform our commissioning 

activity and future arrangements for the commissioning of placements. This analysis 

also forms the basis of the commissioning plan for how Haringey, along with our 

partners, intends to meet the ‘sufficiency duty’ as specified in ‘Sufficiency – Statutory 

Guidance on securing sufficient accommodation for looked after children’ (2010).  

 

Overall, this document will provide a common understanding and reference point for 

key stakeholders, including commissioners, partners, service managers, H54K and 

the wider market to improve outcomes for LAC in accordance with the Corporate 

and CYP Plans. This includes:  

 

• how we understand the profile of children who come into care;  

• how we forecast the future demand for placements;  

• how we ensure children and young people are placed appropriately and without 

delay; and  

• how we develop our services and the market to ensure appropriate and 

sufficient provision in Haringey.  

 

The scope of this document is focussed on the accommodation of looked after 

children, however it runs parallel with, and is aligned to, Haringey’s strategies to 

mitigate the number and needs of those looked after children and their needs. These 

strategies include activities in the sphere of early help, children on the edge of care 

and permanency. 

 

 

 

Page 45



  

 Page 10 of 60 

5. Introduction 

 

There are currently 508 looked after children in Haringey (November 2013). 

 

The policies underpinning the Council’s approach to the accommodation of children 

becoming looked after are: 

 

1. Placements and Permanency Policy (published 2013) 

2. Family and Friends Policy (published 2013) 

 

These policies state that the Council is strongly committed to supporting families 

effectively and, wherever possible, to avoiding the need for children to come into 

the public care system. When children do become looked after the Council will aim 

to avoid any drift and make appropriate plans based on a sound and ongoing 

assessment of the needs of the child. The Council will seek to: 

 

• Return children to their birth families as soon as possible, consistent with the 

child’s needs 

• Place children with Family and Friends carers wherever possible and  where 

this is in the best interests of the child 

• Always place children in family settings other than in exceptional 

circumstances 

• Provide the right level of practical, social work and financial support to foster 

carers 

• Secure  legal permanency through Adoption, Special Guardianship or 

Residence Order wherever possible for children who cannot be safely 

returned to their birth families 

• Place children in or close to the borough where appropriate to help maintain 

ties with family, friends, school and community 

 

This strategy does not propose to revise these policies but to review how effectively 

and efficiently current arrangements achieve strategic and policy objectives and to 

seek out opportunities for further improvement.  

 

It was developed based on the approach below, a structure which the document also 

follows: 

 

• Historical evidence base - a local analysis of: 

§ Placement demand - the levels, needs and characteristics of LAC 

§ Placement supply – the method, mix and cost of provision 

o This section identifies improvement opportunities throughout 

 

• Financial context and scenarios – the financial imperative and an illustration of 

sustainability options 

Page 46



  

 Page 11 of 60 

 

• Sufficiency actions – a strategic plan responding to the opportunities identified 

 

This strategy is a ‘live’ document is intended to be flexible and agile to changing 

circumstances. It will be kept under review and amended as appropriate, for 

instance as new statutory requirements emerge or as innovative new practices 

emerge. 

 

The announcement in December 2013 of a new legal duty on local authorities to 

provide financial support for every young person who wants to stay with their foster 

parents until their 21st birthday, for example, is currently under consideration by the 

Council. When the local sufficiency and financial implications of this duty are 

clarified, they will be incorporated into this strategy. 

Page 47



  

 Page 12 of 60 

6. Summary of current position  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.1 LAC population and placement profile 

 

Figure 1: LAC numbers and placement types (March 2006 – November 2013) 

 

Purpose 
 

� To provide a summary of current placement demand and supply. 

 
Findings 
 

� Recent years have followed a positive trajectory in respect of LAC numbers, 

placement mix and cost, and comparator analysis indicates scope for continued 

improvement 

� Since the peak of 638 in May 2011, there has been a strong and consistent 

reduction in overall LAC numbers, to 508 in November 2013. 

� Even following this reduction, however, the Haringey LAC rate (LAC per 10,000 

of children and young people) remains higher than that of statistical neighbours 

and significantly beyond the local 7 year low of 412 children (September 2007), 

pointing to opportunities for further and sustainable decreases through 

effective early help, edge of care and return-home activity. 

� Placements mix has improved in recent years too in that a greater proportion of 

children are now within family placements (use of residential is currently at a 7 

year low). Later sections highlight that this appears to have translated into 

successful outcomes with respect to placement stability. 

� There remains however a comparatively high level of reliance on independent 

providers for those family placements and a clear opportunity to both place 

children closer to home and achieve better use of resources through the growth 

of the in-house fostering service. 

� Unit costs have remained relatively steady across the mixed economy of 

provision over recent years and total placements expenditure has broadly 

reflected the downward trend in LAC and the re-balancing of the placement mix. 

� Comparative analysis highlights however that costs can be better managed and 

highlights the case for a greater degree of strategic commissioning and robust 

contract management. 

 
 

Page 48



  

 Page 13 of 60 

 
 

 

 

 

� With the exception of a 4% increase in LAC numbers between September 2010 

and April 2011, LAC numbers have seen a steady decrease over recent years.  

� In the 12 month period ending September 2013, there was an 8% decrease in the 

LAC population with September 2013 LAC figures reporting 499.  

� The strength of this trend provides comfort it will continue and current 

aspirations are of a further reduction to 470 by March 2015, following which the 

level is expected to stabilise. 

 

Figure 2: Placements mix as at year or period end (2006 to date) - proportion 

 

LAC numbers at September 2013 will need to reduce by a further 7.5% (38) to 

deliver our aspiration of 470 by March 2015 

Page 49



  

 Page 14 of 60 

 
 

Figure 2: Placements mix as at year or period end (2006 to date) - number 

 

 
 

� Semi-independent provision has played an important role in the step down of 

placements from residential accommodation 

� Whilst the in-house fostering service has maintained placement share it has 

contracted in line with LAC reductions since 2010/11 

 

Page 50



  

 Page 15 of 60 

 

Figure 4: Placements net expenditure and provisional budget (2009/10 – 2016/17) 

 

 
 

� In the past 2 years, overall net spend has decreased at a greater rate than LAC 

� This reflects the changing blend of placements (less expensive accommodation) 

and the impact of a number of income items (DSG, remand allocation) 

� The unit costs of high volume placements have remained broadly steady through 

this period (see Figure 5 below). 

 

  

Page 51



  

 Page 16 of 60 

 

Figure 5: Placement unit costs (2009/10 – 2013/14 as projected) 

 

 
 

Figure 6: LAC rate, per 10,000 children aged 18 and under 

 

 

 

� Contrary to the national trend, LAC levels in Haringey have fallen back 

significantly since 2011 

� However the local rate of LAC incidence is still 31% higher than that of statistical 

neighbours (the average thereof) 

 

Page 52



  

 Page 17 of 60 

6.2 Pressures on the LAC population 

 

� Haringey’s population is growing. It is projected to expand by 6.6% or 14,900 

residents by 2029, according to the ONS projections (2004 sub-national 

population projections) and by 10.6% or 23,800 residents by 2031 according to 

the GLA projections 2005 estimates.  

 

� By 2021, it is anticipated that the Haringey population will be 286,774. This will 

be made up of 60,664 0 – 17 years old (21.2% against an average in London of 

22.6%, and in England of 21.7%).  

 

� There are approximately 55,600 children and young people under 20 living in 

Haringey now. While the population of Haringey as a whole is getting relatively 

older, the numbers of very young children is also predicted to grow. 

 

� Latest available data highlights that the wards in Haringey with the largest 

number of children aged under 19 are in the east of the borough, particularly 

Seven Sisters, Northumberland Park, Tottenham Hale and White Hart Lane. The 

proportion of children under 5 varies between wards, from 5.5% (Highgate with 

565 children) to 8.5% (Northumberland Park with 1,069). This has important 

implications for service provision, as it creates a greater need in the east of the 

borough. 

 

� We are the 13th most deprived borough in the country and the 4th most 

deprived borough in London (using the average deprivation score). Given 

additional pressures created by on-going austerity measures and welfare cuts, 

many of which have only taken effect from the 1st April 2013, prevailing 

economic factors may increase the likelihood of rising placement demand if our 

early help and targeted services cannot prevent the escalation of need. 

 

� Taken together with the current placement cost trend, these demographic, 

economic and financial pressures present significant challenges to the delivery of 

placement sufficiency, and a greater imperative to realise improvement 

opportunities. 

 

Figure 7: Links to the wider system 
Source: Department for Education (Sept 2013) 

 

Page 53



  

 Page 18 of 60 

 

 

 

� Figure 7 highlights that the correlation between LAC and CPP.  

� This suggests an imbalance in Haringey’s system of help which favours later 

intervention and provides further evidence as to the scope for further activity 

across the Borough to enable the provision of help at an earlier stage and 

ultimately ensure that fewer children come into care. 

 

Page 54



 

 

7. Needs analysis –

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.1 LAC profile  

 

Figure 8: LAC starters & leavers (Sept 12 

 

 

 

� The number of starters and leavers for the period September 2012 

2013 has remained fairly stable. 

� This provides comfort as to the strength of the 

 

Purpose 

 

� To provide an understanding of the characteristics and profile of LAC in 

Haringey.  

 

Findings 

 

� Haringey LAC includes a high proportion of 10

harder to place and tend to be in more expensive provision. 

� A high percentage (65%) of all 5

of borough (OOB). 

� Similar to the England average, 61% of cases in care are due to abuse or 

neglect. In addition to the implications for Early Help Strategy, this highlights 

the importance of effective specialist placement skills and support.

 

Page 19 of 60 

– placement demand 

arters & leavers (Sept 12 – Sept 13) 

The number of starters and leavers for the period September 2012 

2013 has remained fairly stable.  

This provides comfort as to the strength of the underlying trend. 

To provide an understanding of the characteristics and profile of LAC in 

Haringey LAC includes a high proportion of 10-15 and 16 plus year olds who are 

harder to place and tend to be in more expensive provision.  

A high percentage (65%) of all 5-9 years olds in care are placed with an IFA out 

England average, 61% of cases in care are due to abuse or 

neglect. In addition to the implications for Early Help Strategy, this highlights 

the importance of effective specialist placement skills and support.

 

The number of starters and leavers for the period September 2012 – September 

To provide an understanding of the characteristics and profile of LAC in 

15 and 16 plus year olds who are 

9 years olds in care are placed with an IFA out 

England average, 61% of cases in care are due to abuse or 

neglect. In addition to the implications for Early Help Strategy, this highlights 

the importance of effective specialist placement skills and support. 

Page 55



 

 

 

 

Table 1: Reasons for ceasing to be

2013) 

 

Reason 

Returned home to live with parents, relatives, or other 

person with parental responsibility (not under a Residence 

Order or Special Guardianship Order)

Period of being looked after ceased for any other reason

Adopted - application for an adoption order unopposed

Special guardianship made to former foster carers

Special guardianship made to carers other than former 

foster carers 

Moved into independent living arrangement and no 

longer looked after: supportive accommodation providing 

formalised advice/support arrangements (e.g. most 

hostels, YMCAs, foyers, and care leavers projects)

Sentenced to custody 

Unknown 

Total 

 

Figure 9: LAC cohort by age

 

 

� The highest proportion of LAC is in the 10 

the overall cohort in this category.

� In addition, we have seen a steady increase in the 10 

since September 2012.

 

 As the 10-15 year old group get older there may be additional strain on the 

placements budget as they tend to occupy more expensive placements.

 

Page 20 of 60 

Reasons for ceasing to be a child in care (September 2012 – Sept

Number 

Returned home to live with parents, relatives, or other 

person with parental responsibility (not under a Residence 

Order or Special Guardianship Order) 

29 

looked after ceased for any other reason 24 

application for an adoption order unopposed 6 

Special guardianship made to former foster carers 6 

Special guardianship made to carers other than former 6 

independent living arrangement and no 

longer looked after: supportive accommodation providing 

formalised advice/support arrangements (e.g. most 

hostels, YMCAs, foyers, and care leavers projects) 

3 

2 

1 

77 

by age (September 2010 – September 2013) 

The highest proportion of LAC is in the 10 – 15 year old age bracket, with 36% of 

the overall cohort in this category. 

In addition, we have seen a steady increase in the 10 – 15 year old 

since September 2012. 

15 year old group get older there may be additional strain on the 

placements budget as they tend to occupy more expensive placements.

September 

 Percentage 

38% 

31% 

8% 

8% 

8% 

4% 

3% 

1% 

100% 

 

15 year old age bracket, with 36% of 

15 year old age cohort 

15 year old group get older there may be additional strain on the 

placements budget as they tend to occupy more expensive placements. 

Page 56



 

 

 

 

Figure 10: LAC age by placement (Sept

 

 

� As at September 2013, for all age cohorts other than babies and over 16s

represented the most common placement type

pronounced in the 5 –

� In the 16+ age cohort, 

This highlights the importance of developing early pathway plans to ensure 

alternatives to care are explored a

� The 10 – 15 and 16 years plus are generally considered harder to place and 

placement mix of these groups 

foster families 

 

Having effective support services for older children would significantly reduce 

need for placement moves and the need to place externally. 

charge parents who are abdicating responsibility for difficult teenagers may also 

be an approach that encourages parents to accept support to keep the child at 

 

Page 21 of 60 

placement (September 2013) 

2013, for all age cohorts other than babies and over 16s

represented the most common placement type. This was particularly 

– 9 age group where 65% of children were placed with IFA

In the 16+ age cohort, 36% of LAC were placed in residential accommodation.

This highlights the importance of developing early pathway plans to ensure 

alternatives to care are explored and considered where appropriate.

15 and 16 years plus are generally considered harder to place and 

ent mix of these groups magnifies a vital issue with support services to 

 

Having effective support services for older children would significantly reduce 

need for placement moves and the need to place externally. Applying powers to 

parents who are abdicating responsibility for difficult teenagers may also 

be an approach that encourages parents to accept support to keep the child at 

home and stabilise a family situation. 

 

2013, for all age cohorts other than babies and over 16s, IFA 

particularly 

placed with IFAs.  

residential accommodation. 

This highlights the importance of developing early pathway plans to ensure 

nd considered where appropriate. 

15 and 16 years plus are generally considered harder to place and the 

magnifies a vital issue with support services to 

Having effective support services for older children would significantly reduce 

Applying powers to 

parents who are abdicating responsibility for difficult teenagers may also 

be an approach that encourages parents to accept support to keep the child at 

Page 57



 

 

Figure 11: LAC cohort by gender (Sept

 

 

� The male/female ratio of LAC has remained stable over recent years with a 

slightly higher proportion of males (55%) across 

placements.  

 

 

 

Figure 12: LAC cohort by ethnicity (Sept

 

 

� The most common LAC ethnicity is ‘

� ‘White British’ represent the 

� There is a relatively small proportion of ‘Asian or Asian British’ LAC.

� The proportion of ‘White (Other)’ has 

This intelligence will link in to our foster care

type of carers we require to support LAC.

 

Page 22 of 60 

LAC cohort by gender (September 2010 – September 2013)

The male/female ratio of LAC has remained stable over recent years with a 

slightly higher proportion of males (55%) across both agency and in

LAC cohort by ethnicity (September 2010 – September 2013)

most common LAC ethnicity is ‘Black or Black British’ (37%).  

‘White British’ represent the second largest cohort (19%). 

There is a relatively small proportion of ‘Asian or Asian British’ LAC.

he proportion of ‘White (Other)’ has almost doubled over the past 3 years.

This intelligence will link in to our foster carer recruitment strategy and define the 

type of carers we require to support LAC. 

13) 

 

The male/female ratio of LAC has remained stable over recent years with a 

agency and in-house 

13) 

 

There is a relatively small proportion of ‘Asian or Asian British’ LAC. 

over the past 3 years. 

recruitment strategy and define the 

Page 58



 

 

 

Figure 13: LAC family and care 

 

� In September 2013, LAC family address

were placed across 87 districts.

� Only around half of the LAC family addresses are in Haringey

being outwith the Borough.

� The data also highlights 

family location and specifically the lack of 

 

Figure 14: Haringey LAC family current address 

 

 

Page 23 of 60 

and care addresses (highest 5 boroughs, September 2013)

In September 2013, LAC family addresses reached across 56 districts 

87 districts. 

half of the LAC family addresses are in Haringey, the remainder 

being outwith the Borough. 

highlights the geographical mismatch between placement and LAC 

family location and specifically the lack of local carers. 

LAC family current address (September 2013) 

(highest 5 boroughs, September 2013) 

 

across 56 districts whilst LAC 

, the remainder 

placement and LAC 

Page 59



 

 

 

� This highlights that over 1/3 (37%) of LAC families are in 4 Haringey wards 

(Woodside, Northumberland Park, White Hart Lane and Bruce Grove). 

� This provides a clear framework for ward

targeting. 

 

 

 

We particularly need to 

 

Page 24 of 60 

This highlights that over 1/3 (37%) of LAC families are in 4 Haringey wards 

(Woodside, Northumberland Park, White Hart Lane and Bruce Grove). 

This provides a clear framework for ward-based resource prioritisation and 

 

We particularly need to target our sufficiency activity in Northumberland Park 

 

This highlights that over 1/3 (37%) of LAC families are in 4 Haringey wards 

(Woodside, Northumberland Park, White Hart Lane and Bruce Grove).  

based resource prioritisation and 

target our sufficiency activity in Northumberland Park  

Page 60



 

 

Sibling Groups 

 

� There is currently no local 

� Though further analysis is needed when this data is recorded, experience 

nationally suggests that placing sibling groups is 

often involves difficult social work decisions when balancing the need for 

permanence (for example in adoption for a young sibling) with the need to 

accommodate siblings in the same placement.

� Sibling data is therefore impor

 

Figure 15: Children in need code of LAC cohort (Sept

 

 

� Analysis of children in need codes highlight that

cases in care were due to a

September 2010.  

� Of the cases in care due to a child’s disability/illnes

learning disabilities and 11% with multiple disabilities.

 

 

 This intelligence will 

factors require consideration in using family support services and family group 

conferencing in our approach to returning children home.

 

Page 25 of 60 

local dataset on sibling groups.  

Though further analysis is needed when this data is recorded, experience 

nationally suggests that placing sibling groups is a challenge for authorities and 

often involves difficult social work decisions when balancing the need for 

permanence (for example in adoption for a young sibling) with the need to 

accommodate siblings in the same placement. 

Sibling data is therefore important In order to inform sufficiency strategies.

Children in need code of LAC cohort (September 2010 – Sept

in need codes highlight that, as at September 2013, 

due to abuse or neglect. This represents a 4% increase since 

due to a child’s disability/illness, 34% are children with 

learning disabilities and 11% with multiple disabilities. 

 will link through to our Early Help Strategy.  These presenting 

factors require consideration in using family support services and family group 

conferencing in our approach to returning children home.

Though further analysis is needed when this data is recorded, experience 

a challenge for authorities and 

often involves difficult social work decisions when balancing the need for 

permanence (for example in adoption for a young sibling) with the need to 

tant In order to inform sufficiency strategies. 

September 2013) 

 

as at September 2013, 61% of 

a 4% increase since 

s, 34% are children with 

gy.  These presenting 

factors require consideration in using family support services and family group 

conferencing in our approach to returning children home. 

Page 61



 

 

Figure 16: Children in care starters by the legal status a

looked after (September 20

 

 

� In September 2013, 60% of the children becoming looked after were under care 

orders (full or interim). 

� This is similar to the England average (59% in September 2013)

 

 

                                        
1 Department for Education: Children looked after in England (including adoption and care leavers) 

year ending 31 March 2013 

We need to identify alternative measure

putting alternative support in place, family based interventions or finding 

 

Page 26 of 60 

Children in care starters by the legal status at the point of becoming 

2012 - September 2013) 

In September 2013, 60% of the children becoming looked after were under care 

orders (full or interim).  

This is similar to the England average (59% in September 2013)
1
.   

 

                                            
epartment for Education: Children looked after in England (including adoption and care leavers) 

to identify alternative measures of care for our LAC which may include 

putting alternative support in place, family based interventions or finding 

solutions within the wider family.  

the point of becoming 

 

In September 2013, 60% of the children becoming looked after were under care 

 

epartment for Education: Children looked after in England (including adoption and care leavers) 

of care for our LAC which may include 

putting alternative support in place, family based interventions or finding 

Page 62



 

 

Figure 17: Needs and placement type

 

 

� The majority of LAC are in care due 

� This holds true across most placement cohorts.

 

 Whilst there are some existing programmes to support 

need to strengthen our approach in this area

 

Page 27 of 60 

placement type (September 2012 – September 2013)

he majority of LAC are in care due to abuse or neglect.  

This holds true across most placement cohorts. 

 Whilst there are some existing programmes to support foster 

need to strengthen our approach in this area to accommodate more children 

with these needs. 

September 2013)  

 

foster carers, we will 

to accommodate more children 

Page 63



 

 

8. Placement supply analysis

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 18: LAC proportions 

 

 

� In September 2013, in

total LAC placements, 

� Of the LAC placed in fostering, only 31% were placed with an in

carer (excluding kinship)

 

Purpose  

 

� To provide a picture of historical placement provision.

 

Findings 

 

� Unlike most Councils, IFAs represent the single largest proportion of 

placements in Haringey.

� In contrast to a national average of 69% in

placements, Haringey currently operates at around 40%

care). 

� Haringey values and encourages a mixed economy of provision however this 

imbalance highlights a significan

make better use of resources

� Placement stability continues to improve across all placement types and, whilst 

positive in outcomes terms, this compounds the challenge of re

placements mix in favo

 

Page 28 of 60 

Placement supply analysis 

proportions by placement type (September 2010 – Sept

in-house fostering (excluding kinship) represented 20% of 

, compared to the 42% of placements with IFA

f the LAC placed in fostering, only 31% were placed with an in-house foster 

(excluding kinship). This compares to the national average of 69%. 

To provide a picture of historical placement provision. 

Unlike most Councils, IFAs represent the single largest proportion of 

placements in Haringey. 

contrast to a national average of 69% in-house share of fostering 

placements, Haringey currently operates at around 40% (25% excluding kinship 

Haringey values and encourages a mixed economy of provision however this 

imbalance highlights a significant opportunity to enhance local sufficiency and 

better use of resources. 

continues to improve across all placement types and, whilst 

positive in outcomes terms, this compounds the challenge of re-balancing the 

placements mix in favour of better value solutions.    

September 2013) 

 

represented 20% of 

IFAs. 

house foster 

. This compares to the national average of 69%.  

Unlike most Councils, IFAs represent the single largest proportion of 

house share of fostering 

(25% excluding kinship 

Haringey values and encourages a mixed economy of provision however this 

t opportunity to enhance local sufficiency and 

continues to improve across all placement types and, whilst 

balancing the 

Page 64



 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 19: Proportion of placement days by placement type (

2013) 

 

 

� External fostering continues to represent the majori

� Since April 2013, there has been a 

days with external fostering agencies. 

� Approximately half of 

by semi-independent placements.

 

 

 

 

There is a small but positive trend in 2013/14 away from IFA and toward in

All benchmarks points to an opportunity to re

These include transforming the in

 

Page 29 of 60 

Proportion of placement days by placement type (April – September 

External fostering continues to represent the majority of placement days

Since April 2013, there has been a 4% decrease in the proportion of placement 

days with external fostering agencies.  

 this was taken up by in-house fostering and the remainder 

independent placements. 

 

There is a small but positive trend in 2013/14 away from IFA and toward in

house placements 

All benchmarks points to an opportunity to re-balance the placements

These include transforming the in-house service, re-building capacity and 

migrating placements over time. 

September 

 

ty of placement days. 

decrease in the proportion of placement 

e fostering and the remainder 

There is a small but positive trend in 2013/14 away from IFA and toward in-

balance the placements mix. 

building capacity and 

Page 65



 

 

Figure 20: Placement stability

placements during the year

 

 

� Data provided by the Department for Education 

highlights that, in 2012, 10.3% of children had three or more placements during 

the year. This compares similarly to statistical neighbours. 

� More recent data provided by the Haringey performance team highlights that 

placement stability continues to improve from 2012 with the latest figure 

reporting 9% in September 2013.

� The Corporate Delivery Unit continue

that it remains below 10%.

 

 

 
Improved placement stability

challenge of influencing the placement mix (for example, migrating from IFA to 

 

Page 30 of 60 

Placement stability - % of children at 31 March with three or more 

placements during the year 

Data provided by the Department for Education ‘Local Area Interactive Tool’ 

in 2012, 10.3% of children had three or more placements during 

the year. This compares similarly to statistical neighbours.  

More recent data provided by the Haringey performance team highlights that 

stability continues to improve from 2012 with the latest figure 

reporting 9% in September 2013. 

The Corporate Delivery Unit continues to monitor placement stability to ensure 

that it remains below 10%. 

 
lacement stability, whilst positive in outcomes terms, highlights the 

challenge of influencing the placement mix (for example, migrating from IFA to 

in-house). 

% of children at 31 March with three or more 

 

‘Local Area Interactive Tool’ 

in 2012, 10.3% of children had three or more placements during 

More recent data provided by the Haringey performance team highlights that 

stability continues to improve from 2012 with the latest figure 

to monitor placement stability to ensure 

outcomes terms, highlights the 

challenge of influencing the placement mix (for example, migrating from IFA to 

Page 66



  

 Page 31 of 60 

9. In-house and external capacity  

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose  

 

� To understand the current capacity and composition of the in-house fostering 

service and externally commissioned placements.   

 

Findings 

 

� Haringey has been able to develop a wide range of provider relationships in 

order to provide placement choice. There are now opportunities to consolidate 

this success in the market and to add greater sufficiency through the targeted 

growth of the in-house fostering service. 

� A large proportion of in-house foster carers are aged between 50 – 59 years, 

adding pressure to medium term recruitment requirements.  

� White - British and Other – foster carers are under-represented in the in-house 

service relative to the LAC population. This is mirrored in LAC placement 

composition and points to an opportunity to target on ethnicity and / or 

improve carer training and support to meet cultural needs. 

� The in-house fostering service accommodates a significantly lower proportion 

of children aged 5 – 9 years than the independent sector, and there are 

currently 39 children under 5 placed with IFAs. This highlights the level of 

opportunity for the in-house service in the event greater capacity can be 

developed in the short term. 

� Abuse or neglect is the primary, and growing, LAC need category and IFAs 

accommodate a greater proportion of these placements. The in-house service 

will need to continuously develop its specialist support offer in order to meet 

these needs over the longer term. 

� The level of utilisation of in-house carers suggests there is scope to provide 

greater sufficiency from the existing foster carer workforce, through enhanced 

vacancy management and brokerage processes. 

� The volume of spot purchasing and procurement outwith frameworks, 

especially of residential placements, indicates a refresh of commissioning 

strategies and contract monitoring processes would provide greater choice, 

value and assurance. 

� Statistical nearest neighbour cost comparisons, the scale of independent sector 

business and the wide range of rates also suggest there is an opportunity to 

develop and leverage more strategic provider relationships. 

 

Page 67



 

 

9.1 In-house fostering service 

 

� As at 29
th

 October 2013, there were 111 in

� The utilisation of in-house carers (excluding short break) was 72% as at 31

March 2013 which is slightly higher than the national average (69%)

than best-in-class (85%).

� Utilisation is a complex picture, however the overall level indicates scope to 

enhance sufficiency in the short term through the 

management and brokerage processes.

 

Figure 21: In-house carers by ethnicity (as at 29

 

 

� Analysis in this document highlights that 37% of LAC are Black or Black British. 

� On the 29th October 2013, the in

biggest proportion of carers were Black or Black British (69%). 

 

Figure 22: In-house carers by age

 

 

Page 32 of 60 

fostering service capacity  

October 2013, there were 111 in-house carers. 

house carers (excluding short break) was 72% as at 31

March 2013 which is slightly higher than the national average (69%)

class (85%). 

Utilisation is a complex picture, however the overall level indicates scope to 

enhance sufficiency in the short term through the improvement of 

management and brokerage processes. 

house carers by ethnicity (as at 29
th

 October 2013) 

 

Analysis in this document highlights that 37% of LAC are Black or Black British. 

On the 29th October 2013, the in-house carer register highlighted that the 

biggest proportion of carers were Black or Black British (69%).  

house carers by age (as at 29
th

 October 2013) 

house carers (excluding short break) was 72% as at 31
st

 

March 2013 which is slightly higher than the national average (69%) but lower 

Utilisation is a complex picture, however the overall level indicates scope to 

improvement of vacancy 

Analysis in this document highlights that 37% of LAC are Black or Black British.  

house carer register highlighted that the 

Page 68



  

 Page 33 of 60 

 
 

� Half of in-house carers are aged between 50 and 59 years.  

� This compares to a national average of 36% foster carers aged 50 – 59 years.  

 

 

 

 

9.2 External capacity  

 

The use of external placements 

 

� The placements service aims to secure best outcomes and best value. 

� In-house family placement options are always explored however in light of the 

capacity constraints in the Haringey fostering service, placements are often 

procured from independent service providers.  

� As this reliance continues, data analysis and interviews with staff have identified 

a number of challenges with the purchasing of external placements:  

� There are a number of purchasing ‘frameworks’ in existence for different 

placement types: Haringey IFA Framework; Haringey Residential Framework; 

Haringey Semi-Independent Framework; Pan-London IFA Framework. 

� Operational staff have noted opportunities to improve outcomes and value 

across all of these frameworks, including supporting preferred providers to 

develop greater capacity more relevant to Haringey’s specific needs and 

investment in compliance and quality monitoring.  

� As a tactical response to these challenges, a growing level of spot purchasing 

is emerging. This can compound the commissioning issue as provision 

0%

6%

20%

50%

22%

2%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

18 - 29 years 

(inclusive)

30 - 39 years 

(inclusive)

40 - 49 years 

(inclusive)

50 - 59 years 

(inclusive)

60 - 69 years 

(inclusive)

70 years 

plus 

In-house foster carers have a relatively high age profile and therefore attrition 

risk. This strengthens the recruitment imperative. 

Page 69



  

 Page 34 of 60 

becomes more fragmented and there are few formal mechanisms in place to 

control cost and quality in these instances. 

 

Figure 23: Residential provision – unit cost comparison (September 2012) 

 

 
 

� In 2012/13 39 residential providers were used. 

� Of these 39 providers, 5 were used for over 1/3 of total residential placements 

(Little Gems Childrens Home, Hillcrest Residential, Winsbeach Childrens Home, 

Castle Homes Care and Turning Point Care). 

� Analysis of the 111 residential placements (not clients) used in in 2012/13, split 

across the 39 providers, suggests that the majority (at least 61%) of these were 

not procured through a framework, with the rest largely split between the Pan 

London (21%) and Haringey (17%) frameworks.  

� It would appear this fragmented contract landscape has resulted in assurance 

risks as it is unclear to officers whether strong contracts are in place and whether 

these contracts are actively managed through, for example, compliance visits. 

This is partly due to the lack of capacity in the Placements Team.  

� CIPFA benchmarking data (see above) from 2012 shows that the overall unit cost 

of Haringey’s external residential provision was £2,954, which is a mid-range unit 

cost compared to the statistical nearest neighbours that took part in the 

benchmarking exercise.  

� In 2012/13 the weekly unit cost across different providers varied significantly. 

The highest was £4,200 and the lowest was £1,000). The unit cost of providers on 

the Haringey framework / contract list was higher (£2,433) than those on the Pan 

London Framework (£1,854) or those without a contract in place (£1,829).  

� Whilst the costs of placements with different providers will to some extent have 

been influenced by the needs of the individual placement and the quality of 

provider, the overall picture suggests that there is an opportunity to develop the 

market - and therefore the quality and value for money of residential provision – 

Page 70



  

 Page 35 of 60 

by working more closely with a selection of providers or developing alternative 

models to providing residential placements. 

 

Figure 23: IFA unit costs and use of frameworks (September 2012) 

 

� 72 IFAs were used in 2012/13. 

� Of the 72, 4 providers accounted for 25% of all IFA placements (National 

Fostering Agency, Kindercare, Capstone Vision and Integrated Services 

Programme) 

� Analysis of the 599 IFA placements (not clients) sourced in 2012/13 suggests that 

the majority of these were procured via the Pan London framework (61%), with a 

number (24%) placed with providers where a pre-existing contract arrangement 

did not exist. Very few (less than 15%) were placed via the Haringey fostering 

framework.  

� As with residential placements, it would appear that provider commissioning and 

monitoring would benefit from a more systematic approach, so as to ensure 

information on quality is readily available to aid decisions on placements.  

� CIPFA benchmarking data (see above) from 2012 shows that the overall weekly 

unit cost of Haringey’s IFA provision was £924 (full overhead absorption, 

including central recharges). 

� Statistical nearest neighbour comparisons, the level of independent sector 

business, together with the opportunities identified above suggest there is an 

opportunity to develop more strategic relationships in the market to maximise 

value. 

� The weekly unit cost of IFA providers also varied widely between £1,400 and 

£595, with the majority being between £650 and £850 (before overhead 

absorption). 

� Again, officers believe the commissioning actions referenced above would enable 

Haringey to more consistently access a better rate card. 

Page 71



 

 

� The findings suggest that there are several opportunities to 

market in Haringey, through the development of a 

which better leverages 

specifications around levels of quality and price for placements.

9.3 Comparison of in

 

Figure 24: In-house (excluding kinship) 

 

 

 

 

Volume

Under 1  

1 to 4 

5 – 9 

10 to 15 

16 and over 

 

� In September 2013, there were 130 more LAC in external 

(excluding kinship). 

� The greatest proportion of LAC 

across both external (38%) and 

 

Page 36 of 60 

The findings suggest that there are several opportunities to enhance 

market in Haringey, through the development of a new local IFA framework 

which better leverages the volume of business Haringey places, and 

specifications around levels of quality and price for placements. 

Comparison of in-house and external fostering 

(excluding kinship) vs. IFA – By Age (September 2013)

External fostering (IFA) In-house fostering

Volume % Volume 

8 3% 9 

31 14% 19 

72 31% 11 

88 38% 44 

30 13% 16 

In September 2013, there were 130 more LAC in external provision than internal 

The greatest proportion of LAC placed in fostering are aged between 10

across both external (38%) and in-house (44%) fostering.  

enhance the IFA 

IFA framework 

and with clearer 

house and external fostering  

By Age (September 2013) 

house fostering 

% 

9% 

19% 

11% 

44% 

16% 

provision than internal 

are aged between 10-15 

Page 72



  

 Page 37 of 60 

� The greatest difference regarding placement ages is in the 5-9 year old cohort, 

for whom IFAs provide 72 placements against the 11 in-house. 

� There were also 39 children under 5 years placed with IFAs. 

This pattern highlights that the level of opportunity available to the in-house 

service in the event capacity can be expanded. 

 

Figure 25: In-house (excluding kinship) vs. IFA – By Gender (September 2013) 

 

 

 

 External fostering (IFA) In-house fostering 

Volume % Volume % 

Male 119 52% 52 53% 

Female 110 48% 47 47% 

 

� The proportion of LAC by gender is consistent across external and in-house 

fostering with approximately 52% males.  

 

Figure 26: In-house (excluding kinship) vs. IFA – By Ethnicity (September 2013) 

 

Page 73



  

 Page 38 of 60 

 
 

 External fostering (IFA) In-house fostering 

Volume % Volume % 

Asian or Asian British 5 2% 5 5% 

Black or Black British 87 38% 46 46% 

Mixed 32 14% 21 21% 

Not available 3 1% 2 2% 

Other Ethnic Groups 10 4% 5 5% 

White (British) 55 24% 12 12% 

White (Other) 37 16% 8 8% 

 

� The greatest proportion of LAC are Black or Black British in both external (38%) 

and in-house (46%) fostering.  

� The latter may follow from the ethnic composition of the in-house service 

outlined above (predominantly Black or Black British with a relatively low 

proportion of White – British or Other). 

� Consequently, a much greater proportion of IFA placements – 40% compared to 

20% of in-house placements – are of White (British or Other) LAC. 

� Whilst ethnic match is not a necessity to meet the cultural needs of children the 

ethnic composition of the in-house workforce does therefore appear to have a 

strong bearing on placements. 

 

Figure 27: In-house vs. IFA – By Need (September 2013) 

Page 74



 

 

 

 

 

Absent parenting 

Abuse or neglect 

Child’s Disability/Illness 

Family dysfunction 

Family in acute stress 

Low income: Other 

financial difficulties 

Parental illness or disability

Socially unacceptable 

behaviour 

 

� Abuse or neglect represents 

� It would appear IFAs have a higher 

� If the in-house service is to grow, it will be important to ensure foster carers have 

the training, support and resilience to understand and meet these needs.

 

Average placement distances

 

 

Page 39 of 60 

External fostering (IFA) In-house fostering

Volume % Volume

12 5% 9 

159 69% 53 

2 1% 4 

19 8% 14 

19 8% 10 

1 0% 1 

Parental illness or disability 13 6% 7 

4 2% 1 

represents the primary LAC need category. 

It would appear IFAs have a higher propensity to accommodate this need.

house service is to grow, it will be important to ensure foster carers have 

the training, support and resilience to understand and meet these needs.

Average placement distances 

 

house fostering 

Volume % 

9% 

54% 

4% 

14% 

10% 

1% 

7% 

1% 

propensity to accommodate this need. 

house service is to grow, it will be important to ensure foster carers have 

the training, support and resilience to understand and meet these needs. 

Page 75



  

 Page 40 of 60 

� The average distance between the foster care household and originating 

household for children placed with both in-house and IFA carers is 20 miles. 

� The Corporate Delivery Unit have specified, and now monitor the delivery of, a 

target to reduce the proportion of Haringey children placed over 20 miles to less 

than 20 miles. 

� In 2013/14 to date this has shown a positive direction of travel - the proportion 

having reduced from 20% to 19% - and further actions are underway to actively 

review and relocate distant placements. 

� The need for more local placements again highlights the importance of the 

development of the in-house service. 

 

  

Page 76



  

 Page 41 of 60 

10. Financial context and scenarios 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

� The Council aims to secure best use of resources at all times. 

� In the context of placement sufficiency, there are 4 key drivers of sustainability: 

1. Quality and outcomes 

2. Numbers of LAC 

3. Placement mix (blend of placement types), and 

4. Unit costs of placements. 

� Figure 27 highlights that, whilst maintaining or improving placement outcomes, 

Haringey must continue to influence these drivers in order to provide sustainable 

sufficiency. 

 

Figure 27: Projected costs and budget assuming key variables (quality, LAC, 

placement mix and unit cost) are held constant at November 2013 levels 

Note: budget estimates are provisional and based on current proposal for 2014/15 

 

Purpose  

 

� To outline the financial context and potential impact of sufficiency 

development activity. 

 

Findings 

 

� Action is required to ensure sustainability, even in the short term. 

� This action will need to impact across both placement demand and supply – 

placement mix, unit costs and LAC volumes – whilst maintaining or improving 

quality and outcomes. 

� In the event LAC volumes do not continue to decrease, financial sustainability 

will depend on a rapid and significant improvement in both placement mix and 

unit costs. 

Page 77



  

 Page 42 of 60 

  

 

� The analysis set out in this document highlights a range of opportunities to 

influence placement mix and unit costs whilst maintaining and improving quality. 

� Through this and other live strategies, the Council also aims to reduce LAC 

numbers. 

� Based on this analysis, 4 scenarios have been modelled to illustrate the range of 

opportunity and to inform operational objectives and activity. 

� These scenarios are not targets but serve to highlight potential financial impact 

and therefore the case for strategic action. 

 

Driver Scenario 1 

Placement mix 

Reverse balance of fostering provision between IFA / in-house  

3 year transition resulting in 60% in-house (incl. kinship) provision  

Year 1 45%, Year 2 50%, Year 3 60% 

Maintain current level of residential provision at 4% of placements 

(statistical neighbour average of 4.5%) 

Maintain blend of all other provision 

Unit costs Remain constant at November 2013 levels 

LAC numbers Remain constant at November 2013 levels 

 

Page 78



  

 Page 43 of 60 

Driver Scenario 2 

Placement mix Remain constant at November 2013 levels 

Unit costs 

8% reduction in in-house foster care weekly placement costs to £470 per 

week excluding central and service overheads (statistical neighbour 

average £475, national average £390) from 2014/15 

2% reduction in average IFA placement weekly placement costs to £780 

per week excluding central and service overheads (statistical neighbour 

and national average £818) from 2014/15 

2.5% reduction in average external residential placements weekly cost to 

£2,732 per week excluding central and service overheads (statistical 

neighbour average £2,562) from 2014/15 

LAC numbers Remain constant at November 2013 levels 

 

Driver Scenario 3 

Placement mix As per Scenario 1 

Unit costs As per Scenario 2 

LAC numbers Remain constant at November 2013 levels 

 

Driver Scenario 4 

Placement mix As per Scenario 3 

Unit costs As per Scenario 3 

LAC numbers 

Reduce average in-year LAC numbers to: 

488 in 2014/15, and 

470 from 2015/16 onwards. 

 

� The financial impact of these changes is shown in Figure 28 below. 

 

Figure 28: Illustrative sufficiency scenarios – financial impact 

 

Page 79



  

 Page 44 of 60 

 

 

� This illustrates that it is likely measures will be needed that affect both 

placement mix and unit cost in order to deliver sufficiency and sustainability in 

both the short and long term. 

 

 

Page 80



  

 Page 45 of 60 

11. Sufficiency plan 

 

� This paper has set out the achievements and positive trajectory of Haringey in 

meeting placement policy objectives and through that, in helping the most 

vulnerable children in Haringey to thrive and achieve their potential. 

� The number of looked after children has reduced significantly in recent years, 

placement stability has improved and alternatives to residential placements have 

been found. 

� Throughout the analysis, this paper has also identified opportunities to deliver 

greater placement choice and therefore better outcomes for children: 

� First, there appears to be scope to reduce LAC levels further through a range 

of preventative activity and work to facilitate positive exits from care. 

� Second, the in-house fostering service can be grown and developed in 

response to the needs identified, to allow more LAC to be accommodated 

more locally. 

� Third, a strategic approach to commissioning arrangements, again in the 

context of LAC needs, could enable provider partners to respond more 

effectively and efficiently to Haringey’s requirements. 

� It is also clear from the financial scenarios above that Haringey must act across all 

of these opportunities to ensure sustainability in the short and long term. 

� The changes which Haringey is making or plans to make in order to do so are set 

out below.  

� Whilst these actions are articulated within the framework of the sufficiency duty 

requirements (for ease of reference) they together respond to the opportunities 

above and aim to further reduce total LAC levels, achieve a more localised and 

sustainable placements mix and create the conditions for a better deal with the 

market (lower external unit costs). 

� Broadly, this plan involves: 

� Linking with other strategies – early help, edge of care and permanence – to 

explore all practical means for jointly preventing the need for care and, when 

children do come into care, for supporting and accelerating a positive exit. This 

involves implementing or re-deploying placement supports and expertise 

further ‘upstream’ to prevent escalation of need and investment in more 

effective placement support which enables more children to return home more 

quickly; 

� An ambitious and carer-centred transformation and expansion of the in-house 

fostering service. This includes the testing and development of new service 

delivery models, investment in supervision quality, carer-led design and delivery 

of new service initiatives in direct response to feedback, and the development 

of a ‘specialist’ fostering service offer, and 

Page 81



  

 Page 46 of 60 

� A more strategic and proactive engagement with the market to build a more 

acute understanding of local needs and closer provider relationships which 

enable investment and innovation to meet those needs. This involves the 

review and rationalisation and framework arrangements and brokerage 

processes and playing an active role in developing more mature partnerships. 

 

11.1 Sufficiency Duty requirements  

 

� The Sufficiency Duty requires that Haringey has systems and processes in place 

for: 

� Care planning and assessment for individual children; 

� Commissioning individual placements; 

� The strategic analysis of children’s needs; 

� Market management; 

� Inter-agency collaboration; and 

� Individual and strategic review of service effectiveness. 

� For ease of reference, the measures Haringey is taking and will take to develop 

greater and more sustainable sufficiency are set out below according to these 

requirements. 

 
 

Page 82



  

 Page 47 of 60 

 

11.2 Sufficiency action plan 

 
Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

Care planning and 

assessment for 

individual children 

A robust needs assessment is 

the starting point for all 

commissioning and brokerage 

decisions. A care plan which 

details the needs of the 

individual and specifies 

planned outcomes enables 

officers to commission and 

providers to design services 

around the child and innovate 

where this will improve 

outcomes. It in turn enables 

commissioners to set clear 

performance expectations. An 

incorrect decision at this point 

can lead to inefficient or 

ineffective service provision. 

Improvements in the capacity, 

quality or systems for 

assessment can have a large 

impact on both outcomes and 

resources. 

 

� To commission placements 

right first time by improving 

the quality and consistency of 

information captured on the 

Children & Young Person 

placements referral form  

 

 

� To revise the existing 

Children & Young Person 

placements referral form 

� To run a training session with 

social workers on how to 

complete the form and 

ensure consistency of 

information 

� To monitor progress in 

improvements  

� By end 

February 

2014 

� PMc 

� CC 

P
a
g
e
 8

3



  

 Page 48 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

Commissioning 

individual placements 

The right decision, first time, 

is the best way to improve 

placement stability, service 

efficiency and effectiveness.  

 

Decision-making is most 

effective when it is informed 

by the strategic assessment, 

the resource analysis, the 

individual assessment and the 

views of the child.  

 

A strong and well-informed 

decision-making process 

provides the foundation for. 

� To commission individual 

placements right first time by 

reviewing and improving 

current brokerage processes  

� To develop options for 

enhancing current brokerage 

arrangements which explores 

the potential for a single 

placements team and greater 

use of ‘upstream’ data 

� By end 

February 

2014 

� CP 

� AB 

� To improve the matching of 

placements with in-house 

carers by developing the 

current vacancy management 

system/process, and 

maximise in-house utilisation 

� To review the in-house 

vacancy management 

process and ensure there is 

an ‘upstream’ and real-time 

view of future and current 

placement capacity 

� To review all vacant 

placements or those on hold 

and develop policies and 

plans to maximise availability 

� By end March 

2014 

� PMc 

� AB 

� To improve the matching of 

placements with external 

providers by ensuring that 

management information 

informs the brokerage of 

placements  

� To ensure management 

information on the sub-

regional providers (NLSA) is 

visible to and informs 

brokerage decisions 

� To apply this MI blueprint to 

all other frameworks and 

provider relationships 

� By end 

February 

2014 

� PMc 

� AB 

The strategic analysis 

of children’s needs 

Commissioners are dependent 

on comprehensive aggregate 

data about the needs of 

� To develop a detailed 

commissioning strategy 

based on an aggregated 

� To develop a plan and 

schedule of activity for 

ensuring this needs analysis 

� By end 

January 2014 

� PMc 

� CP 

P
a

g
e
 8

4



  

 Page 49 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

looked after children to 

prepare for the sufficiency 

duty. The strategic needs 

assessment is intended to 

inform the Children and 

Young People’s Plan and 

commissioning strategies for a 

range of services. 

 

needs analysis  

 

 

 

is updated and developed 

regularly  

� To ensure the auditing of 

case files is fed back to the 

service at an aggregate 

rather than individual level 

Market management Market management is 

essential to improve 

outcomes. Commissioners 

must have effective 

relationships with all 

providers (including private, 

voluntary and public sector 

providers) to ensure the 

markets can be incentivised 

and guided to provide 

sufficient and appropriate 

provision. Commissioners 

must therefore lead the 

markets and children’s 

services system, including 

universal services and internal 

services. 

� To secure better value from 

the market by establishing 

effective and fit-for-purpose 

frameworks 

 

� To establish an approach on 

the current Haringey & Pan 

London frameworks and the 

use of them in the context of 

the NLSA sub-regional 

framework 

� To work with the NLSA to 

ensure the framework goes 

live in January 2014  

� To work with the placements 

team to ensure the NLSA 

framework is embedded as 

part of the process for 

commissioning and that tiers 

of need are effectively 

mapped and matched to LAC 

assessments 

� To work with the NLSA on a 

longer-term plan which is 

� By end 

January 2015 

� CP 

� AB 

� TP 

P
a
g
e
 8

5



  

 Page 50 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

informed by our LAC 

sufficiency strategy and 

performance information 

coming out of the year 1 ERP 

contract 

� To engage with high volume / 

preferred fostering and 

residential providers and 

explore mutual opportunities 

for shared investment (based 

on guaranteed business) 

� To identify providers, share 

needs analysis and 

requirements and develop 

dialogue on options 

� To test appetite and price 

points for joint investment in 

the provision of local 

Haringey placements  

� By end March 

2014 

� PMc 

� CP 

� To develop a wider mix of 

provision for 10-15 and 16+ 

year olds who are typically 

difficult to place 

� To develop an options paper 

for Fireman’s cottage (small 

residential unit vs. semi-

independent living)# 

� To explore with high volume 

providers specific 

opportunities for the 

development of small scale 

local residential units and for 

the provision of specialist 

foster care capacity or foster 

carer support / training 

schemes  

 

� By end 

February 

2014 

� PMc 

� CP 

P
a

g
e
 8

6



  

 Page 51 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

� To develop the market for 

residential provision  

 

 

 

� To work with the NLSA on a 

forward plan and approach 

for the use of residential 

providers. This will include 

the NLSA’s development of 

an options paper for the 

residential market  

� To prepare a ‘requirements 

blueprint’ based on learning 

from the residential property 

at Bounds Green 

� To actively engage the 

market and explore 

opportunities for the 

development of small scale 

local units 

� By end 

February 

2014 

� CP 

� TP 

� AB 

� To explore and develop the 

market for alternative foster 

carer respite schemes and 

preferred access of LAC or 

foster carers to universal 

services 

� To identify options for short 

breaks e.g. outdoor 

education / activity centres 

(Duke of Edinburgh), engage 

potential providers and 

prepare an investment case  

� To engage LAC and in-house 

foster carers in a process of 

needs definition, identify 

low-cost options for 

arranging priority access to 

� By end June 

2014 

� PMc 

� CP 

P
a
g
e
 8

7



  

 Page 52 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

universal services (in which 

the Council plays a brokerage 

role) and prepare a case 

� To test and develop the 

market for innovative shared 

or external fostering service 

delivery models (supervision) 

� To plan and conduct a soft-

market testing exercise, , 

including with neighbouring 

local authority providers, to 

identify options for shared or 

external delivery of the 

fostering supervision function 

and to ascertain / develop 

market appetite 

� By 

September 

2014 

� PMc 

� To use the 

skills/knowledge/relationship 

of the wider Council (e.g. 

Housing) to support 

development of  the provider 

market  

� To work with Housing and 

the capital programme to 

identify properties which can 

be developed into flexible 

step up/down provision 

� To work with partners e.g. 

Outreach / Youth Service / 

Health / CAMHS in the 

Children’s Trust to explore 

options for the provision of 

placement-specific supports 

(activities, day support, 

sessional therapies) 

� Ongoing � PMc 

� CP 

� Housing 

(DG) 

P
a

g
e
 8

8



  

 Page 53 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

� To work with the Virtual 

School to consider options 

for training foster carers in 

the preparation of PEPs 

Inter-agency 

collaboration 
Collaboration refers to the 

extent to which partners 

work together to secure 

outcomes through 

commissioning, for example, 

pooling budgets between the 

local authority, youth justice 

services and the CCG; 

managing special 

educational needs services 

and services for looked after 

children as one category; 

and procuring external foster 

care in a framework across 

several local areas.  

Collaboration enables 

commissioners to take 

advantage of increased scale, 

in particular to reduce back-

office costs, align services, 

increase market power and 

� To pool resources through 

the North London Adoption 

& Fostering Consortium 

(NLAFC) 

 

 

 

 

� To work with the NLAFC to 

ensure the specialist remand 

and parent and child foster 

placements are well utilised 

� To share foster placements 

across the 6 NLAFC boroughs 

(Haringey, Islington, Camden, 

Hackney, Barnet & Enfield)  

� To utilise the training (skills 

to foster) courses available 

through the NLAFC 

� To explore options for wider 

consortium recruitment 

campaigns 

 

� Ongoing � PMc 

� PS 

� To work with the CCG to 

explore how specialist 

services can be combined 

and delivered further 

‘upstream’ in order to 

prevent escalation of 

� To prepare and consider a 

joint business case for an 

intensive care service at 

home for CYP with a 

diagnosis of autism and LD 

� To develop an 

implementation plan 

� By end June 

2014 

� CP 

P
a
g
e
 8

9



  

 Page 54 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

transparency, and pool 

commissioning capacity and 

capability. 

complex family needs 

� To improve the quality of 

information shared with 

providers 

 

� To identify whether we are 

sharing the latest LAC review 

documents with our 

providers 

� To support providers to 

develop their business plans 

(e.g. recruitment activity) by 

sharing our findings/action 

plans with the market  

� By end 

January 2014 

� PMc 

� To jointly fund placements 

through the ‘complex care 

panel’. 

� To build on the work carried 

out by the ‘complex care 

panel’ to identify placements 

which can be joint funded 

(CYPS, SEN, Health).  

� Ongoing � PMc 

Individual and 

strategic review of 

service effectiveness 

There are a variety of 

commissioning mechanisms 

and performance 

management options which 

can drive particular market 

behaviours and therefore the 

efficiency and effectiveness of 

services. This requires 

commissioners to be familiar 

� To include Children & Young 

People in the performance 

management of the service 

 

� To work with Aspire in 

developing options for the 

inclusion of Children & Young 

People in the development 

and performance 

management of the fostering 

service 

� Ongoing � PMc 

� SG 

� To increase in-house 

mainstream foster care 

� To implement the 

recommendations of the 

� By March � PMc 

P
a

g
e
 9

0



  

 Page 55 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

with and to employ more 

sophisticated techniques to 

optimise outcomes. 

capacity  recent service review 

(improvement and 

performance management 

plan), including the 

engagement of foster carers 

in the co-design and co-

delivery of the service 

� To procure an external 

recruitment provider to 

recruit and assess foster 

carers more quickly, at 

greater scale and lower cost 

� To strengthen supervision 

and support capacity and 

capability through the 

transfer of in-house 

recruitment and assessment 

staff 

2014 

� To develop an in-house 

specialist fostering offer 

 

� To develop a methodology 

for defining target specialist 

needs (linked to or based on 

the NLSA framework tier 

system), such as offending or 

sexualised behaviour, severe 

mental illness or disability 

� To test the market for 

external providers to recruit 

� Ongoing � PMc 

P
a
g
e
 9

1



  

 Page 56 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

and assess specialist foster 

carers who can 

accommodate LAC with 

challenging 

behaviour/complex needs 

(e.g. autism) 

� To develop a targeted 

recruitment campaign for 

emergency carers, or 

incorporate this into the 

contract of the current ERP 

� To consider options for 

differentiated remuneration / 

recognition systems for 

specialist foster carers and 

develop a cost / benefit case  

� To define the specialist 

training and development 

path for current in-house 

carers and supervisory and 

brokerage staff 

� To develop a process for 

planning, approving and 

brokering (based on the 

placement plan) specialist 

placement-specific support 

services  

P
a

g
e
 9

2



  

 Page 57 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

� To map and explore potential 

specialist support service 

models / options, including 

multi-dimensional treatment 

foster care (MTFC), KEEP, the 

use of Family Link carers and 

residential workers, and 

sessional therapists (clinical 

pyschologists, play therapists, 

psychotherapists, skills 

coaches, tutors) 

� To investigate the prospect 

of a ‘Foster Carers’ 

Academy’, centred around a 

residential hub 

� To implement new supports 

to enable children to return 

home 

� To conduct a soft market test 

of post-placement family 

group conferencing services 

and complete an investment 

case 

� By March 

2014 

� PMc 

� To explore alternative 

fostering service delivery 

models (supervision)  

� To develop an options 

appraisal and business case 

for the external or shared 

delivery of the in-house 

fostering supervision 

function, the subject to the 

soft market testing and 

development exercises 

� By December 

2014 

� PMc 

P
a
g
e
 9

3



  

 Page 58 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

above, and the performance 

of the new in-house service 

� To improve the contract 

management of external 

providers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

� To carry out an audit to 

ensure all providers have a 

contract with clear quality 

and cost parameters 

� To review performance 

management process on all 

frameworks (for semi-

independent, residential & 

IFA), including quality 

assurance visits 

� To ensure standard of care 

meetings are held by carrying 

out a review of terms of 

reference   

� To review the current 

feedback process on the 

quality of external 

placements (to brokerage 

officers and social workers) 

� To implement additional 

approval processes for spot 

purchases 

� By end 

February 

2014 

� AB 

P
a

g
e
 9

4



  

 Page 59 of 60 

Sufficiency Duty  Context Opportunity Action Timescales Lead 

� To ensure value for money 

from our current providers 

 

 

 

� To review the findings from 

work with the ‘value in care’ 

contract and ensure this 

informs future 

commissioning arrangements 

� To determine whether the 

contract with ‘value in care’ 

be extended by conducting 

an evaluation 

� To conduct a random sample 

comparison of contract rates 

and billings across all 

frameworks 

� By end 

February 

2014 

� PMc 

� KS 

� To raise the profile of the LAC 

sufficiency agenda across the 

wider service and Trust 

� To develop a plan for a ‘LAC 

sufficiency’ event in 2014 

(e.g. conference) 

� By end 

February 

2014 

� PMc 

� CP 

� To identify cases which can 

be transferred from high cost 

external placements to in-

house provision 

� To continue with the external 

placements review panel  

� Ongoing � PMc 

P
a
g
e
 9

5



 

    Page 60 of 60 

12. Appendix 1: Excerpt from the Children Act 1989  

 

22G General duty of local authority to secure sufficient accommodation for looked 

after children 

 

(1) It is the general duty of a local authority to take steps that secure, so far as 

reasonably practicable, the outcome in subsection (2). 

(2) The outcome is that the local authority are able to provide the children 

mentioned in subsection (3) with accommodation that— 

(a) is within the authority’s area; and 

(b) meets the needs of those children. 

(3) The children referred to in subsection (2) are those— 

(a) that the local authority are looking after; 

(b) in respect of whom the authority are unable to make arrangements under 

section 22C(2); and 

(c) whose circumstances are such that it would be consistent with their 

welfare for them to be provided with accommodation that is in the 

authority’s area. 

(4) In taking steps to secure the outcome in subsection (2), the local authority must 

have regard to the benefit of having— 

(a) a number of accommodation providers in their area that is, in their 

opinion, sufficient to secure that outcome; and 

(b) a range of accommodation in their area capable of meeting different 

needs that is, in their opinion, sufficient to secure that outcome. 

(5) In this section ‘accommodation providers’ means— local authority foster parents; 

and children’s homes in respect of which a person is registered under Part 2 of the 

Care Standards Act 2000.” 

Page 96



 

Page 1 of 11 

 

 

Briefing for: 
Children and Young 
People’s Scrutiny Panel 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Early Help Offer for Children and Young People 

 

Purpose of 
briefing: 

To update the Panel on the development and implementation of 
Haringey’s early help offer for children and young people 

 

Lead Officer: 
Elaine Redding, Interim Assistant Director, Safeguarding and 
Social Care Services, Children’s Service 

 

Date: 27 February 2014 

 

1 Introduction 
 
Background 
1.1 Preventative services will do more to reduce abuse and neglect than reactive 

services; coordination of these services is important in maximising efficiency to best 
meet the needs of our children, young people and families. From a child or young 
person’s point of view, the earlier any necessary help is offered, the better their life 
chances are. 
 

1.2 Research shows that help provided early on at any point in a child’s life when 
the impact of disadvantage first appears, is more efficient, effective and in the 
longer term, more economic. 
 

1.3 Families and young people have told us that they value help being given as soon 
as possible after they encounter problems, rather than leaving matters to escalate to 
crisis point or become chronic and ingrained. Where help is provided earlier, 
families are able to become more self-sustaining and less reliant on services 
provided by the council and other agencies, while children and young people will be 
better able to develop the skills necessary for adult life. Details of the national context 
are set out in Appendix A. 
 

1.4 In addition to supporting children, young people and families when they need it most, 
early help is also cost-effective, with a broad range of pay-offs across the public 
sector, including better education, improved employment and reduced crime. 

 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 97



 

Page 2 of 11 

 

 
Definition of early help 
1.5 We have adopted the definition of early help developed by the Centre for Excellence 

and Outcomes in Children and Young People’s Services:   
 

“Intervening early and as soon as possible to tackle problems emerging for children, 
young people and their families or with a population most at risk of developing 
problems. Early intervention may occur at any point in a child or young person’s life”. 

 
1.6 The following early help statements are underpinned by the Munro principles. A 

good early help offer means: 
 

• Strengthening the capacity of universal preventive services including children’s 
centres, child care and education settings, leisure and sports settings, school 
nursing and health visiting, and housing. The aim is to enable as much early 
help as possible to be accessed and delivered through universal settings. 

• Using evidence based methods to work with families and turn around their life 
course. We will need to adopt a variety of methods, recognising that intervention 
aimed at a family experiencing domestic violence will be different to a family 
where child mental health is an issue. 

• Well integrated provision to ensure that all services working with a family have 
the same intentions, and that when the family is 'stepped down', universal and 
community services are able to respond to their needs. 

• Ensuring that when families do need more intensive support, they are quickly 
and seamlessly offered that support. 

• Ensuring resources are targeted on identified need. 

• Using holistic approaches and interventions which focus on the whole family. 

• Embedding a child and family centred pathway which clearly identifies the routes 
into and – importantly – out of services and ensures a seamless experience for 
families. 

• Ensuring that all practitioners have a shared vision and understanding, skills and 
approaches which put the family at the heart of deciding and implementing 
solutions and interventions. 

• Helping families to help themselves by preventing problems from occurring and 
supporting them to solve their problems early. 

 
Local context 

Page 98



 

Page 3 of 11 

 

1.7 Haringey Council is committed to improving the life chances of children, young 
people and families in the borough.  
 

1.8 The council’s Corporate Plan 2013-15 contains five principles including: Investing in 
prevention and early help – improving life chances and reducing costs. A council-
wide working group is identifying prevention and early help services that are currently 
on offer for all residents. The group will also consider how service provision and 
delivery can be transformed to ensure a much greater emphasis on avoiding or 
averting problems in the first place. 
 

1.9 The early help offer for applies to all children and young people, irrespective of their 
starting point and will work to our Children and Young People’s Plan vision that: 
Haringey is a place where children and young people thrive and achieve. 
 

1.10 In order to have maximum impact it is important to have transparency about local 
arrangements to help children, young people and families early, with improved co-
ordination amongst statutory partners, support from local practitioners and clarity 
about local services available to help families. 
 

1.11 Haringey Council and its partner organisations recognise that the development of a 
prevention, early help and intervention approach to services is dependent on the 
quality of involvement with partners who commission and deliver initiatives locally.  
 

1.12 Appendix B shows both individual organisations’ and partnership commitment to this 
approach.  

 

2 Principles underpinning our early help offer 
2.1 We have developed the following principles to underpin our early help approach; 

these are aligned to our early help statements and the design of the services, 
systems and processes to deliver it:  

 

• Families and communities will be supported to become more resilient and 
for their children to have secure attachments through enduring positive 
relationships with ‘built in’ help so that they are more able to use their strengths 
to support themselves and their communities 

• Help will be there when people need it, before matters become serious; it will 
help them to help themselves by finding solutions based on self referral where 
possible 

• There are different ways of providing help and residents will have a choice 

• People should only have to tell us their story once and we will treat the 
information they share with appropriate confidentiality 

• Early help depends on a partnership approach and, as a partnership, we will 
work together with families to develop and deliver a high quality offer that has 
our residents at its core 

Page 99



 

Page 4 of 11 

 

• We will build trusting relationships that include challenge and staying with 
families that need support but are resistant to engagement, as we are driven by 
achieving the best outcomes for children. 

 
 
 
 

3 What we want to achieve with early help 
 

Aim 
3.1 We want to ensure that Haringey is able to provide effective early help services that 

support family life and promote the wellbeing of children within their families, whilst 
safeguarding those children and young people for whom there is no safe alternative. 
 

3.2 We will do this by transforming practice in Haringey setting high standards for 
evidence based practice and performing favourably against national benchmarks by 
providing effective early help services that support the diverse range of family life and 
promote the wellbeing of children and young people within their families, whilst 
safeguarding those children and young people for whom there is no safe alternative. 

 
3.3 Early help forms a key strand of the Haringey 54,000 work programme (the 

Children’s Services Transformation programme). The programme covers how the 
Council and partner agencies will re-design services so that it is easier for families to 
access support; and for social workers to be supported and have access to good 
professional development opportunities.   
 
Impact 

3.4   This early help offer covers those children and young people in Haringey who would 
benefit most. Where help is needed it applies to children and young people from 
conception until age 18. It also applies to young people with disabilities and young 
people who have been in care over the age of 18 who meet the requirements of the 
relevant legislation up to the age of 251. 

 

4 Why we need an early help offer in Haringey2 
4.1 In March 2013 the population of Haringey was approximately 254,900 with 

approximately 63,400 0-19 year olds living in the borough (24.9%). There is a 
higher population of children and young people in the east of the borough than in the 
west and the wards with the largest number of 0-19 year olds are Seven Sisters, 

Northumberland Park, White Hart Lane and Tottenham Hale. 

 

                                                 
1
 For example the Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000 sets out the criteria under which children who have 
been in care may be eligible, relevant or former relevant children and entitled to certain specified services 
between the ages of 18-21, and in some cases until the age of 24.  The Children's Social Care Procedures 
Manual on Haringey Council’s Intranet provides up to date information. 
2
 For detailed information about the needs of children and young people in Haringey see: Children and 
Young People's Plan: Haringey Council 

Page 100



 

Page 5 of 11 

 

4.2 In March 2013 the population of Haringey was approximately 254,900 with 
approximately 63,400 0-19 year olds living in the borough
higher population of children and young people in the east of the borough than in the 
west and the wards with the lar

Northumberland Park, White Hart Lane and Tottenham Hale

 

4.3 Haringey is one of the most diverse boroughs in London
Haringey schools describing themselves as non
23%). 47.7% of the borough
known or believed to be other than English.
 

4.4 In addition to the known ‘Toxic 3’ 
parental mental health – 
presentation to children’s services and are shown below.
 

 
 
 
 

4.5 The overall picture in Haringey is one of 
funding for public services is red

13 the population of Haringey was approximately 254,900 with 
19 year olds living in the borough (24.9%). There is a 

higher population of children and young people in the east of the borough than in the 
west and the wards with the largest number of 0-19 year olds are Seven Sisters, 

Northumberland Park, White Hart Lane and Tottenham Hale. 

one of the most diverse boroughs in London with 80.6% of children in 
Haringey schools describing themselves as non-White British (London 

orough’s school population have a first language which is 
known or believed to be other than English. 

In addition to the known ‘Toxic 3’ – substance misuse, domestic violence and
 the other priority areas have been recognised by frequent 

presentation to children’s services and are shown below. 

The overall picture in Haringey is one of increasing demand at a time when 
funding for public services is reduced and family incomes are under pressure

13 the population of Haringey was approximately 254,900 with 
(24.9%). There is a 

higher population of children and young people in the east of the borough than in the 
19 year olds are Seven Sisters, 

with 80.6% of children in 
White British (London 65%, England 

s school population have a first language which is 

substance misuse, domestic violence and 
the other priority areas have been recognised by frequent 

increasing demand at a time when 
uced and family incomes are under pressure. 

Page 101



 

Page 6 of 11 

 

Health services and schools are seeing increased demand from the growing number 
of births and school age children and young people and increases in numbers of 
children and young people with disabilities.  
 

4.6 The top ten presenting needs vary across the borough as shown below. 

 
4.7 In order to address these needs over the last year, Haringey has: 

 

• developed a strong Troubled Families service: Haringey Families First 

• a Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) in operation 

• begun piloting a new early help pathway   

• created a new early help team, using a re-crafted Common Assessment 
Framework (CAF) tool 

• revised its operating model for the ‘front door’, building on customer services 
transformation 

• undertaken diagnostic work to understand who requires early help services, and 
what are their presenting needs. 
 

4.8 It is intended that the following services will take an early help approach to their 
delivery: 

• children’s centres 

Page 102



 

Page 7 of 11 

 

• early years and early year’s foundation stage 

• communication and language development 

• learning disabilities and difficulties 

• multi-systemic therapy 

• teenage pregnancy 

• emotional wellbeing and mental health services 

• Haringey Families First 

• substance misuse services 

• domestic and gender based violence services 

• Edge of Care Service. 
 

4.9 Each of the services has its own work programme which will incorporate the early 
help approach. 
 

5 Next steps 
5.1 We are now piloting an early help approach until the end of April 2014. A dedicated 

early help team has been established within Children’s Services to enable the co-
ordination of services and identification of a lead professional for families with 
additional needs. 
 

5.2 The findings from the pilot will be reviewed and evaluated by a group of identified 
professionals including the Head of Service for Early Help, the Principal Social 
Worker and the Assistant Director of Children & Families. The learning will be used to 
support, develop and roll-out a strategic approach to early help provision in Haringey. 

 
5.3 The early help approach is due to be implemented in May 2014. 

Page 103



 

Page 8 of 11 

 

6 Appendices 
 
Appendix A: The National Context 
 

1. Recent national policy has emphasised the benefits of access to early help for families 
in preventing further need. They highlight the importance of providing early help as 
soon as possible to avoid deterioration in the situation which leads to increasing 
expenditure as the problem becomes entrenched. As a result, local authorities across 
the country have begun to focus on an early help approach and redevelop their 
services to be more effective. The most influential policies in the development of 
Haringey’s early help offer have been summarised below.  
 

2. Graham Allen - Early Intervention: The Next Steps (January 2011) 
Graham Allen (MP) was asked by national government to chair an independent review 
of early intervention services. The review looked at models of best practice regarding 
early intervention, how such models could be supported and the institutional 
arrangements for this.  
 
The review defines early intervention as: “Those programmes which ensure that 
babies, children, and young people build the social and emotional bedrock to fulfill 
their potential and reduce dysfunction. This is a prerequisite to break the 
intergenerational cycle of disadvantage and underachievement.” 
 
Graham Allen makes 33 recommendations, the top three being: 

•••• 19 “top programmes” identified in the report should be supported and work 
undertaken with local areas to explore how they might be expanded. However, 
this list of 19 should not be regarded as exhaustive or complete: all 19 should be 
reviewed and reassessed by the new Early Intervention Foundation (proposed 

below) before a “living list� is evolved. 

•••• Early Intervention should build on its local base by establishing 15 local Early 
Intervention Places to spearhead its development. These should be run by local 
authorities and the voluntary sector, who are already the main initiators and 
innovators of Early Intervention.  

•••• The establishment of an independent Early Intervention Foundation to support 
local people, communities and agencies.” 

3. Professor Eileen Munro – The Munro Review of Child Protection, Final Report, A 
Child Centered System (May 2011)  
The Munro Review made a number of recommendations which has impacted on the 
delivery of services to children and families. This review agreed with earlier reviews 
that there is a growing body of evidence to support early help and emphasised the 
importance of this provision.   
 
“Preventative services can do more to reduce abuse and neglect than reactive 
services. Many services and professions help children and families so co-ordinating 
their work is important to reduce inefficiencies and omissions. The review is 

Page 104



 

Page 9 of 11 

 

recommending the Government place a duty on local authorities and their statutory 
partners to secure the sufficient provision of local Early Help services for children, 
young and people and families. This should lead to the identification of the Early Help 
that is needed by a particular child and their family and to the provision of an offer of 
help where their needs do not match the criteria for receiving children’s social care 
services.” 
 

4. Working Together to Safeguard Families – A guide to inter-agency working to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children (March 2013)  
The “Working Together” document provides guidelines for professionals working with 
children. The new guidelines also emphasise the importance of early help, 
effectiveness of agencies working together to identify, assess and provide targeted 
early help services and that the local authority has a duty to promote this under Section 
10 of the Children’s Act (2004). It also recommends that Local Safeguarding Children 
Boards (LSCBs) “should monitor, evaluate the effectiveness of training, including multi-
agency training, for all professionals in the area.”  
 

5. New Ofsted Single Inspection Framework (November 2013) 
Following the implementation of the new Ofsted single inspection framework in 
November 2013, the decision making and effectiveness at all stages of the child’s 
journey, including early help, will now be tested.  
 
This has introduced a new set of requirements regarding early help for the local 
authority including: 
 

•••• children, young people and families are offered help when needs and/or 
concerns are first identified and, as a consequence of the early help offered, 
children’s circumstances improve and, in some cases, the need for targeted 
services is lessened or avoided 

•••• the interface between early help and statutory child protection work is clearly 
and effectively differentiated and that the thresholds operate effectively 

•••• senior leadership will “innovate and promote creative ideas to sustain the 
highest-quality services, including early help services, for all children and 
young people” 

•••• the local authority works with partners to plan and deliver early help. 

  

Page 105



 

Page 10 of 11 

 

Appendix B: Local commitments to an early help approach 
 

Organisation Commitment  

Haringey Council’s 
Corporate Plan 2013-15 

Principle: Investing in prevention and early help – improving life 
chances and reducing costs 

Haringey Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s 
prospectus 2013 

Priority: Prevention - helping people to live healthier lives is one 
of the CCG’s biggest priorities. 

Barnet, Enfield and Haringey 
Mental Health Trust Strategy 
2013-18   

Focus: is on actively promoting holistic mental and physical well-
being, prevention of ill-health, recovery and enablement, 
delivered as close as possible to patients’ homes. 

Haringey Police Safer 
Neighbourhoods teams 

Way of working: Haringey Police have strong links with the 
community, local authority and other partner agencies, working 
with them to find long-term solutions to tackle crime and 
antisocial behaviour at a local level. 

Haringey Probation Service 
Business Plan 2013-14 

Commissioning activity: will focus on the development of 
Intensive Alternatives to Custody (IAC), extending the provision 
for Restorative Justice (RJ) and mentoring across London. 

 

Partnership  Commitment 

Children and Young 
People’s Plan 2013-15 

Principle: Promoting prevention, early help and intervention 

Prevention, early help and intervention both in the early years of 
a child’s life and at any time a problem arises can have a 
significant positive impact for a child’s later life. 

This approach can help avert emotional and behavioural 
difficulties; under-attainment at school; truancy and exclusion; 
criminal behaviour; drug and alcohol misuse; teenage 
pregnancy, and the need for statutory social care. 

Community Safety Strategy 
2013-17  

Principle: An early intervention and prevention approach:   

Commissioning projects that help to prevent crime in the first 
place, by working closely with Children’s Services, Public Health, 
other departments and agencies to evaluate crime prevention 
programmes.  

Identifying and co-ordinating prevention work across all services 
including schools and families via the Families First Initiative.  

Recognising that prevention is wider than young people and will 
continue to explore interventions such as target hardening.  

Health and Wellbeing Principle: Prevention which describes those interventions that 

Page 106



 

Page 11 of 11 

 

Partnership  Commitment 

Strategy 2012-15 occur before the initial onset of illness or a specific condition. 
They can be divided into: 

Universal interventions which aim to prevent ill-health before its 
onset; at any stage of the life course, they can improve quality of 
life and prevent problems escalating thus avoiding or delaying 
the need for intensive and more costly interventions or services 
later on.  

Interventions aimed at detecting and treating pre-symptomatic 
disease that, if left undetected, could become harmful.   

Interventions aimed at improving the quality of life for people with 
various conditions by limiting complications and disabilities, 
reducing the severity and progression of disease, and aiding 
rehabilitation or recovery.  

 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

Report for: 
CYPS Scrutiny Panel 
27 February 2014 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Early Years Review (Corporate Delivery Unit) and Update on Work to date 

 

Report 
Authorised by:  

Lisa Redfern 
Director,  Children’s Services  

   

Lead Officer: 
Charlotte Pomery  
Joint Adult and Children’s Interim Assistant Director, Commissioning 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 
Report for: Non Key Decision 

 
 

1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 

1.1 The Council’s corporate priority Outstanding for All, enabling all Haringey children to 
thrive, will be most effectively underpinned by a strong foundation in early years. 
Evidence and best practice shows that rounded development in the early years will 
support children and young people to achieve their full potential. The Early Years 
Strategy is in development across the Council and with partners and will seek to 
ensure that this foundation is laid well to achieve the best outcomes for children and 
young people. 
 

1.2 For Children and Young People’s Services, Early Years has been identified as one 
of the five priorities in its Commissioning Framework. To support this priority, a 
monthly Early Years Partnership Board was established in autumn 2013 which is 
multi-agency and focused on establishing a good foundation for children in the 
period from conception through to the age of five.  
 

1.3 To ensure early years is implemented effectively in Haringey, the Corporate 
Delivery Unit was commissioned to carry out a Design Review of early years 
provision across the Council and its partners responding to the question “How can 
the council ensure that children in Haringey have a good level of development at 
Early Years Foundation Stage and are school-ready?” Its wide-ranging report was 
concluded in January 2014 and is attached to this cover report.  

Agenda Item 8Page 109



 

Page 2 of 4 

 

2. Cabinet Member introduction 
 

Achieving a good foundation in Early Years is fundamental to enabling a child to 
develop and to achieve its full potential. As Cabinet Member for Children, I endorse 
the approach and findings of the Design Review and support the actions being 
taken forward to implement its recommendations.  
 

3. Recommendations 
 
The Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel is asked to consider the Design 
Review and to comment on its findings and recommendations.   
 

4. Alternative options considered 
 
The Design Review considered a range of options and the attached report sets 
these out in detail. 
 

5. Background information 
 

5.1 The Design Review identifies a number of key actions which are now being taken 
forward. The Assistant Directors for Schools and Learning and for Commissioning 
have a shared priority to drive forward the improvements in early years provision 
and are currently focused on ensuring the council’s programme for free education 
entitlement for eligible two years old is in place delivering sufficient places of a high 
quality which are taken up by those who need them. The Early Years 
Commissioner, working with colleagues on quality, is also prioritising this element of 
work.  
 

5.2 From September 2013, all local authorities in England have had a statutory duty to 
secure early years free entitlement places for the most disadvantaged two year olds 
using nationally prescribed criteria. The purpose of this entitlement is to improve 
educational outcomes for children from the most deprived backgrounds and to 
ensure more children are school ready. Free entitlement places offer each eligible 
child 15 hours per week of early education, up to a maximum of 570 hours per year.   
 

5.3 To meet this duty, and improve outcomes for the most disadvantaged children, the 
Council, within the emerging framework of the Early Years Strategy, has developed 
a plan built around the three core pillars of sufficiency, quality and access. It is now 
implementing this plan to offer sufficient places, which are of high quality and which 
are accessible to those families entitled to them. For example, the Council is 
working to develop the market for childcare and is proactive in identifying sites 
which can be used for new or expanded provision. A report to Cabinet on  
11 February 2014, proposes increasing the rate of funding available per hour to 
providers participating in the programme. Quality is a prime consideration and 
officers continue to support the improvement of provision across Haringey’s diverse 
early education and childcare market.  
 

Page 110



 

Page 3 of 4 

 

5.4 There are a number of barriers to access which are being addressed through 
targeted work with families and communities and by ensuring that provision meets a 
wide range of need.    

5.5 Children’s Centres continue to offer support to this programme and are the pivotal 
elements of our wider early years model which is based on family focused provision 
and outreach to the most disadvantaged families who may not otherwise come 
forward to services. Whilst the current focus of activity is to support the early years 
programme for two year olds, this can only be effectively progressed by looking at 
all areas affecting a child’s development in its early years.  

 

6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 
 
6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
6.2 Scrutiny Panel are advised that should Cabinet approve the increase of the hourly 

rate for two year old free early education to £6 per hour, there will be a financial 
sustainability issue estimated to be from 2016-17 onwards as demonstrated in the 
attached Appendix.   

 
6.3 The Free Education Entitlement is funded from a ring-fenced allocation within the 

Early Years Block of the Dedicated Schools Grant.  Place led funding for eligible 
two year olds has been allocated for 2013-14 and 2014-15.  Funding will move to a 
participation basis from 1 April 2016.  Underspends arising due to participation 
levels being lower that Department for Education expectations will be applied and 
carried forward to fund £6 per hour rate. 

 
6.4 The Haringey Schools Forum is responsible for allocating Early Years Block funding 

and is committed to reviewing all funding within the Block by the end of March 2015 
in order to ensure that the £6 per hour rate is sustainable. 

 
6.5 Increasing participation of two, three and four year olds will increase resources in 

the Early Years Block which could be used to mitigate any reductions elsewhere in 
the Early Years Block required in order to secure sustainability.  Increased 
participation and achieving a good level of development during early years would 
also be expected to save future costs to both Haringey Council and schools. 
 

7. Head of Legal Services and legal implications 
 
The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on this Report. There are no legal 
implications arising from the recommendation. 

Page 111



 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 

 
The focus on early years in Haringey aims to ensure that all children growing up in 
the borough receive the best start in life. Targeted work with the most 
disadvantaged families seeks to reduce the gaps in opportunity and school 
readiness experienced by some children in their first five years. The national 
programme to deliver free educational childcare places to those meeting nationally 
set criteria helps to support the Council’s focus on improving the outcomes for all 
children, by targeting those facing most disadvantage many of whom possess many 
of the characteristics protected under sections 4 – 12 of the Equality Act 2010.  This 
work will therefore contribute to the Council’s performance of its public sector 
equality duty.  
 

9. Head of Procurement Comments 
 
The Head of Procurement has been consulted on this Report. There are no 
procurement implications arising from the recommendation.   
 

10. Policy Implication 
 
For Haringey, the policy for early years is in line with its Corporate Plan and Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy objectives to give children growing up in Haringey the best 
start in life and to deliver high quality services which offer children the chance to 
thrive. By working in partnership with health, private and voluntary sector partners 
and schools to support children up to the age of five and their families, the Council 
believes it can dramatically improve their outcomes. Through focusing on the three 
pillars of sufficiency, quality and access, the Council can ensure that provision for 
free early education for two year olds contributes to a solid foundation in early 
years which will stay with a child throughout their life.      
 

 
11.  Reasons for Decision  

 
N/A – report for information only.  
 

12. Use of Appendices 
 
The Design Review is attached as Appendix 1.  
 

13. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
n/a 

Page 112



A
ch

ie
v

in
g

 a
 g

o
o

d
 l

e
v

e
l 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

5
 y

e
a

rs
-o

ld
 

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

  

 Ja
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

Page 113



E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
te

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 li
fe

 c
h

a
n

ce
s 

o
f 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

re
 h

e
a

v
il

y
 p

re
d

ic
a

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 f
ir

st
 f

iv
e

 y
e

a
rs

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 li

fe
1
. 

 T
h

e
 j

o
u

rn
e

y
 

fo
r 

e
a

ch
 o

f 
th

e
 1

8
,2

9
9

 u
n

d
e

r 
5

s 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 in

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 is

, 
a

n
d

 w
il

l b
e

, 
q

u
it

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t.
  H

o
w

e
v

e
r,

 t
h

e
 g

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

e
xp

e
ct

s 
ch

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 g

o
o

d
 le

v
e

l 
o

f 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 E
a

rl
y

 Y
e

a
rs

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 (

E
Y

F
S

) 
a

n
d

 t
o

 
-

5
, 

p
la

ci
n

g
 a

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
in

g
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 o

n
 lo

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
.  

 

T
h

is
 r

e
v

ie
w

 h
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

re
e

 f
a

ct
o

rs
 t

h
a

t 
w

il
l e

n
su

re
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l c

re
a

te
s 

th
e

 b
e

st
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

 f
o

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
v

e
 t

h
e

se
 g

o
a

ls
, b

y
 f

o
cu

si
n

g
 o

n
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 h
o

w
 w

e
 m

e
e

t 
o

u
r 

st
a

tu
to

ry
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

.  
B

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

se
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s,

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l w
il

l i
m

p
ro

v
e

 it
s 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 t
o

 le
v

e
ls

 in
 li

n
e

 w
it

h
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o

ll
e

a
g

u
e

s,
 m

e
a

n
in

g
 a

 m
o

re
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 jo
u

rn
e

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
h

il
d

 t
o

 5
 y

e
a

rs
 o

ld
. 

 T
h

e
 k

e
y

 f
a

ct
o

rs
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 in

 t
h

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

re
: 

1
.

S
u

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

F
in

d
in

g
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
fr

o
m

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 c
a

n
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
ch

il
d

ca
re

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

s 
n

o
t 

o
w

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

G
o

in
g

 b
e

y
o

n
d

 p
ri

ce
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

ct
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
in

 n
e

w
 w

a
y

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

co
ll

a
b

o
ra

ti
ve

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 i

n
ce

n
ti

v
e

s 

2
.

Q
u

a
li

ty
 

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 b
y

 a
p

p
ly

in
g

 a
 n

e
w

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l e

xp
e

ct
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

ch
il

d
ca

re
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

F
o

cu
si

n
g

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 o

n
 im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 r

e
su

lt
s 

3
.

A
cc

e
ss

 

In
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 d

ir
e

ct
 m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 

R
a

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 

 

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 n
e

e
d

 it
 m

o
st

 

U
n

d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 t

w
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

is
su

e
s:

 

A
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

d
e

li
v

e
ry

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
te

 a
n

d
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
w

h
e

re
v

e
r 

p
o

ss
ib

le
, s

p
e

ci
fi

ca
ll

y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
: 

T
h

e
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
 

C
o

-l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
ls

 
 

A
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

ll
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 t

o
 5

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

, 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 b

a
ck

 m
o

re
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l s

e
rv

ic
e

s 

T
ig

h
te

n
in

g
 o

u
r 

g
ri

p
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 o
f 

o
u

r 
ch

il
d

ca
re

 a
n

d
 e

a
rl

y
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, t
h

ro
u

g
h

: 

A
 n

e
w

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

-f
o

cu
se

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
/a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 r
is

k
/r

e
w

a
rd

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 b
u

il
t 

in
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

tr
o

n
g

, a
ct

iv
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

a
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
a

n
a

g
e

s 
th

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
li

e
s 

p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s 
fo

r 
p

o
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

P
u

t 
to

g
e

th
e

r,
 w

e
 w

il
l n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 im

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 b
u

t 
h

a
v

e
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
o

u
r 

d
e

li
v

e
ry

 m
o

d
e

l,
 b

o
th

 in
si

d
e

 a
n

d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 m
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

o
u

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
, 

o
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 is
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 h

a
v

e
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

v
e

l o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

E
Y

F
S

 a
n

d
 a

re
 s

ch
o

o
l-

re
a

d
y

. 

   
D

e
li

ve
ry

 U
n

it
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
 

1
. 

T
h

e
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 Y
e

a
rs

: 
p

re
v
e

n
ti

n
g

 p
o

o
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 b

e
co

m
in

g
 p

o
o

r 
a

d
u

lt
s 

(F
ra

n
k

 F
ie

ld
, 

2
0

1
0

) 

Page 114



M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 

A
t 

th
e

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 s
to

ck
ta

ke
, t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

a
n

d
 C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
v

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 U
n

it
 w

o
u

ld
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
 a

 d
e

si
g

n
 r

e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

E
a

rl
y

 Y
e

a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 in
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
a

n
sw

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 q
u

e
st

io
n

: 

h
o

o
l-

 

T
h

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ce
d

 in
 m

id
-N

o
v

e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 w
a

s 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

o
v

e
r 

a
 6

-w
e

e
k

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

It
 c

o
n

si
st

e
d

 o
f:

 

d
e

sk
-

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
 

a
 r

e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
p

o
li

cy
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
, a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

in
p

u
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
in

k
 t

a
n

k
s 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

ri
ti

e
s 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s 

w
it

h
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s,
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
a

rl
y

 t
e

a
rs

 t
e

a
m

, p
u

b
li

c 

h
e

a
lt

h
, s

o
ci

a
l c

a
re

, 
sc

h
o

o
l i

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t,
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
ci

a
l e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 n
e

e
d

s.
  

 (
le

a
d

 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 B
ig

 L
o

tt
e

ry
 F

u
n

d
 b

id
) 

v
is

it
s 

/ 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 c
o

u
n

ci
ls

 t
o

 le
a

rn
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
ir

 s
u

cc
e

ss
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 I
sl

in
g

to
n

, B
e

xl
e

y
, 

C
ro

y
d

o
n

, B
a

rn
e

t,
 W

a
lt

h
a

m
 F

o
re

st
, 

Le
w

is
h

a
m

 a
n

d
 

M
a

n
ch

e
st

e
r 

C
h

ri
s 

B
a

rn
h

a
m

, 
fo

rm
e

r 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 p

o
li

cy
 a

t 
th

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

A
 f

u
ll

 li
st

 o
f 

in
te

rv
ie

w
e

e
s 

ca
n

 b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 in

 A
n

n
e

x 
A

. 
W

e
 a

re
 g

ra
te

fu
l t

o
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 w
h

o
 m

a
d

e
 t

h
e

 t
im

e
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 o

p
e

n
n

e
ss

 

a
n

d
 h

o
n

e
st

y
. 
 

T
h

is
 r

e
v

ie
w

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 d

ri
v

e
n

 b
y

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 o

f 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 in
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
ce

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

 5
 y

e
a

rs
 o

ld
. 

 A
n

a
ly

si
s 

sh
o

w
s 

th
a

t 

-f
o

cu
se

d
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
.  

A
s 

su
ch

, 
th

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 h
a

s 
fo

cu
se

d
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l c
a

n
 im

p
ro

v
e

  p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 in
 t

h
e

se
 a

re
a

s 
b

o
th

 in
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
rt

 a
n

d
 m

e
d

iu
m

 t
e

rm
. 

O
u

r 
fi

e
ld

w
o

rk
 d

id
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 id

e
n

ti
fy

 s
o

m
e

 c
ro

ss
-c

u
tt

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
a

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 in
 t

h
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

 n
a

m
e

ly
 g

re
a

te
r 

co
ll

a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 in

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

 t
ig

h
t 

g
ri

p
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 m
o

d
e

ls
.  

In
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 o
p

ti
o

n
s,

 t
h

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 l
o

o
k

e
d

 a
t 

k
e

y
 in

te
rd

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
ci

e
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

rd
is

 B
ri

g
h

t 
re

v
ie

w
 f

ro
m

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

, 
th

e
 B

ig
 L

o
tt

e
ry

 F
u

n
d

 b
id

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 5

4
,0

0
0

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

 

Page 115



T
h

e
 E

Y
FS

 p
ro

fi
le

 a
ss

e
ss

e
s 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
ch

a
ra

ct
e

ri
st

ic
s 

to
 j

u
d

g
e

 -
 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4

 

E
a

rl
y

 Y
e

a
rs

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 P

ro
fi

le
 

 T
h

e
 E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 S
ta

g
e

 (
E

Y
F

S
) 

p
ro

fi
le

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s 

p
ra

ct
it

io
n

e
rs

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 a
 b

e
st

 f
it

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

re
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 le

v
e

ls
 f

ro
m

 1
7

 

e
a

rl
y

 le
a

rn
in

g
 g

o
a

ls
 (

E
LG

s)
: 

  E
m

e
rg

in
g

 (
le

v
e

l 1
) 

 E
x

p
e

ct
e

d
 (

le
v

e
l 2

) 

 E
x

ce
e

d
in

g
 (

le
v

e
l 3

) 

 T
h

e
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
ta

k
e

s 
p

la
ce

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 E

Y
F

S
, 

i.
e

. 
a

t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
ce

p
ti

o
n

 y
e

a
r.

 

 

 
 

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 w
il

l h
a

v
e

 r
e

a
ch

e
d

 a
 g

o
o

d
 le

v
e

l o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 

th
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 

2
) 

fr
o

m
 1

2
 o

f 
th

e
 1

7
 E

LG
s 

in
 t

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g

: 
 

 1
.

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l,
 s

o
ci

a
l 

a
n

d
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
(3

 E
LG

s)
 

2
.

P
h

y
si

ca
l d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
(2

 E
LG

s)
 

3
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 (
3

 E
LG

s)
 

4
.

M
a

th
e

m
a

ti
cs

 (
2

 E
LG

s)
  

5
.

Li
te

ra
cy

 (
2

 E
LG

S
).

  

 

W
h

y
 i

s 
th

e
 E

Y
FS

 p
ro

fi
le

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t?

 

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 s
u

g
g

e
st

s 
th

a
t 

a
 g

o
o

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 p
re

-s
ch

o
o

l e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 is

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
te

ll
e

ct
u

a
l a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l/
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
ra

l d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 

ch
il

d
re

n
, a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
fa

ct
o

r 
is

 a
 h

ig
h

ly
 q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

1
 

 T
h

e
 E

Y
F
S

 p
ro

fi
le

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 b

u
il

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

se
 p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

a
n

d
 s

in
ce

 2
0

1
2

 t
h

e
 g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
d

 lo
ca

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 h
a

ve
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

ve
l 
o

f 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

E
Y

F
S

. 

 

Lo
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s 
h

a
ve

 a
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
e

li
g

ib
le

 2
 y

e
a

r-
o

ld
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 3

 a
n

d
 4

 y
e

a
r-

o
ld

s 
ta

ke
 u

p
 t

h
e

ir
 f

re
e

 p
re

-s
ch

o
o

l p
la

ce
, 

so
 i

t 
is

 c
ri

ti
ca

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
cr

e
a

te
s 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 e

n
su

re
s 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

cc
e

ss
 i

t.
 

1
. 

T
h

e
 E

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 P

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
P

re
-S

ch
o

o
l 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 (

E
P

P
E

) 
P

ro
je

ct
, 

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0

4
 

Page 116



D
if

fe
re

n
t 

st
ra

te
g

ie
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 

th
e

se
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5

 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

(2
0

1
2

-2
0

1
5

) 

 
F

o
cu

se
d

 p
ri

m
a

ri
ly

 o
n

 in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 a
t 

co
n

ce
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 3

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

 

O
ve

rs
e

e
s 

th
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

h
il

d
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y

 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
) 

to
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
d

e
fi

n
e

d
 

a
s 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
 l

o
o

k
in

g
 t

o
 e

xt
e

n
d

 t
o

 a
ll

 f
iv

e
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

W
o

rk
in

g
 c

lo
se

ly
 w

it
h

 W
h

it
ti

n
g

to
n

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

s 
a

n
 

e
a

rl
y

 a
d

o
p

te
r 

o
f 

h
e

a
lt

h
 v

is
it

in
g

 c
a

ll
 t

o
 a

ct
io

n
, 

a
n

d
 a

li
g

n
in

g
 in

cr
e

a
se

d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

it
h

 C
C

 

p
re

se
n

ce
 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 

ch
il

d
ca

re
 p

la
ce

s 
fo

r 
e

li
g

ib
le

 2
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s 

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 5

4
,0

0
0

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 
F

o
cu

se
d

 o
n

 t
u

rn
in

g
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 t
o

 a
 m

o
d

e
l 

o
f 

e
a

rl
y

 h
e

lp
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

S
e

e
k

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 t
h

is
 a

s 
e

a
rl

y
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 a
n

d
 s

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 b
e

st
 

ch
a

n
ce

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 a

t 
a

ch
ie

vi
n

g
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

ve
l 

o
f 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
E

Y
F

S
 

 

T
ro

u
b

le
d

 F
a

m
il

ie
s 

In
it

ia
ti

v
e

 

 
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l i

n
it

ia
ti

ve
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 t

ro
u

b
le

d
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y

 

F
a

m
il

y
-f

o
cu

se
d

 
 m

e
a

n
in

g
 w

h
o

m
e

ve
r 

in
 t

h
e

 f
a

m
il

y
 is

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
s 

n
e

e
d

in
g

 h
e

lp
 o

r 
su

p
p

o
rt

, 

w
h

o
le

-f
a

m
il

y
 s

it
u

a
ti

o
n

 is
 a

ss
e

ss
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
ro

a
d

e
r 

su
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 

 

H
e

a
lt

h
 &

 

W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd

H
a

r
in

g
e

y
 5

4
,0

0
0

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
 

E
a

r
ly

 Y
e

a
rs

 

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o

a
rd

E
a

r
ly

 Y
e

a
rs

 P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o

a
rd

 
G

o
v
e

r
n

a
n

c
e

 A
r
ra

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 (

1
/
2

)

E
a

r
ly

 Y
e

a
rs

 H
e

a
lt

h
 W

o
r
k

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

C
A

F
 S

te
e

r
in

g
 G

ro
u

p

B
IG

 L
o

tt
e

r
y

 (
S

te
e

r
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
)

T
r
u

s
t 

S
u

b
g

r
o

u
p

 

(2
0

1
3

-2
0

1
5

) 

 
S

e
e

k
in

g
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 6

 k
e

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

: 

1
.

Q
u

a
li

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 

2
.

E
ve

ry
 c

h
il

d
 h

a
s 

a
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 s

ta
rt

 i
n

 li
fe

 

3
.

T
h

ri
vi

n
g

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

4
.

R
a

is
e

d
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

a
l a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 

5
.

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 s

a
fe

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 

ri
sk

 o
f 

h
a

rm
 

Page 117



 c
o

O
fs

te
d

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
 (

C
ro

yd
o

n
, 

G
re

e
n

w
ic

h
, 

H
a

ck
n

e
y,

 H
a

m
m

e
rs

m
it

h
 &

 F
u

lh
a

m
, 

Is
lin

g
to

n
, 

La
m

b
e

th
, 

Le
w

is
h

a
m

, 
S

o
u

th
w

a
rk

, 
W

a
lt

h
a

m
 F

o
re

st
 a

n
d

 W
a

n
d

sw
o

rt
h

).
 N

o
te

 
 w

h
e

re
 g

o
o

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 i

s 
lo

w
 e

.g
. s

m
o

ki
n

g
 d

u
ri

n
g

 p
re

g
n

a
n

cy
, 

in
fa

n
t 

m
o

rt
a

lit
y
 r

a
te

, 
a

ch
ie

ve
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 e
tc

, 
th

is
 i

s 
ta

ke
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

o
f.

  
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

st
a

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti

e
s 

o
n

 p
u

b
li

c 
b

o
d

ie
s 

fr
o

m
 c

o
n

ce
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 5

 y
e

a
rs

 

o
ld

. 
 W

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

ll
y

 p
e

rf
o

rm
 w

e
ll

 i
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
-f

o
cu

se
d

 a
re

a
s.

..
..

. 

1
 

2
 

3
 4

 
5

 
A

g
e

 
0

 

Page 118



7
 

..
..

.b
u

t 
le

ss
 w

e
ll

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

re
a

s,
 n

a
m

e
ly

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 

2
,3

 a
n

d
 4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 p
la

ce
s,

 a
n

d
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
E

Y
FS

 

1
 

2
 

3
 4

 
5

 
A

g
e

 
0

 

 c
o

O
fs

te
d

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
 (

C
ro

yd
o

n
, 

G
re

e
n

w
ic

h
, 

H
a

ck
n

e
y,

 H
a

m
m

e
rs

m
it

h
 &

 F
u

lh
a

m
, 

Is
lin

g
to

n
, 

La
m

b
e

th
, 

Le
w

is
h

a
m

, 
S

o
u

th
w

a
rk

, 
W

a
lt

h
a

m
 F

o
re

st
 a

n
d

 W
a

n
d

sw
o

rt
h

).
 N

o
te

 
 w

h
e

re
 g

o
o

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 i

s 
lo

w
 e

.g
. s

m
o

ki
n

g
 d

u
ri

n
g

 p
re

g
n

a
n

cy
, 

in
fa

n
t 

m
o

rt
a

lit
y
 r

a
te

, 
a

ch
ie

ve
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

 e
tc

, 
th

is
 i

s 
ta

ke
n

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

o
f.

  
 

Page 119



S
o

 t
h

is
 r

e
v

ie
w

 f
o

cu
se

s 
o

n
 h

o
w

 w
e

 c
a

n
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 in
 d

e
li

ve
ri

n
g

  
h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 e

a
rl

y
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 o

f 
e

n
su

ri
n

g
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

, 
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8

 

S
u

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
re

 is
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
va

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 
su

p
p

o
rt

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 E
Y

F
S

, 
ce

n
tr

e
s,

 P
V

Is
 a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

m
in

d
e

rs
 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 is

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

, 
n

a
m

e
ly

 g
o

o
d

 o
r 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

A
cc

e
ss

 
E

n
su

ri
n

g
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

a
re

 a
b

le
 

to
 a

cc
e

ss
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 w

h
e

n
 

th
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 it

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

Page 120



H
a

v
in

g
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
s 

cr
it

ic
a

l 
to

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
e

li
g

ib
le

 2
 y

e
a

r-
o

ld
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 3

 a
n

d
 4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9

 

S
u

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

A
cc

e
ss

 

1
 

3
 

2
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 k

e
y

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s 
fo

r 
e

n
su

ri
n

g
 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
s 

a
va

il
a

b
le

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

: 

a
)

F
in

d
in

g
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
fr

o
m

 w
h

ic
h

 

ch
il

d
ca

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 c
a

n
 o

p
e

ra
te

 

b
)

A
tt

ra
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

to
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

 

1
 

Page 121



C
o

n
te

xt
: 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

0
-4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 
is

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 g
ro

w
 b

y
 1

1
%

 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 3
 y

e
a

rs
, 

m
e

a
n

in
g

 a
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
g

re
a

te
r 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 

o
f 

2
, 

3
 a

n
d

 4
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 p

la
ce

s 
n

o
w

 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

0
 

 3
,8

3
8

  
 4

,1
1

8
  

4
,7

7
3

4
,8

1
6

 
4

,8
3

4
 

4
,8

2
8

 
4

,8
0

3
 

4
,7

7
0

 
4

,7
5

7
 

4
,7

5
5

 
4

,7
4

7
 

 3
,7

0
9

  
 3

,6
2

4
  

4
,5

0
6

 
4

,5
4

6
 

4
,5

8
8

 
4

,6
0

4
 

4
,6

0
0

 
4

,5
7

7
 

4
,5

4
6

 
4

,5
3

4
 

4
,5

3
3

 

 3
,5

6
0

  
 3

,5
9

7
  

3
,5

3
7

 
4

,2
9

7
 

4
,3

3
8

 
4

,3
7

7
 

4
,3

9
2

 
4

,3
8

9
 

4
,3

6
8

 
4

,3
3

9
 

4
,3

2
8

 

 3
,5

5
8

  
 3

,4
7

8
  

3
,4

4
8

 
3

,4
3

0
 

4
,1

4
2

 
4

,1
8

3
4

,2
2

0
 

4
,2

3
5

 
4

,2
3

3
 

4
,2

1
2

 
4

,1
8

5
 

 3
,3

5
4

  
 3

,5
2

0
  

3
,3

4
5

 
3

,3
4

9
 

3
,3

3
4

 
4

,0
0

8
 

4
,0

4
8

 
4

,0
8

4
 

4
,0

9
8

 
4

,0
9

7
 

4
,0

7
8

 
 1

8
,0

1
9

  
 1

8
,3

3
7

  

 1
9

,6
0

9
  

 2
0

,4
3

8
  

 2
1

,2
3

4
  

 2
1

,9
9

9
  

 2
2

,0
6

3
  

 2
2

,0
5

5
  

 2
2

,0
0

1
  

 2
1

,9
3

8
  

 2
1

,8
7

0
  

 -
  

  

 5
,0

0
0

  

 1
0

,0
0

0
  

 1
5

,0
0

0
  

 2
0

,0
0

0
  

 2
5

,0
0

0
  

2
0

1
1

 
2

0
1

2
 

2
0

1
3

 
2

0
1

4
 

2
0

1
5

 
2

0
1

6
 

2
0

1
7

 
2

0
1

8
 

2
0

1
9

 
2

0
2

0
2

0
2

1
 

A
ct

u
a

l a
n

d
 p

ro
je

ct
e

d
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
0

-4
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s 

b
y

 s
in

g
le

 y
e

a
r 

o
f 

a
g

e
, 

2
0

1
1

-2
0

2
1

  

(O
N

S
 M

id
-Y

e
a

r 
E

st
im

a
te

s 
a

n
d

 O
N

S
 S

u
b

-N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

ct
io

n
s*

) 

4
 

3
 

2
 

1
 

0
 

A
ll

 0
-4

s 

O
N

S
 M

Y
E

 
O

N
S

 S
N

P
P

 

O
N

S
 s

ta
te

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 2
0

1
1

 S
N

P
P

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

 a
 k

n
o

w
n

 o
v
e

r-
e

st
im

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 b
ir

th
 r

a
te

. 
T

h
e

 2
0

1
2

-b
a

se
d

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n

s 
to

 b
e

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 e

a
rl

y
 i

n
 2

0
1

4
 a

re
 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 d
o

w
n

w
a

rd
s.

  

1
 

Page 122



C
o

n
te

xt
: 

th
e

re
 i

s 
a

n
 a

rr
a

y
 o

f 
ch

il
d

ca
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 lo
ca

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

g
re

a
te

st
 n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
a

n
d

, 
b

u
t 

th
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 i

s 
m

ix
e

d
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 i
s 

g
ro

w
in

g
 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

1
 

0
 

5
 

1
0

 

1
5

 

2
0

 

2
5

 

In
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

  
 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

  
G

o
o

d
  

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

  

O
fs

te
d

 r
a

ti
n

g
 b

y
 P

V
I 

ty
p

e
 

P
la

yg
ro

u
p

s 
(v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
) 

 

P
ri

va
te

 n
u

rs
e

ri
e

s 
  

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

(c
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 s

ta
tu

s)
  

 

5
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

 

8
 C

C
s 

d
e

li
ve

r 
ch

il
d

ca
re

 
 4

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 o
w

n
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 L
A

 

     

W
e

 h
a

ve
 7

1
 P

ri
va

te
, 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
ts

 

(P
V

Is
) 

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 is

 n
o

 t
re

n
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 

P
V

I 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 la

te
st

 O
fs

te
d

 in
sp

e
ct

io
n

 r
e

su
lt

. 
 

 W
e

 h
a

ve
 a

p
p

ro
x 

3
0

0
 c

h
il

d
m

in
d

e
rs

. 
 

      

1
 

Page 123



C
o

n
te

xt
: 

w
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 f
in

d
 a

 t
h

ir
d

 m
o

re
 p

la
ce

s 
fo

r 
e

li
g

ib
le

 2
 y

e
a

r-
o

ld
s 

b
y

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

, 
a

n
d

 2
.5

 t
im

e
s 

m
o

re
 p

la
ce

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

2
 

0
 

2
0

 

4
0

 

6
0

 

8
0

 

1
0

0
 

1
2

0
 

5
5

 

1
3

 

5
9

 

8
 

1
9

 
1

4
 

6
4

 

2
8

 

9
6

 

8
 

5
2

 

1
1

5
 

3
6

 

5
9

 

3
0

 

1
0

 

2
 y

r 
o

ld
 p

la
ce

s 
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 S
e

p
 '

1
3

 -
 J

a
n

 '1
4

 

1
 

E
li

g
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
2

-y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 p
ic

tu
re

 

 a
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 8

9
1

 c
h

il
d

re
n

. 
 S

o
 f

a
r,

 

6
6

6
 p

la
ce

s 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 c
re

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 l
e

a
v

in
g

 a
 2

5
%

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll

 

  C
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 is
 a

va
il

a
b

le
 in

 1
5

 o
f 

1
9

 w
a

rd
s 

(t
h

is
 e

xc
lu

d
e

s 
H

a
ck

n
e

y
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
) 

  
 a

p
p

ro
xi

m
a

te
ly

 1
7

9
0

 c
h

il
d

re
n

. 
  

Page 124



W
e

 a
re

 f
o

cu
si

n
g

 o
n

 f
in

d
in

g
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 e

xi
st

in
g

 

co
u

n
ci

l e
st

a
te

, 
b

u
t 

w
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 g
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
e

e
t 

fu
tu

re
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

3
 

1
a

 

 

W
a

lt
h

a
m

 F
o

re
st

 h
a

d
 a

 l
a

ck
 o

f 
p

h
y

si
ca

l 
sp

a
ce

 t
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

ch
il

d
ca

re
. 

T
h

e
y

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 p
ri

v
a

te
ly

 o
w

n
e

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
  

th
e

se
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
to

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

2
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 p

la
ce

s.
 T

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
e

n
t 

to
w

a
rd

s 
m

a
k

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u

rp
o

se
, 

a
n

d
 t

o
 

p
a

y
 t

h
e

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
w

h
o

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

n
t 

th
e

 s
p

a
ce

).
  

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
o

w
n

e
d

 v
e

ry
 li

tt
le

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o

r 
ch

il
d

ca
re

 a
n

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
w

e
re

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 s

ca
rc

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

h
ig

h
e

st
 

d
e

p
ri

va
ti

o
n

 

T
h

e
y

 id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 p

la
ce

s 
o

f 
w

o
rs

h
ip

, 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

&
 s

co
u

t 
g

ro
u

p
s 

a
s 

su
it

a
b

le
 p

re
m

is
e

s,
 a

s 
th

e
se

 a
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 

su
it

a
b

le
 s

iz
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s.

 T
h

e
y

 a
ls

o
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
d

 C
la

ss
 D

1
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
si

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

li
ve

r 
ch

il
d

ca
re

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
se

t 
a

si
d

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
re

m
is

e
s 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
li

ve
r 

ch
il

d
ca

re
, 

a
n

d
 in

v
it

e
d

 in
te

re
st

 f
ro

m
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 o

w
n

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

, a
n

d
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s 
o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s.
 

8
0

0
 p

la
ce

s 
w

e
re

 c
re

a
te

d
 f

o
r 

S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
3

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 d

e
m

a
n

d
  f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

N
o

w
, 

2
6

 o
f 

th
e

 6
7

 P
V

I 
se

ct
o

r 
p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 d

e
li

ve
ri

n
g

 f
re

e
 2

,3
 &

 4
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 p

la
ce

s 
in

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 d

e
li

ve
re

d
 f

ro
m

 p
la

ce
s 

o
f 

w
o

rs
h

ip
 p

re
m

is
e

s 

A
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 6

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 in

 t
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
re

g
is

te
ri

n
g

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 b
a

se
d

 in
 p

la
ce

s 
o

f 
w

o
rs

h
ip

 b
u

il
d

in
g

s 
cr

e
a

ti
n

g
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
2

9
0

 

p
la

ce
s.

 

F
in

d
in

g
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ic
tu

re
 

 

 
it

a
b

le
 

fo
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 d
e

li
ve

r 
th

e
 2

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

  I
t 

is
 n

o
t 

cl
e

a
r 

h
o

w
 m

a
n

y
 p

la
ce

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
, 
b

u
t 

it
 i
s 

a
p

p
a

re
n

t 
th

a
t 

e
xi

st
in

g
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
e

st
a

te
 w

il
l 

n
o

t 
m

e
e

t 
fu

tu
re

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
. 

 

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

in
k
 a

b
o

u
t 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

ve
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
th

a
t 

ca
n

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
te

 f
ro

m
. 

 

Page 125



W
e

 a
re

 a
b

o
u

t 
to

 r
a

is
e

 t
h

e
 p

ri
ce

 p
e

r 
p

la
ce

 t
o

 £
6

/h
r 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 

a
tt

ra
ct

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

r 
m

a
rk

e
t,

 b
u

t 
th

is
 w

il
l 

le
a

ve
 u

s 
w

it
h

 t
o

u
g

h
 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
o

n
 f

u
tu

re
 e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

4
 

1
b

 

£
1

,5
6

0
,0

3
8

 

£
5

7
7

,4
0

2
 

-£
2

8
5

,0
5

9
 

-£
8

6
2

,4
6

1
 

-£
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

-£
5

0
0

,0
0

0
 

£
0

 

£
5

0
0

,0
0

0
 

£
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

£
1

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

 

£
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 
2

0
1

7
/1

8
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

£
6

/h
r 

ra
te

 p
e

r 
ch

il
d

 

 o
n

 p
ri

ce
 

 T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s 
fo

cu
se

d
 o

n
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 e

xi
st

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

m
o

re
 p

la
ce

s,
 b

u
t 

is
 n

o
w

 f
o

cu
si

n
g

 o
n

 a
tt

ra
ct

in
g

 n
e

w
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 

 I
n

it
ia

l m
a

rk
e

t 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

b
y

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
u

g
g

e
st

s 
p

ri
ce

 i
s 

b
ig

g
e

st
 b

a
rr

ie
r 

to
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

  

 W
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 o

ff
e

r 
£

5
.1

8
/h

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
b

u
t 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri

n
g

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s 
o

ff
e

r 
£

6
/h

r.
  M

o
re

 d
e

ta
il

e
d

 m
a

rk
e

t 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

ke
n

, s
o

 i
t 

is
 u

n
cl

e
a

r 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
£

6
/h

r 
w

il
l 

a
tt

ra
ct

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
. 

 A
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
 w

il
l 

b
e

 t
a

ke
n

 a
t 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

to
 u

se
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
D

S
G

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e

 p
ri

ce
 t

o
 6

/h
r 

 t
h

is
 c

a
n

 c
o

ve
r 

co
st

s 
u

n
ti

l 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
6

 

 R
e

ta
in

in
g

 a
 £

6
/h

r 
p

ri
ce

 w
il

l 
se

e
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

sh
o

rt
fa

ll
 b

y
 2

0
1

7
/1

8
 

Page 126



£
2

,4
0

0
,7

6
6

 

£
1

,5
5

7
,0

0
0

 

£
1

,2
2

5
,1

0
0

 

£
1

,3
2

9
,5

0
0

 

E
a

rl
y

 Y
e

a
rs

 P
la

n
n

e
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

D
ir

e
ct

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

in
 c

h
il

d
re

n
's

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

ch
il

d
ca

re
 i

n
 c

h
il

d
re

n
's

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

E
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 t
e

a
m

 (
C

o
u

n
ci

l)
 

H
e

a
lt

h
, 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
se

rv
ic

e
/p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 

3
3

%
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
£

6
.5

m
 e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 s
p

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 

te
a

m
. 

 2
5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 s
p

e
n

t 
o

n
 c

h
il

d
ca

re
 s

u
b

si
d

y
 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

5
 

5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 

ch
il

d
re

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

is
 s

p
e

n
t 

o
n

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

(C
o

rd
is

 B
ri

g
h

t 

re
vi

e
w

, 
2

0
1

3
) 

£
9

6
5

,1
0

0
 i

s 
fu

n
d

e
d

 

b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 a

n
d

 

£
2

6
0

,0
0

0
 c

o
m

e
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 D
S

G
 

T
h

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 c

o
m

e
s 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 D

S
G

 

a
n

d
 is

 a
 c

o
re

 o
ff

e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

in
-h

o
u

se
 

 

T
h

is
 c

o
ve

rs
 1

5
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

(e
.g

. 
sp

e
e

ch
 a

n
d

 la
n

g
u

a
g

e
 

th
e

ra
p

y
, 

b
re

a
st

fe
e

d
in

g
 

su
p

p
o

rt
) 

a
n

d
 in

ci
d

e
n

ta
l 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

ve
 c

o
st

s,
 e

.g
. 

Le
g

a
l 

a
d

vi
ce

 

1
b

 

M
a

n
ch

e
st

e
r 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

to
o

k
 t

h
e

 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 i
ts

e
lf

 

fr
o

m
 d

ir
e

ct
 c

h
il

d
ca

re
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
, 

in
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 s

a
v

e
 £

1
0

m
 

M
a

n
ch

e
st

e
r 

d
e

li
ve

re
d

 1
1

%
 o

f 

th
e

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 in
 t

h
e

 

a
re

a
 

 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 r

a
n

 a
t 

a
 l

o
ss

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 w

a
s 

w
o

rs
e

 t
h

a
n

 P
V

I 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

 In
 2

0
1

0
 i

t 
a

n
n

o
u

n
ce

d
 t

h
a

t 
it

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
b

u
t 

th
a

t 
P

V
Is

 w
o

u
ld

 

b
e

 in
v

it
e

d
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 

sa
m

e
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
 t

h
is

 e
n

su
re

d
 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 r
e

m
a

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
la

ce
d

 

th
e

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 o
f 

e
n

su
ri

n
g

 a
cc

e
ss

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

 T
h

e
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
 s

a
ve

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

£
1

0
m

 f
ro

m
 a

 £
5

3
m

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

Page 127



B
u

t 
w

e
 m

u
st

 g
o

 b
e

yo
n

d
 p

ri
ce

 a
n

d
 t

h
in

k
 m

o
re

 i
n

n
o

va
ti

ve
ly

 

a
b

o
u

t 
e

n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

1
b

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
 o

f 
m

a
rk

e
t 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

  

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
it

se
lf

 a
re

 k
e

y.
  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l s
h

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

is
su

in
g

 a
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 

in
cl

u
d

e
:  

fu
tu

re
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
a

ke
 u

p
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fo

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

ye
a

rs
 i
n

it
ia

ti
ve

s 
(e

.g
. 

tw
o

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 o
ff

e
r)

; 
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
su

p
p

ly
 (

id
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
s 

a
n

d
 

w
e

a
k
n

e
ss

e
s)

; 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s;
  

d
e

si
ra

b
le

 m
o

d
e

ls
 o

f 
p

ra
ct

ic
e

; 
 

d
ri

ve
rs

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

(e
.g

. 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s)
; 

sc
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

va
il

a
b

le
 f

o
r 

in
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
m

a
rk

e
t 

se
g

m
e

n
t;

  

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 c
a

n
 e

xp
e

ct
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

e
 d

e
si

re
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s;
  

h
o

w
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

rs
 i

n
te

n
d

 t
o

 b
e

h
a

ve
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 
th

e
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

6
 

A
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

n
o

v
a

ti
v

e
 w

a
y

s 
to

 a
tt

ra
ct

 t
h

e
 

m
a

rk
e

t.
..

. 

C
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
te

 w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 
co

u
n

ci
l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 

w
id

e
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
 

th
e

 lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

, 
e

.g
. 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
d

u
lt

 d
a

y
 c

a
re

, 
o

r 

d
e

li
ve

ri
n

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
p

o
o

r 
q

u
a

li
ty

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

 O
ff

e
r 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
in

ce
n

ti
v

e
s

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 P

V
I 

m
a

rk
e

t 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 p
re

m
is

e
s 

fr
o

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
te

; 
o

r 
M

a
n

ch
e

st
e

r 
m

a
k

in
g

 o
ld

 i
n

-

h
o

u
se

 p
re

m
is

e
s 

a
va

il
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u

rp
o

se
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
to

 o
p

e
ra

te
 f

ro
m

 

  

Page 128



S
u

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

 A
re

a
s 

o
f 

fo
cu

s 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

7
 

F
in

d
in

g
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 

p
re

m
is

e
s 

S
h

o
rt

 T
e

rm
  

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

  
A

re
a

 

sh
o

u
ld

 c
o

v
e

r:
 

e
xh

a
u

st
in

g
 f

in
a

l c
o

u
n

ci
l p

re
m

is
e

s 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
-b

a
se

d
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 P

V
Is

 t
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 

ch
il

d
ca

re
  

re
-e

xa
m

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 id

e
n

ti
fy

 

in
ce

n
ti

v
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 e
.g

. 
p

re
m

is
e

s 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

su
b

si
d

y
 

 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 im
m

e
d

ia
te

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

g
a

p
, 

to
 id

e
n

ti
fy

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 £
6

/h
r 

p
ri

ce
 c

a
n

 c
o

m
e

 

d
o

w
n

 a
s 

e
co

n
o

m
ie

s 
o

f 
sc

a
le

 a
re

 a
ch

ie
v

e
d

, 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

th
e

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
 c

a
n

 b
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 

E
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

is
 p

ri
m

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 o
n

ce
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 o
n

 £
6

/h
r 

ra
te

 i
s 

ta
k

e
n

 

R
e

-e
xa

m
in

e
 e

xi
st

in
g

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 

co
n

si
d

e
r:

 

re
-c

a
li

b
ra

ti
n

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
sp

e
n

d
 in

 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
to

w
a

rd
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 t

e
a

m
 s

p
e

n
d

 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

to
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 s
u

b
si

d
y

 

 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
p

re
m

is
e

s 
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

b
o

rd
e

rs
 

        

Is
su

e
 a

 m
a

rk
e

t 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

Lo
o

k
 f

o
r 

w
id

e
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 

C
o

n
si

d
e

r 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l i

n
ce

n
ti

v
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

A
tt

ra
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 

m
a

rk
e

t 

1
 

1
a

 

1
b

 

Page 129



A
rg

u
a

b
ly

, 
q

u
a

li
ty

 i
s 

th
e

 m
o

st
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
o

u
r 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
H

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 h

a
s 

a
 

 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

8
 

S
u

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

A
cc

e
ss

 

1
 

3
 

2

A
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 a

 h
ig

h
 o

r 
m

e
d

iu
m

 q
u

a
li

ty
 p

re
-s

ch
o

o
l 

h
a

s 
a

 l
a

st
in

g
 e

ff
e

ct
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
ra

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s,

 a
n

d
 p

re
-

sc
h

o
o

l 
q

u
a

li
ty

 is
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

p
re

d
ic

to
r 

o
f 

la
te

r 
K

e
y

 S
ta

g
e

 2
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 i

n
 b

o
th

 E
n

g
li

sh
 a

n
d

 

M
a

th
e

m
a

ti
cs

 (
E

P
P

S
E

 3
 t

o
 1

6
 s

tu
d

y,
 S

ir
a

j-
B

la
tc

h
fo

rd
, 

I 
e

t 
a

l,
 2

0
1

1
) 

W
e

 h
a

ve
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 3

 k
e

y
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

fo
r 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

: 
 

a
)

Im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

b
)

Im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

ch
il

d
ca

re
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y

 

y
e

a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

  

c)
O

u
r 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

m
u

st
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 i

m
p

ro
v

in
g

  

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

  
  

 

2
 

 

Page 130



T
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
s 

ke
y

 a
n

d
 w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a

ve
 

b
a

se
li

n
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 a
ss

e
ss

 h
o

w
 b

e
st

 t
o

 d
ri

ve
 u

p
 t

h
e

 

q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

h
a

t 
d

e
li

ve
r 

e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

  

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

9
 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 d
ri

v
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

  

B
e

x
le

y
 h

a
v

e
 d

o
n

e
 a

 l
o

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 

th
e

ir
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 

a
n

d
 h

a
v

e
 r

o
ll

e
d

 o
u

t 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
im

e
d

 

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
b

o
th

 c
h

il
d

m
in

d
e

rs
 a

n
d

 P
V

Is
) 

th
a

t 
a

re
 d

e
li

v
e

ri
n

g
 e

a
rl

y
 

y
e

a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
2

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s.
 A

s 
a

 r
e

su
lt

 t
h

e
y

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

e
n

 a
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 O
fs

te
d

 r
a

ti
n

g
s.

  

B
e

xl
e

y
 h

a
v

e
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 le
a

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

A
 r

o
b

u
st

 s
k

il
ls

 a
u

d
it

 w
a

s 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

n
 a

 s
e

lf
-a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
b

a
si

s,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l i

n
v

it
e

d
 e

xp
re

ss
io

n
s 

o
f 

in
te

re
st

 f
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

. 
T

h
e

se
 w

e
re

 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l c
o

n
cl

u
d

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 m
o

st
 v

a
lu

e
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
o

se
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 t

h
e

 E
Y

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

2
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s  

A
 t

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

w
a

s 
a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 t
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

b
o

th
 c

o
re

 /
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

tr
a

in
in

g
 (

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 e
tc

) 
a

n
d

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
s 

G
o

o
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 is
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

ro
v

id
e

r,
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 k
e

y
 t

o
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 

D
e

sk
 b

a
se

d
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
h

a
s 

sh
o

w
n

 t
h

a
t 

o
th

e
r 

LA
s 

h
a

v
e

 m
o

re
 r

o
b

u
st

 M
I 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 in

 t
h

e
ir

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
d

e
li

v
e

r 
e

a
rl

y
 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 p

la
ce

s 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
: 

n
o

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

re
e

 

E
n

ti
tl

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
3

 &
 4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 
fo

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

st
a

ff
 t

o
 t

h
e

 L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 o

n
 r

e
q

u
e

st
  

 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

se
a

rc
h

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

ts
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

 o
f 

q
u

a
li

ty
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 

a
ch

ie
v

in
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

  

T
h

e
 q

u
a

li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
st

a
ff

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
tt

in
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

s 
q

u
a

li
ty

  

B
e

tt
e

r 
q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 t
e

a
m

s 
o

ff
e

r 
h

ig
h

e
r 

q
u

a
li

ty
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

(3
0

 

m
o

n
th

s 
to

 5
 y

e
a

rs
) 

ch
il

d
re

n
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

, l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

, 

li
te

ra
cy

, r
e

a
so

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

th
e

m
a

ti
ca

l s
k

il
ls

1
  

 T
h

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

a
 g

ra
d

u
a

te
 l

e
a

d
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

s 
th

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

se
tt

in
g

s2
 

 H
a

v
in

g
 a

 q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 t

e
a

ch
e

r 
in

 a
n

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 s
e

tt
in

g
 h

a
s 

th
e

 g
re

a
te

st
 

im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 q
u

a
li

ty
3

S
e

tt
in

g
s 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 h
ig

h
e

r 
q

u
a

li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
(e

sp
e

ci
a

ll
y

 t
ra

in
e

d
 

te
a

ch
e

rs
) 

sh
o

w
 h

ig
h

e
r 

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 m
a

k
e

 m
o

re
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 

 S
tr

o
n

g
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 m
a

k
e

s 
a

 s
e

tt
in

g
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
5
 

S
tr

o
n

g
 le

a
d

e
rs

 s
e

e
k

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
, 

h
o

ld
 t

h
e

ir
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 a
cc

o
u

n
t,

 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
y

 h
a

v
e

 a
 w

e
ll

-q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
e

ir
 s

ta
ff

 

h
a

v
e

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

S
tr

o
n

g
 le

a
d

e
rs

 
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

 o
f 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

in
g

 

g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

s 
w

it
h

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
f 

in
v

o
lv

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 in
 t

h
e

ir
 

T
ic

k
e

ll
 R

e
v

ie
w

) 
 

1
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ra
d

u
a

te
 L

e
a

d
e

r 
F

u
n

d
 F

in
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

, 
M

a
th

e
rs

 S
 e

t 
a

l,
 (

2
0

1
1

) 
 

2
 E

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 
p

re
-s

ch
o

o
l 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, 

S
y

lv
a

, 
K

 e
t 

a
l 

(2
0

0
4

) 
 

3
 G

e
tt

in
g

 it
 r

ig
h

t 
fi

rs
t 

ti
m

e
, 

O
fs

te
d

, 
(J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

) 

 

  
  

  
  

 

2
a

 

W
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

o
ld

 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

 o
n

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

W
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
k

n
o

w
 h

o
w

 m
a

n
y

 le
v
e

l 3
 q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 s
ta

ff
, 

q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 

te
a

ch
e

rs
 o

r 
g

ra
d

u
a

te
 le

a
d

e
rs

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 w
it

h
in

 s
e

tt
in

g
s 

 

W
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

a
v

e
 d

a
ta

 o
n

 t
h

e
 le

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 w
it

h
in

 s
e

tt
in

g
s 

 

Page 131



..
.b

u
t 

th
e

re
 i

s 
st

il
l 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 o
u

r 
st

a
ti

st
ic

a
l 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rs

 a
n

d
 L

o
n

d
o

n
  

             

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

d
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 o
u

r 
o

v
e

ra
ll

 q
u

a
li

ty
 p

ic
tu

re
..

..
 

             D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

0
 

T
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

ch
il

d
ca

re
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 n
e

e
d

s 

to
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

 q
u

ic
k

ly
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l

e
ve

l 
o

f 
a

m
b

it
io

n
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

 

2
b

 

9
%

 
6

2
%

 

5
7

%
 

2
5

%
 

3
5

%
 

S
ta

ti
st

ic
a

l 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rs

 

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

A
ll

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 -
 l

a
te

st
 O

fs
te

d
 r

a
ti

n
g

 a
s 

a
t 

A
u

g
u

st
 

2
0

1
3

 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

G
o

o
d

  

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 

In
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

  

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

 A
ll

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 (
P

V
Is

 a
n

d
 c

h
il

d
m

in
d

e
rs

) 

A
u

g
 1

3
 

 A
u

g
 1

2
 

A
u

g
 1

1
 

A
u

g
 1

0
 

A
u

g
 0

9
 

N
e

a
rl

y
 4

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
in

 q
u

a
li

ty
 a

cc
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 O

fs
te

d
 -

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 s
e

tt
in

g
s 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 f

a
st

e
r 

to
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 g

iv
e

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 t
h

e
 b

e
st

 s
ta

rt
 in

 l
if

e
 

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 s

e
tt

in
g

s 
- 

th
e

 e
xp

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 t
h

a
t 

O
fs

te
d

 r
a

ti
n

g
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 i

s 
n

o
t 

g
o

o
d

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 g

re
a

te
r 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

, 
a

n
d

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 q

u
a

li
ty

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

o
re

 v
is

ib
le

 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

A
 d

e
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

il
l 

re
in

fo
rc

e
 t

h
e

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
 o

f 
q

u
a

li
ty

 -
 C

Y
P

S
 p

la
n

 t
o

 d
e

si
g

n
 a

 d
e

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

P
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

 O
fs

te
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 r

a
ti

n
g

s 
a

re
 i
n

 p
la

ce
, 

h
o

w
e

ve
r 

th
e

 le
ve

l 
o

f 
sc

ru
ti

n
y

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 t

o
 d

ri
ve

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 i
s 

u
n

cl
e

a
r 

 

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 b

o
th

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 q
u

a
li

ty
 i

ss
u

e
s 

W
h

e
re

 a
 s

e
tt

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t,
 o

r 
is

 i
n

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 a

s 
ju

d
g

e
d

 b
y

 O
fs

te
d

, 
in

te
rn

a
l p

ro
ce

ss
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

a
t 

a
n

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
w

il
l 

v
is

it
 t

h
e

 s
it

e
 

w
it

h
in

 1
0

 o
r 

5
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

ys
 r

e
sp

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 

In
 B

e
xl

e
y,

 a
n

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
w

il
l 

m
e

e
t 

o
r 

sp
e

a
k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 O
fs

te
d

 in
sp

e
ct

o
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 d

a
y

 o
f 

th
e

 in
sp

e
ct

io
n

 w
h

e
re

 p
o

ss
ib

le
, 

a
n

d
 a

lw
a

ys
 v

is
it

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 t
o

 

a
g

re
e

 t
h

e
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
xt

 d
a

y
 

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

-t
h

in
k
 t

h
e

 m
o

d
e

ls
 d

e
si

g
n

e
d

 t
o

 d
ri

ve
 q

u
a

li
ty

 f
o

r 
, 

ch
il

d
m

in
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 P

V
Is

 

W
it

h
in

 s
ch

o
o

ls
, 

th
e

 g
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

is
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 s

ch
o

o
ls

/a
ca

d
e

m
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
o

se
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
. 
 

Page 132



T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

u
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 
 t

o
 g

e
t 

m
o

re
 r

o
b

u
st

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

 r
o

u
ti

n
e

 b
a

si
s 

  T
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

ch
il

d
m

in
d

e
rs

 h
a

s 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
, 

b
u

t 
o

v
e

r 
a

 t
h

ir
d

 s
ti

ll
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t.
 W

e
 n

e
e

d
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
 t

h
a

t 
co

n
si

d
e

rs
 t

h
e

 

li
m

it
e

d
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 in

 s
p

a
ce

. 
 

          O
n

ly
 a

 h
a

n
d

fu
l o

f 
ch

il
d

m
in

d
e

rs
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
th

e
 E

Y
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
2

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 

3
&

4
 E

Y
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 e
xp

a
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 c

h
il

d
m

in
d

e
rs

 in
 2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 u
p

ta
k

e
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
lo

w
 

T
h

e
 g

o
v

t 
is

 le
g

is
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 c
h

il
d

m
in

d
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

to
 b

e
 s

e
t-

u
p

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

b
il

l,
 a

n
d

 s
e

v
e

ra
l l

o
ca

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

a
re

 t
ri

a
ll

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
. 

A
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
su

p
p

o
rt

 c
h

il
d

m
in

d
e

rs
 

w
it

h
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 a

d
v

ic
e

, 
w

h
il

e
 m

a
k

in
g

 it
 e

a
si

e
r 

fo
r 

p
a

re
n

ts
 t

o
 

a
cc

e
ss

 h
o

m
e

-b
a

se
d

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

. 
T

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
h

o
p

e
s 

th
e

 a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
w

il
l 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 m

o
re

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 in

to
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

  

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

to
 i

n
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 q

u
a

li
ty

 a
cr

o
ss

 

ch
il

d
m

in
d

e
rs

, 
P

V
Is

 a
n

d
 

 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

1
 

2
b

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

 C
h

il
d

m
in

d
e

rs
 

A
u

g
 1

3
 

 A
u

g
 1

2
 

A
u

g
 1

1
 

A
u

g
 1

0
 

A
u

g
 0

9
 

S
N

s 
A

u
g

 1
3

 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 in
 i

m
p

ro
v

in
g

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

P
V

Is
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
 p

a
ce

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

sl
o

w
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
g

g
e

st
s 

a
 s

te
p

-c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 o
u

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 

is
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

  

      S
ch

e
m

e
  

O
f 

o
u

r 
7

1
 P

V
Is

, 
8

4
%

 t
a

k
e

 p
a

rt
 in

 t
h

e
 a

cc
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

 s
ch

e
m

e
 (

o
f 

th
e

 1
2

 t
h

a
t 

O
fs

te
d

, 4
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 2
 a

re
 

in
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

) 

T
h

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

ts
 t

h
e

 p
o

o
re

st
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
P

V
I 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 a
re

 

O
b

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

, A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
, I

n
cl

u
si

v
e

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

  

    

1
8

%
5

9
%

 

6
2

%
 

2
1

%
 

3
8

%
 

S
ta

ti
st

ic
a

l 
 

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
- 

la
te

st
 O

fs
te

d
 r

a
ti

n
g

 a
s 

a
t 

A
u

g
u

st
 

 

1
2

%
 

6
1

%
 

5
6

%
 

2
2

%
 

3
3

%
 

7
%

 

S
ta

ti
st

ic
a

l 
 

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

P
V

Is
 (

ch
il

d
ca

re
 o

n
 d

o
m

e
st

ic
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-d

o
m

e
st

ic
 p

re
m

is
e

s)
 -

 

la
te

st
 O

fs
te

d
 r

a
ti

n
g

 a
s 

a
t 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

3
 

0
 

1
0

 
2

0
 

3
0

 
4

0
 

5
0

 
6

0
 

In
cl

u
si

v
e

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
 

P
a

re
n

ts
 a

s 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

O
A

P
 

P
la

y
 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
ch

e
m

e
 

ra
ti

n
g

s

P
re

-

b
ro

n
ze

 

B
ro

n
ze

 

Page 133



D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

2
 

O
u

r 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
m

u
st

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
  

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

h
il

d
re

n
  

  

W
it

h
in

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y,
 t

h
e

 C
o

rd
is

 B
ri

g
h

t 
R

e
v

ie
w

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 m

o
re

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
ti

n
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 

 

C
e

n
tr

e
s 

o
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 m

e
a

su
re

 i
m

p
a

ct
  

 O
u

r 
fi

e
ld

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s 

re
in

fo
rc

e
d

 t
h

is
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
, 
a

s 
th

e
re

 is
 s

ti
ll

 

ve
ry

 li
tt

le
 m

e
a

su
re

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 

 T
h

e
re

 is
 n

o
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 r
o

b
u

st
ly

 m
e

a
su

re
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 

in
ve

st
in

g
 t

h
e

 D
ir

e
ct

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl

y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 G
ra

n
t 

in
 c

h
il

d
ca

re
 

1
 M

o
re

 G
re

a
t 

C
h

il
d

ca
re

, 
D

fE
, 

Ja
n

 2
0

1
3

  

2
 B

e
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
 f

o
r 

a
 S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
, 

Ju
ly

 2
0

1
3

 

3
 C

o
n

ce
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

g
e

 2
, 

W
a

ve
 T

ru
st

  

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

se
a

rc
h

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

ts
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

 o
f 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

 f
o

cu
se

d
 

a
ct

iv
it

y
  

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 le

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 

th
e

 E
Y

F
S

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 w

id
e

ly
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d

1
, 

a
n

d
 it

 i
s 

li
ke

ly
 t

h
a

t 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 in
sp

e
ct

io
n

 w
il

l 
m

o
ve

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

fr
o

m
 f

o
cu

ss
in

g
 o

n
 

p
ro

ce
ss

 t
o

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 

 ch
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

th
e

y
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 o

ve
r 

th
e

 lo
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
, 

a
t 

le
a

st
 

u
n

ti
l t

h
e

 p
o

in
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 c

h
il

d
 s

ta
rt

s 
sc

h
o

o
l2

 

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 g

iv
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
e

m
p

h
a

si
s 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
th

a
t 

w
il

l 
im

p
ro

ve
 c

h
il

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s3

 
 2
c 

 

Le
w

is
h

a
m

 u
se

 a
 p

a
y

m
e

n
t 

b
y

 r
e

su
lt

s 
(P

B
R

) 
m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

 w
it

h
 

su
cc

e
ss

 o
f 

m
o

d
e

l 
u

n
ti

l 
th

e
 n

e
x

t 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 

y
e

a
r,

 t
h

e
y

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

e
n

 

a
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
 i

m
p

a
ct

 o
n

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 r
e

ce
iv

e
, 

a
n

d
 a

 s
h

if
t 

in
 a

tt
it

u
d

e
s 

to
w

a
rd

s 

fo
cu

ss
in

g
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s.

  

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
e

n
 o

ve
r 

a
 1

0
 m

o
n

th
 p

e
ri

o
d

 

 T
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 r
a

n
 w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s 

o
n

 f
o

cu
ss

in
g

 o
n

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s,
 a

n
d

 

a
ss

e
m

b
le

d
 c

a
se

 s
tu

d
ie

s 
 

 T
h

e
 P

B
R

 c
o

m
p

ri
se

s 
o

f 
1

5
%

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 r

e
a

ch
in

g
 n

e
w

 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 f

a
m

il
ie

s,
 a

n
d

 1
5

%
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

: 
 

 -
 I

m
p

ro
ve

d
 p

a
re

n
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

tt
a

ch
m

e
n

t 
 

 -
 I

m
p

ro
ve

d
 s

ch
o

o
l 

re
a

d
in

e
ss

 

 -
 P

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
sc

a
la

ti
o

n
 

 

Page 134



D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

3
 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
li

ty
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
  

E
n

su
re

 h
ig

h
 

q
u

a
li

ty
 c

h
il

d
ca

re
  

S
h

o
rt

 T
e

rm
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

  
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
  

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
se

li
n

e
 v

ia
 a

 s
k
il

ls
 a

u
d

it
  

P
ro

d
u

ce
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

la
n

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

n
si

d
e

rs
 

su
st

a
in

a
b

il
it

y
  

  E
m

b
e

d
 r

o
b

u
st

 M
I 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

D
e

si
g

n
 a

 p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
ch

a
ll

e
n

g
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

si
n

g
 

th
is

 d
a

ta
 

 a
n

d
 e

n
su

re
 s

tr
o

n
g

 a
n

a
ly

ti
ca

l 

ca
p

a
b

il
it

y
 is

 e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

 in
 C

Y
P

S
 

D
e

si
g

n
 a

 d
e

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

  

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 g
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

  

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 t

o
 b

u
il

d
 a

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 f

o
r 

P
V

Is
 

Le
a

rn
 f

ro
m

 c
h

il
d

m
in

d
e

r 
a

g
e

n
cy

 p
il

o
ts

 a
n

d
 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
 

 A
g

re
e

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

(w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

u
rg

e
n

t 
g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 

re
v

is
e

d
 O

fs
te

d
 in

sp
e

ct
io

n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 t

h
e

 lo
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 

su
b

st
a

n
ti

a
ll

y
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 d
a

ta
, 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 t

o
 

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

) 
 

  

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

la
n

s 
to

 a
tt

ra
ct

 m
o

re
 

g
ra

d
u

a
te

s,
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
ce

sh
ip

s,
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

 

li
n

ks
 w

it
h

 T
e

a
ch

 F
ir

st
  

 

P
ro

d
u

ce
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
h

o
w

 

b
e

st
 w

e
 o

ff
e

r 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 t

o
 

T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
si

d
e

r:
 

 -
 p

e
e

r-
to

-p
e

e
r 

 -
 e

xp
e

rt
is

e
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 a
n

d
 f

ro
m

 l
o

ca
l 

  
 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

 

     

P
il

o
t 

a
 p

a
y

m
e

n
t 

b
y

 r
e

su
lt

s 
m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

 

  

2
 

Q
u

a
li

ty
: 

A
re

a
s 

o
f 

fo
cu

s 
 

Fo
cu

s 
o

n
 

im
p

ro
v

in
g

  

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 

2
a

 

2
b

 

2
c 

Page 135



A
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

m
u

st
 b

e
 i

m
p

ro
ve

d
 i

n
 o

rd
e

r 
fo

r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
to

 b
e

 a
ch

ie
ve

d
 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

4
 

S
u

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

A
cc

e
ss

 

1
 

3
 

2
 

W
e

 h
a

ve
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 3

 k
e

y
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s 

fo
r 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

: 
 

a
)

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 t
a

k
e

-u
p

 o
f 

e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 p

la
ce

s 
fo

r 
3

 &
 4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s,
 a

n
d

 

e
li

g
ib

le
 2

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 
 

b
)

R
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
th

a
t 

o
ff

e
r 

 

c)
Im

p
ro

v
e

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 

th
o

se
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
e

d
 i

t 
m

o
st

  

3
 

T
h

e
 r

e
v

is
e

d
 O

fs
te

d
 in

sp
e

ct
io

n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
(M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
) 

e
m

p
h

a
si

se
s 

th
a

t 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 b

e
 'g

o
o

d
' a

 c
e

n
tr

e
 it

 w
il

l 
n

e
e

d
 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

: 

 k
n

o
w

 o
f 

m
o

st
 (

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 8

0
%

) 
fa

m
il

ie
s 

w
it

h
 y

o
u

n
g

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 a
re

a
, 

a
n

d
 id

e
n

ti
fy

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g

ro
u

p
s 

a
m

o
n

g
 t

h
e

m
 (

e
g

. 
lo

n
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
, 

lo
w

 i
n

co
m

e
 f

a
m

il
ie

s,
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 in

 n
e

e
d

 o
r 

w
it

h
 c

h
il

d
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

 e
tc

) 
th

e
n

, 
 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

se
t 

o
f 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 t
h

o
se

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g

ro
u

p
s,

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
 '

la
rg

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

' (
ie

. 
6

5
-7

9
%

) 
a

re
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

ce
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 h

a
ve

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

, 
a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 a

b
o

u
t 

e
a

rl
y

 c
h

il
d

h
o

o
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 

h
a

ve
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s 

to
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 t

ra
ck

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
, e

n
su

re
 t

a
ke

-u
p

 o
f 

e
a

rl
y

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 e

tc
 

 W
e

 a
ls

o
 h

a
ve

 a
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

re
ss

u
re

 t
o

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 p
la

ce
s 

fi
ll

e
d

. 
F

ro
m

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

, 
2

 y
e

a
r-

o
ld

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
il

l 
b

e
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
la

ce
s 

fi
ll

e
d

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

ir
st

 r
e

fe
re

n
ce

 p
o

in
t 

b
e

in
g

 t
a

ke
 u

p
 a

s 
a

t 
Ja

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
5

. 
 

Page 136



W
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 f

il
l 

7
1

%
 o

f 
2

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 p
la

ce
s.

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 r

is
k

 t
h

a
t 

m
o

re
 

p
la

ce
s 

w
il

l 
g

o
 u

n
fi

ll
e

d
 a

s 
w

e
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
la

ce
s 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 

           

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

la
ce

s 
p

ro
v

id
e

d
 w

il
l b

e
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
d

 b
y

 1
8

%
 a

s 
o

f 
Ja

n
 2

0
1

4
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

la
ce

s 
a

re
 i

n
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 in

 w
a

rd
s 

w
h

ic
h

 d
o

 n
o

t 
fi

ll
 t

h
e

 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
p

la
ce

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v

e
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 

1
0

 p
la

ce
s 

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

  b
y

 H
a

ck
n

e
y

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
 y

e
t 

n
o

n
e

 a
re

 f
il

le
d

 

S
e

cu
ri

n
g

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
ce

 o
f 

2
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s 

is
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

a
s 

re
se

a
rc

h
 h

a
s 

sh
o

w
n

 

th
a

t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

st
a

rt
 (

e
g

 u
n

d
e

r 
a

g
e

 3
) 

is
 r

e
la

te
d

  t
o

 b
e

tt
e

r 
in

te
ll

e
ct

u
a

l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

0
 

2
0

 

4
0

 

6
0

 

8
0

 

1
0

0
 

1
2

0
 

1
4

0
 

2
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
 p

la
ce

s 
 

P
la

ce
s 

u
n

fi
lle

d
 

P
la

ce
s 

fi
lle

d
 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

p
la

ce
 

d
u

e
 f

o
r 

Ja
n

 2
0

1
4

 

W
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 f

il
l 

9
0

%
 o

f 
3

 &
 4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 p
la

ce
s.

  

            O
u

r 
3

 y
e

a
r 

fi
ll

 r
a

te
 i
s 

8
4

%
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 o
u

r 
b

e
tt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 in
 4

 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 
o

f 
9

5
%

 

Is
li

n
g

to
n

, o
u

r 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, p

e
rf

o
rm

 v
e

ry
 w

e
ll

 a
t 

ta
k

e
 u

p
 o

f 
3

 

&
 4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

. 
U

p
o

n
 in

v
e

st
ig

a
ti

o
n

, w
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

a
te

 i
s 

lo
w

e
r 

a
m

o
n

g
st

 Is
li

n
g

to
n

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 a
re

 a
 n

e
t 

im
p

o
rt

e
r 

fr
o

m
 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri

n
g

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s,
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

  

  D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

5
 

To
 a

ch
ie

ve
 b

e
tt

e
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
5

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s,
 w

e
 m

u
st

 

in
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 t
a

k
e

-u
p

 o
f 

o
u

r 
e

a
rl

y
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 p
la

ce
s 

 

P
a

re
n

ts
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 h

a
v

e
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 f

u
ll

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

 
 lo

ca
l q

u
a

li
ty

, 
a

v
a

il
a

b
il

it
y

 a
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
o

si
ti

v
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 t
h

a
t 

it
 c

a
n

 b
ri

n
g

, 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 m

a
k

in
g

 in
fo

rm
e

d
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

a
b

o
u

t 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
to

 u
se

 i
t 

(C
h

il
d

ca
re

 m
a

tt
e

rs
) 

  

G
e

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
im

in
g

 r
ig

h
t 

in
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 i
s 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t,
 a

s 
is

 r
e

co
g

n
is

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

so
m

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 d
o

 n
o

t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 

n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 c
h

il
d

  

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 m
o

re
 c

h
o

ic
e

, 
b

y
 i

) 
m

a
k

in
g

 it
 e

a
si

e
r 

fo
r 

q
u

a
li

ty
 c

h
il

d
m

in
d

e
rs

 t
o

 o
p

e
ra

te
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
; 

ii
) 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
m

o
re

 E
Y

 

p
la

ce
s 

a
n

d
 i

ii
) 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 t

a
k

e
-u

p
 b

y
 P

V
Is

 (
M

o
re

 G
re

a
t 

C
h

il
d

ca
re

) 

3
a

 7
5

 

8
0

 

8
5

 

9
0

 

9
5

 

1
0

0
 

2
0

0
9

 
2

0
1

0
 

2
0

1
1

 
2

0
1

2
 

2
0

1
3

 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
re

e
 a

n
d

 f
o

u
r 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s 
ta

k
in

g
  

u
p

 a
 f

re
e

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 p
la

ce
 

S
N

 T
Q

 

S
N

 M
e

d
ia

n
 

S
N

 B
Q

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

Is
lin

g
to

n
 

Page 137



 

  

     
   0

 

2
0

 

4
0

 

6
0

 

8
0

 

1
0

0
 

A
ct

u
a

l 
se

e
n

 v
s 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

ta
 

%
 T

a
rg

e
t 

S
e

e
n

 

(R
e

a
ch

 

2
0

1
3

-1
4

) 

%
 0

-4
y

r 

o
ld

s 
S

e
e

n
 

b
y

 A
LL

 

C
C

s 

0
 

2
0

 

4
0

 

6
0

 

8
0

 

1
0

0
 

1
2

0
 

A
ct

u
a

l 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 v

s 
ta

rg
e

t 
d

a
ta

 

%
 T

a
rg

e
t 

R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
s 

(2
0

1
3

-

1
4

) 

%
 0

-4
y

r 

o
ld

s 

re
g

is
te

re
d

 

b
y

 A
LL

 C
C

s 

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 r
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
th

a
t 

o
ff

e
r 

so
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 c
a

n
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

 t
h

e
y

 h
a

ve
  

ce
n

tr
e

s 
 

A
s 

h
ig

h
li

g
h

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
rd

is
 B

ri
g

h
t 

re
v

ie
w

, 
th

e
 r

e
v

is
e

d
 i

n
sp

e
ct

io
n

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

, 
h

a
s 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

im
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
, 

o
u

tr
e

a
ch

 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fa

m
il

ie
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s 

a
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
ff

e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 

re
a

ch
 a

re
a

. 
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 a
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

o
n

 

o
ff

e
r,

 a
n

d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 (

e
.g

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
) 

C
e

n
tr

e
s 

o
ff

e
r,

 w
h

ic
h

 l
im

it
s 

th
e

ir
 a

b
il

it
y

 t
o

 s
ig

n
 p

o
st

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 v
e

ry
 f

e
w

 r
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
ro

m
 J

o
b

 C
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s 

(l
in

k
s 

u
se

d
 t

o
 b

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

w
h

e
n

 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
w

a
s 

in
 p

la
ce

) 

 

T
h

e
re

 is
 a

 c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
si

lo
 w

o
rk

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 a
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

b
e

tt
e

r 
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

3
b

 

o
f 

ch
il

d
re

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 h
a

v
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

  

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 a
g

a
in

st
 r

e
a

ch
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 7

9
%

, 
a

n
d

 7
5

%
 a

g
a

in
st

 s
e

e
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 

 

 

   

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
  

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

 is
su

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
a

is
e

d
 a

s 
a

 b
a

rr
ie

r 
to

 a
ch

ie
v

in
g

 b
e

tt
e

r 
o

u
tr

e
a

ch
. T

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

 r
e

co
g

n
is

e
 t

h
e

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
 o

f 
o

u
tr

e
a

ch
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

to
 h

a
v

e
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s 
o

f 
ro

a
d

 s
h

o
w

s 
to

 in
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
. 

 

T
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

e
m

p
h

a
si

s 
o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

a
s 

o
p

p
o

se
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 (
S

e
le

ct
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

) 
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

se
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

u
tr

e
a

ch
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

su
ff

e
ri

n
g

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 r

is
k

 f
a

ct
o

rs
 

(W
a

v
e

 2
) 

T
h

e
 E

a
rl

y
 H

e
lp

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

in
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

lo
w

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 lo

w
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ce
/l

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 a

b
il

it
y

 t
o

 a
cc

e
ss

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 

Page 138



D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

7
 

..
.a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 q
u

a
li

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
fo

r 
th

o
se

 t
h

a
t 

n
e

e
d

 i
t 

m
o

st
  

3
c 

In
 h

ig
h

e
r 

d
e

p
ri

va
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
s 

w
e

 h
a

ve
 m

o
re

 c
h

il
d

ca
re

, 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 

ch
il

d
ca

re
 o

f 
a

 l
o

w
e

r 
q

u
a

li
ty

 
0

%
 

2
0

%
 

4
0

%
 

6
0

%
 

8
0

%
 

1
0

0
%

 

Le
a

st
 d

e
p

ri
ve

d
 

Le
ss

 d
e

p
ri

ve
d

 

A
ve

ra
g

e
 

D
e

p
ri

ve
d

 

M
o

st
 d

e
p

ri
ve

d
 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
 c

h
il

d
ca

re
 a

g
a

in
st

 d
e

p
ri

va
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
  

 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 

G
o

o
d

 

S
a

ti
sf

a
ct

o
ry

 

In
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 

4
6

 

2
6

 

3
 

1
8

9
 

1
9

 

th
e

re
 is

 a
 l

a
ck

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 P
V

Is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
tt

e
n

h
a

m
 a

re
a

 

W
h

il
st

 
a

p
p

e
a

r 
to

 b
e

 l
o

ca
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

la
ce

s 
o

f 

g
re

a
te

st
 n

e
e

d
, 

th
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

  

Page 139



In
cr

e
a

se
 u

p
ta

ke
 o

f 

e
a

rl
y

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
  

R
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 o

f 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
o

ff
e

r 
 

S
h

o
rt

 T
e

rm
  

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

  
A

re
a

 

P
u

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

 n
e

w
 m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
, 

e
n

su
ri

n
g

 

m
a

te
ri

a
l i

s 
le

ss
 g

e
n

e
ri

c 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
u

d
ie

n
ce

 i
s 

b
e

tt
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 

 a
ls

o
 a

n
a

ly
se

 w
h

y
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

re
 u

si
n

g
 I

sl
in

g
to

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 

 Li
n

k
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

ce
n

tr
e

s,
 l

e
is

u
re

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

a
n

d
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s 

P
ro

vi
d

e
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
 a

 c
le

a
r 

p
ic

tu
re

 a
s 

to
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 

ch
il

d
re

n
's

 c
e

n
tr

e
s,

 n
u

rs
e

ri
e

s,
 P

V
Is

 a
re

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 

sm
o

o
th

e
r 

a
d

m
is

si
o

n
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 

P
ro

m
o

te
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 o
u

tr
e

a
ch

 

R
u

n
 r

e
fr

e
sh

e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

so
ci

a
l w

o
rk

e
rs

 s
o

 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n

 

a
s 

a
d

vo
ca

te
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

   U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
n

 g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l d

a
ta

 o
f 

P
V

Is
 t

o
 i

n
fo

rm
 q

u
a

li
ty

 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s 
a

n
d

 

st
ra

te
g

ie
s 

to
 g

ro
w

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

to
 i

n
fo

rm
 a

 n
e

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 

to
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 a

cc
e

ss
, 

u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
e

d
 b

y
 r

o
b

u
st

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
ta

il
s 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 

th
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
a

n
d

 b
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

a
cr

o
ss

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
. 

 

M
a

k
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

li
n

k
 w

it
h

 G
P

s 

a
n

d
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 i

m
p

ro
vi

n
g

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

s 
w

it
h

 

p
ri

va
te

 n
u

rs
e

ri
e

s 

  E
n

su
re

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
/d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 e
a

rl
y 

y
e

a
rs

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 a
re

 

st
ra

te
g

ic
a

ll
y
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

ll
y
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 

         C
o

n
si

d
e

r 
w

id
e

r 
ro

ll
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 E
a

rl
y 

H
e

lp
 p

il
o

ts
 

(s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
su

lt
s)

 

  

3
 

A
cc

e
ss

: 
A

re
a

s 
o

f 
fo

cu
s 

 

3
a

 

3
b

 

A
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 q
u

a
li

ty
 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
 

3
c 

Page 140



To
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
o

re
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
d

e
li

ve
ry

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 m
u

st
 c

o
ll

a
b

o
ra

te
 

in
te

g
ra

te
 t

h
e

 

d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

9
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 m
u

st
 c

o
ll

a
b

o
ra

te
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 c

h
il

d
 t

o
 5

 y
e

a
rs

-o
ld

 

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 o

f 
ke

y
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
/d

a
ta

 o
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l c

h
il

d
re

n
 is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 a

d
 h

o
c,

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

p
ro

to
co

l 

in
 p

la
ce

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

h
il

d
 i
n

 l
a

te
r 

ye
a

rs
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 m

u
ch

 e
a

rl
ie

r 
o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
. 

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 

h
e

lp
 w

it
h

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

su
p

p
o

rt
, p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 w

h
e

re
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 is

 n
e

e
d

e
d

. 

C
o

-l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 
 t

h
is

 r
e

m
a

in
s 

a
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
 M

id
w

iv
e

s 
o

p
e

ra
te

 r
e

g
u

la
rl

y
 o

u
t 

o
f 

is
it

in
g

. 
  

A
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

ll
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
e

 g
o

e
s 

in
to

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 it

 m
o

st
, 

a
n

d
 w

e
 h

a
ve

 m
a

d
e

 g
o

o
d

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 i
n

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
b

a
si

s 
fo

r 
th

is
, 

e
.g

. 
M

A
S

H
, 

Fa
m

il
y

 N
u

rs
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, T
ro

u
b

le
d

 F
a

m
il

ie
s 

In
it

ia
ti

ve
.  

Ye
t 

w
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

a
ve

 a
 c

le
a

r 
v

ie
w

 o
f 

a
ll

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 b
e

ca
u

se
, 

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
, 

h
e

a
lt

h
 v

is
it

o
rs

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

a
ve

 t
h

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 

to
 o

ff
e

r 
a

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 1
 a

n
d

 2
 y

e
a

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
ck

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 c

h
il

d
re

n
. 

If
 r

o
ll

e
d

 o
u

t 
n

a
ti

o
n

a
ll

y,
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 2
/2

.5
 y

e
a

r 
ch

e
ck

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

b
e

in
g

 p
il

o
te

d
 b

y
 I

sl
in

g
to

n
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 v
a

lu
a

b
le

 c
h

e
ck

p
o

in
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 j
o

u
rn

e
y

 o
f 

a
 c

h
il

d
 t

o
 a

g
e

 5
. 

 

 

T
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 v
is

it
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

it
y

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 s

e
co

n
d

e
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

 S
e

ct
io

n
 7

5
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 a

s 
a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 

d
e

n
ce

d
 b

a
se

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 

ca
re

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

. 

-w
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
le

d
 b

y
 t

h
re

e
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 S
u

re
 S

ta
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

, 
tw

o
 w

it
h

 h
e

a
lt

h
 v

is
it

o
r 

b
a

ck
g

ro
u

n
d

s 
a

n
d

 o
n

e
 f

ro
m

 s
o

ci
a

l w
o

rk
  

ia
li

st
 c

it
y

-w
id

e
 t

e
a

m
s 

o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

su
p

p
o

rt
 

 f
o

r 
e

xa
m

p
le

, b
re

a
st

fe
e

d
in

g
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 t

o
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 in
it

ia
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
st

a
in

 b
re

a
st

fe
e

d
in

g
 in

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
is

 

is
 lo

w
. 

T
ra

v
e

ll
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
sy

lu
m

 s
e

e
k

e
r 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 a

 s
p

e
ci

a
li

st
 h

e
a

lt
h

 v
is

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 v
is

it
o

r 
p

o
st

. 
T

e
e

n
a

g
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 

 

T
h

e
 im

p
a

ct
 is

 e
v

id
e

n
t 

in
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 in

 b
re

a
st

fe
e

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s,
 o

b
e

si
ty

 r
a

te
s 

a
n

d
 a

 s
h

a
rp

 r
is

e
 in

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 li
v

in
g

 in
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 a

re
a

s 
w

h
o

 a
ch

ie
v

e
 a

 g
o

o
d

 E
Y

F
S

 P
ro

fi
le

 s
co

re
 

 f
ro

m
 3

3
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

 t
o

 5
5

%
 i

n
 2

0
1

1
. 

In
 t

h
e

ir
 m

o
st

 r
e

ce
n

t 
O

fs
te

d
 in

sp
e

ct
io

n
, i

t 
w

a
s 

n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
-l

e
d

 m
o

d
e

l p
la

y
s 

a
 f

u
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

l p
a

rt
 in

 s
tr

e
a

m
li

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 in
te

g
ra

ti
n

g
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

. A
n

te
-n

a
ta

l a
n

d
 p

o
st

-n
a

ta
l s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

re
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 
A

s 
a

 r
e

su
lt

, 
th

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

 r
e

a
ch

e
s 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

fi
v

e
 y

e
a

rs
 l

iv
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 

-b
e

in
g

. 

Page 141



..
..

.a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

m
u

st
 h

a
ve

 a
 t

ig
h

t 
g

ri
p

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 o

f 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
p

ro
v

is
io

n
 t

o
 d

ri
ve

 u
p

 q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

E
Y

FS
 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

0
 

W
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 t

ig
h

t 
g

ri
p

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

w
e

 c
a

n
 g

e
t 

th
e

 b
e

st
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
d

e
li

v
e

ry
 m

o
d

e
l,

 o
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 

A
n

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

-f
o

cu
se

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 r

is
k

/r
e

w
a

rd
 

 t
h

e
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 o

f 
re

g
is

te
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 s

e
e

in
g

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 g
o

 s
o

m
e

 w
a

y,
 

b
u

t 
w

e
 c

o
u

ld
 g

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r.
  A

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 l
e

ve
l 
o

f 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 

a
t 

E
Y

F
S

 w
o

u
ld

 f
o

cu
s 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
e

rf
o

rm
 a

g
a

in
st

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s,
 

a
n

d
 a

tt
a

ch
in

g
 p

a
y

m
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

se
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

co
m

p
a

ra
b

le
 h

e
re

. 

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

 c
le

a
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 c
yc

le
s 

th
a

t 
e

n
su

re
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

ca
n

 s
e

e
 r

e
a

l-
ti

m
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 a
g
a

in
st

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

u
a

l 

ta
rg

e
ts

, 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 s

co
re

ca
rd

 (
e

.g
. 

sl
id

e
 8

) 

 

C
o

n
tr

a
ct

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
u

si
n

g
 p

e
n

a
lt

y
 c

la
u

se
s 

w
h

e
re

 n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 f
o

r 
p

o
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

T
h

e
 r

e
ce

n
t 

A
ll

-P
a

rt
y

 P
a

rl
ia

m
e

n
ta

ry
 G

ro
u

p
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 

1
 s

u
g

g
e

st
s 

a
 m

o
re

 h
o

li
st

ic
 r

o
le

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

, 

m
e

a
n

in
g

 s
tr

o
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 w

il
l 

b
e

co
m

e
 e

v
e

n
 m

o
re

 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 

E
a

rl
y

 in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 -
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 p
o

o
le

d
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 f

o
r 

e
a

rl
y

 

ce
n

tr
e

s,
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

u
n

d
e

r 
o

n
e

 r
o

o
f 

a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 e
a

rl
y

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

b
ir

th
s 

in
 c

e
n

tr
e

s.
) 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
- 

su
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ts

 t
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

r 
p

a
th

s 

b
a

ck
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 in
 g

o
o

d
 t

im
e

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
y

 m
a

y
 b

e
 o

b
li

g
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

k
 

w
o

rk
 b

y
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s 

(f
o

r 
e

xa
m

p
le

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
ir

 y
o

u
n

g
e

st
 

ch
il

d
 is

 f
iv

e
).

 T
h

is
 s

u
g

g
e

st
s 

a
 f

u
ll

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 J

o
b

ce
n

tr
e

 P
lu

s 

a
n

d
 w

id
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 b

u
il

d
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ce
 a

n
d

 s
k

il
ls

, 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

w
o

rk
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 

C
h

il
d

ca
re

 q
u

a
li

ty
 -

 i
rr

e
sp

e
ct

iv
e

 o
f 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

ch
il

d
ca

re
, 
ce

n
tr

e
s 

ca
n

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 g

o
o

d
-q

u
a

li
ty

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 o

u
tr

e
a

ch
 a

n
d

 r
e

le
v

a
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 p
a

re
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y

 v
it

a
l r

o
le

 in
 f

o
st

e
ri

n
g

 q
u

a
li

ty
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

to
 c

h
il

d
m

in
d

e
rs

 (
p

o
ss

ib
ly

 in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
ly

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

fo
r 

e
a

rl
y

 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s)
. 

E
v

id
e

n
ce

-b
a

se
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 -

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
v

ie
w

 s
u

cc
e

ss
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y

 t
o

 in
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

, 
w

it
h

 

re
q

u
ir

e
s 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 lo
ca

l a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s,

 h
e

a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
fo

r 
h

e
lp

. 
 

 

Page 142



W
it

h
o

u
t 

a
 t

ig
h

t 
g

ri
p

 o
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

, 
it

 i
s 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 j

u
d

g
e

 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

o
u

r 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

ch
il

d
re

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 m
o

d
e

l 
is

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
o

n
e

, 
b

u
t 

w
e

 d
o

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
it

se
lf

 i
s 

n
o

t 
n

e
ce

ss
a

ri
ly

 l
in

ke
d

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

1
 

7
5

%
 

2
5

%
 

Le
w

is
h

a
m

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

 O
fs

te
d

 R
a

ti
n

g
s 

a
s 

a
t 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

3
 

G
o

o
d

 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t/

 

S
a

ti
sf

a
ct

o
ry

 

6
7

%
 

3
3

%
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
 O

fs
te

d
 R

a
ti

n
g

s 
a

s 
a

t 
A

u
g

u
st

 2
0

1
3

 

G
o

o
d

 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t/

 

S
a

ti
sf

a
ct

o
ry

 

B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
v

e
 a

 m
ix

e
d

 m
o

d
e

l 
o

f 
in

-h
o

u
se

 a
n

d
 s

ch
o

o
l-

 

B
a

rn
e

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

o
o

k
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

in
 2

0
1

3
. 

 A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 is
 q

u
it

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 

to
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y,

 t
h

e
 O

fs
te

d
 r

a
ti

n
g

s 
fo

r 
th

e
ir

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
re

 

si
m

il
a

r 
to

 o
u

rs
 

 a
 t

h
ir

d
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 is
 s

a
ti

sf
a

ct
o

ry
 

o
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
s 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

 T
h

e
y
 a

re
 f

a
ci

n
g

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 is

su
e

s 
a

s 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y,
 s

o
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

e
ly

 c
o

n
si

d
e

ri
n

g
 c

e
n

tr
a

li
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
to

 t
ig

h
te

n
 t

h
e

 

g
ri

p
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
, 
b

e
fo

re
 a

p
p

ra
is

in
g

 f
u

tu
re

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s.

 

 

Le
w

is
h

a
m

 h
a

v
e

 a
 f

u
ll

y
 o

u
ts

o
u

rc
e

d
 m

o
d

e
l,

 w
it

h
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

Le
w

is
h

a
m

 h
a

ve
 o

u
ts

o
u

rc
e

d
 a

ll
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 P

V
I 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s 

e
n

a
b

le
d

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 s
e

t 
a

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
u

a
l 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 p

a
y

m
e

n
t 

b
y

 r
e

su
lt

s,
 a

ll
o

w
in

g
 f

o
r 

q
u

a
li

ty
 t

o
 b

e
 d

ri
ve

n
 u

p
. 

  

si
m

il
a

rl
y

 
-h

o
u

se
 m

o
d

e
l,

 a
lb

e
it

 

O
fs

te
d

 s
in

ce
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 m

o
d

e
l 
w

a
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 

Page 143



S
o

 f
o

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 s
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
st

 c
h

a
n

ce
 o

f 
a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d

 le
ve

l 
o

f 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
 w

e
 m

u
st

 g
e

t 
m

o
re

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
d

e
li

ve
ry

 m
o

d
e

l a
n

d
 

b
ri

n
g

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 h
e

a
lt

h
ca

re
 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 U

n
it

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

2
 

C
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 
In

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 

Page 144



 

1 

 

 

Report for: 

 
CYPS Scrutiny Panel   
27 February 2014  
 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: 
Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) and First Response 
Service Information Sharing – Outcome of Audit  

 

Report 
Authorised by:  

Lisa Redfern,  Director of Children’s Services (Acting)  

 

Lead Officer: Iain Low,  Principal Social Worker 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 
Report for Non Key Decision 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1  As previously reported to Scrutiny Panel in July 2013, following the AB CD 

judgement in March 2013, the Director of Children and Young People’s Service 
commissioned an independent review of S47 Child Protection Investigations 
conducted between May 2011 and March 2013. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1  Members are asked to note the contents of the independent report by Skylakes 
 attached as Appendix1 and the improvements introduced by the service. 
 
3. Background information 

 
3.1  The scope of the specification was to:  

• Review the process and procedure followed and whether they follow agreed 
social work practice and procedure;  

• Review whether parental consent was sought to share information for 10% of 
the sample. If not, the reasons why and whether relevant records were kept of 
such decision;     

• Review the decisions made, in particular, on threshold and reasonableness of 
such decision; and  

Agenda Item 9Page 145



 

2 

 

• Review whether there were full written records of the enquiries and the 
outcomes and whether they comply with best social work practice and 
procedure.   

 
3.2  Following a process to identify a suitably qualified organisation to carry out the 

work, Skylakes (the delivery arm of Sanctuary Health and Social Care Group) was 
awarded the contract. 
 

3.3  A random sample of cases where children or young people had been subject to a 
S47 Child Protection investigation during the period May 2011 to March 2013 were 
identified from record held on Framework-i (Haringey’s electronic social care 
records system). 
 

3.4  The report identifies a number of areas where practice needed to improve and the 
table below lays out the actions that have been taken throughout last year and our 
on-going improvements this year: 
 
Issue Identified Action Taken by the Service 

Letters of acknowledgment to referers not 
available on file 

All referers are contacted by allocated 
social workers on receipt of the referrals by 
letter; email or telephone. 
 
Standards letters of acknowledgement are 
sent to all NHS Hospitals. 

Chronologies need to be in place on all files Significant improvement in practice in 
ensuring chronologies on all files (all cases 
from First Response transfer with a 
chronology). 
 
Service training on chronologies. 
 
‘Chronology Days’ in Safeguarding and 
Support to give practitioners protected time 
to ensure there are up to date chronologies 
on file. 
 
The Haringey Children and Family 
Assessment Protocol refers to chronologies 
as a mandatory activity within the 
assessment process. 
 
Practice Development Workshops reinforce 
the need for chronologies on file and how 
practitioners can use chronologies with 
parents(s).  
 
From 1 January 2014 – Practice Induction 
Days for new members of staff will focus on 
key areas of social work practice including 
chronologies. 

Page 146



 

3 

 

Consent element needs to be mandatory 
within FWI 

Consent is now a mandatory field in the 
following templates within the workflow:- 
 

• Contact 

• Referral 

• Strategy Meeting 

Recording of management oversight setting 
out clear justification for sharing information 
without consent needs to be evidenced 

Revised information and protocols for 
MASH published. 
 
CYPS Practice Directive issued to all 
practitioners and managers regarding 
information sharing. 
 
Reinforced through Service and Team 
meetings. 
  
From 1 January 2014 – Practice Induction 
Days for new members of staff will focus on 
key areas of social work practice including 
chronologies. 

Evidence that consent was sought 
retrospectively 

The change in practice and mandatory 
fields within the workflow (see above) 
ensures that practitioners do not seek 
consent from parent(s) retrospectively. 

Recorded management over-sight of the 
conduct of the section 47 investigation 

All managers are aware through written 
guidance and management meetings of the 
expectation that the section 47 process 
must have recorded management oversight 
through the strategy episode. 

Detail of the process of the investigation 
needs to be recorded 

The S47 document within the FWi workflow 
is to be separated from the Child and 
Family assessment and become a 
standalone document. 
 
This will support better management 
oversight and recording of S47.  
 
The Deputy Heads of Service undertake a 
monthly audit of the strategy episode to 
quality assure the recording. 
 
Through our QA Framework audits identify 
good practice and where practice does not 
meet our standards.  

Delays in completing the S47 in 15 days The S47 document within the FWi workflow 
is to be separated from the Child and 
Family assessment and become a 
standalone document. 
 
This will support better management 
oversight and recording of S47.  

Page 147



 

4 

 

This change will allow for management 
information to be made available to 
managers to track S47 better. 

Files did not evidence reference to 
Achieving Best Evidence (ABE) 
procedures, risk assessment tools, London 
LSCB procedures or WT13 

Additional training of 10 social workers in 
Achieving Best Evidence (ABE). 
 
Ensuing the correct tools are utilised when 
working with children and young people in 
certain situations e.g. Co-ordinated Action 
Against Domestic Abuse (CAADA)  – for 
Domestic Violence 
 
In recording issues around consent, 
practitioners and managers are referring to 
and recording Working Together 2013 and 
London LSCB Procedures.  
 
The Haringey Children and Family 
Assessment Protocol (Draft) will reference a 
range of tools for practitioners to access 
when carrying out assessments with 
children and young people in certain 
circumstances. 

Missing information on files 
Notes of interviews 
Case history 
Supervision direction 
Analysis of information following checks 

Monthly reminders are sent by Heads of 
Service as to the ongoing necessity for the 
FWi file to be kept up to date. 
 
.  
 

 
 

3.5 The report also notes many  strengths in the work undertaken by the service. There 
was a strong safeguarding ethos in terms of the timeliness of the response to 
reported concerns; there was also evidence of the needs of other children in the 
household being considered. Common Assessment Framework (CAF) assessments 
were generally of good quality and information gathering and the co-ordination of a 
response with the police is recorded in a timely fashion. Furthermore the audits on 
the later cases demonstrated clearer management oversight and specifically 
addressed the issue of consent and the process to be followed in undertaking the 
investigations in accordance with best practice guidelines. These improvements are 
also noted in the Independent Member’s report on Section 47 investigations in 
which she notes that the standard of work was excellent in general.  
 

3.6  Nonetheless, there still remain areas that require continued focus to deliver the 
uniform standard we require. This will be a key focus of our training and 
development programme and quality assurance processes this year.  

 
 

Page 148



 

5 

 

Appendix 1 
Skylakes Audit report 
 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



   

Page 1 of 12 

 

 

Report for: 
Children and Young 
People’s Scrutiny Panel – 
27 February 2014 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: 
Two-year-old Early Entitlement – Conclusions and Recommendations 
of Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel Project 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

 
Cllr  Martin Newton 
Chair, Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel   
 

 

Lead Officer: 
 
Rob Mack, Senior Policy Officer (Scrutiny)   
  

 

 
Ward(s) affected: 

 
Report for Key/Non Key Decisions: 

 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1.  The Panel has been undertaking an in-depth piece of work on the two-year-old early 

entitlement.  This report outlines the conclusions and recommendations from this 
piece of work. 
 

2. Cabinet Member introduction 
N/A 
 

3. Recommendations 
 
That the following be recommended on behalf of the Panel to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, as outlined in Section 6 of the report: 
 
(i) That further intensive work be undertaken with childcare providers to develop the two-

year-old early entitlement scheme, particularly where they have expressed an interest 
in expanding, with a proactive approach adopted. 
 

(ii) That action be taken to enhance the status of childminders so that they are 
encouraged to provide places as part of the entitlement and parents are more likely to 
consider using them.  This could be done through, for instance, improved training 
arrangements and the development of links with Children’s Centres. In addition, 

Agenda Item 10Page 169



   

Page 2 of 12 

 

consideration could be given to forming them into groups/cooperatives.  Childminding 
could also be promoted in Haringey People. 
 

(iii) That further consideration be given by C&YPS to the transition process for provision 
for three-year-olds, with a view to identifying how available funding streams can be 
most effectively exploited. 
 

(iv) That work is undertaken to identify potential sites through liaison with Ward 
Councillors and that consideration is given to a wider call for suggested sites which 
could be promoted through residents associations, the Council’s website and Haringey 
People. 
 

(v) That childcare provision be prioritised when considering the future use of empty 
Council premises and properties. 
 

(vi) That communication with parents and carers be improved, including: 

• More user-friendly and attractive letters, with a named contact; and 

• A Freephone contact number that is also free from mobile phones. 
 

(vii) That work be undertaken with NHS commissioners to facilitate the involvement 
of Health Visitors in promoting the two-year-old early entitlement by providing 
information to parents during their visits. This should be built into protocols as the local 
authority will be taking over responsibility for commissioning the Health Visiting 
Service from 2015 and there is an aspiration for a return to a Universal Offer. 
 

(viii)  That work to promote the entitlement be extended to other professionals in contact 
with expectant mothers and mothers with very young children, who should be 
encouraged to disseminate information on the two-year-old entitlement.  
 

(ix) That work is undertaken to look at setting up 'Playground Champions' within infant 
and primary schools as a means of promoting the scheme.  
 

(x) That the model used by the School Admissions service should be the template for 
arrangements to allocate places and fill vacancies for the two-year-old early 
entitlement. 
 

(xi)  That mapping should be published which shows levels of take up, available places 
and children awaiting placement in each ward. A system of tracking outcomes should 
also be developed.  This could include case studies. 
 

4. Other options considered 
 
N/A 
 

5. Report  
 
Introduction 
 

Page 170



   

Page 3 of 12 

 

5.1 The Panel has been undertaking an in-depth piece of work on the two-year-old early 
entitlement and its implementation within Haringey.  From September 2013, all local 
authorities in England have had a statutory duty to secure free part time early 
education for the 20% most disadvantaged 2 year olds.  This will be extended to the 
40% most disadvantaged in September 2014.  Children whose parents meet the 
eligibility criteria will become eligible for a place from the start of the term after they 
turn two years old until the start of the term after they turn three. 

 
5.2 The overall aim of the scheme is to improve outcomes for two-year-olds who have 

been identified as potentially benefitting from access to high quality early years and 
childcare provision. The entitlement is for 570 hours per year, which equates to 15 
hours per week for term time only.  The national eligibility criterion are as follows: 
 

• Children looked after by Local Authorities; 

• Children meeting the criteria for entitlement to Free School Meals (FSM), where 
the child’s parents are in receipt of any one or more of the following support 
payments; 
o Income support (IS);  
o Income-based jobseeker’s allowance (IBJSA);  
o Income-related employment and support allowance;  
o Support under Part 6 of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999;  
o The guarantee element of State Pension Credit;  
o Child Tax Credit but not to Working Tax Credit and have an annual income not 

exceeding £16,190 (as of 6 April 2012), as assessed by Her Majesty's Revenue 
and Customs;  

o Entitled to Working Tax Credit four week run-on; and 
o Universal Credit. 

 
5.3 The additional eligibility criterion for Phase Two will be as follows:  
 

• Children in families receiving Working Tax Credits or Universal Credits and with 
annual gross earnings of no more than £16,190 a year; 

• Children receiving a current statement of SEN or an education, health and care 
plan; 

• Children attracting Disability Living Allowance; and  

• Children leaving care through special guardianship or through an adoption or 
residence order. 

 
5.4 Local authorities have the discretion to agree their own local criteria, which will allow 

vulnerable and disadvantaged children whose parents do not meet the eligibility 
criteria to access a place. 
 

5.5 The Department for Education (DfE) estimated that in Haringey, 882 two-year-olds 
would become eligible for a place from September 2013 and that would increase to 
approximately 1790 children from September 2014. The DfE is supplying local 
authorities with a termly list of parents who have a child they believe may be eligible 
for a place. This is based on benefits data held by the Department of Work and 
Pensions.  

Page 171



   

Page 4 of 12 

 

 
5.6 Nationally, 130,000 children qualified for the two-year-old offer in September 2013, 

with an estimated 26,761 (20.5%) of these in London. The high levels of poverty in 
some London boroughs mean that very high percentages of children within them can 
qualify for the entitlement.  This figure is as high as 80% in some boroughs.  From 
September 2014, 285,000 children in total will qualify for the scheme, with an 
estimated 50,373 (17.6%) children in London.   

 
5.7 London boroughs have been allocated £86 million for the offer.  This works out as an 

average hourly rate of £5.71 (£5.28 in Haringey), assuming all the money is transferred 
over to providers.  However, this is below the rate that was provided for the pilot 
projects, which had been £6.00 per hour.  No specific funding has been provided to 
cover the local authority costs of administering the new duty.  The revenue funding 
allocation forms part of the ring-fenced Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) in 2013-14. 
The DfE has also provided capital funding allocations.  Guidance on expectations of 
how funding should be allocated to providers was issued by the DfE in November 2012, 
which included a requirement on local authorities to fund places through an Early Years 
Single Funding Formula (EYSFF).    
 

5.8 As part of the 2013/14 budget process, the Council’s Cabinet endorsed the Haringey 
Schools Forum recommendation to ring-fence funding for the two-year-old entitlement.    
The revenue funding comprised of: 

• £2.656 million revenue funding for statutory place provision; and 

• £1.043 million trajectory funding to support the expansion of the programme. 
 
5.9 Trajectory funding has been provided to develop the infrastructure required to support 

both phases of the programme and can be used for a range of purposes, including to: 

• Develop systems for the allocation of places and payments to providers: 

• Further develop systems for tracking the progress of children; 

• Improve the quality of provision so that more providers are good or outstanding; 

• Stimulate the local market and encourage new providers to set up; 

• Support the sustainability of new providers to deliver good quality places by initially 
funding on planned places rather than actual participation. From April 2015, 
Councils will only be able to fund settings based on actual participation; and 

• Promote and advertise the programme and deliver outreach to families. 
 

5.10 The DfE provided capital funding for Haringey of £736,659 to support the expansion of 
the programme.  The Cabinet noted the comments of the Chief Financial Officer that 
this was an extremely modest amount taking into account the work that was required.  
The criteria for allocating this funding are: 

• Need for places in the area; 

• Number of new places that the setting will offer; and 

• Value for money e.g. number of places delivered compared to cost of adaptations. 
 
5.11 Funding is currently provided on a full participation model but from 2015 this will 

change to a funding model based on actual participation levels.  
 

Page 172



   

Page 5 of 12 

 

5.12 Haringey’s Schools Forum appointed an Early Years Working Group, comprising of 
forum members, Headteachers and Governors, to work with officers to develop the 
formula.  The formula was required to use a base hourly rate and could also include a 
quality supplement.  The Council currently receives funding based on a notional rate of 
£5.28 an hour.   

 
5.13 The Early Years Working Group consulted with potential providers for their views.  In 

particular, it looked at what places might be available and what providers considered to 
be a reasonable rate. The results of the consultation were inconclusive due to the low 
response rate but feedback from the majority of those who did respond suggested that 
very few providers felt able to deliver places for less than the funded rate of £5.28.  
Most respondents indicated that a rate of £6.00 per hour would be most appropriate but 
it was not considered possible to fund all potential eligible places at this rate within 
current levels of funding.  
 

5.14 The Cabinet meeting of 9 July 2013 agreed that the Council would adopt a formula 
model underpinned by the following approach: 

• A flat rate for all types of providers;  

• A modest top slice of 2% on the rate to meet the cost of administering the 
programme; and 

• Maintaining existing levels of provision by continuing to fund an existing, fixed 
number of places at the current provider rate (£5.74) to the end of March 2013. 

  
5.15 The flat rate that was agreed for all providers was £5.18 per hour and reflected a 2% 

top slice on the funded rate of £5.28.  It was acknowledged that this was a challenging 
rate for maintained childcare provision and some private providers. It was therefore 
also agreed that further work would be done to support some providers to develop 
sustainable models for the delivery of places at this funding rate.  It was noted by 
Cabinet that there was a risk that there may be a statutory requirement for a flat rate 
from September 2014. 

 
5.16 In December 2013, the DfE announced the two-year-old funding allocations for each 

local authority for 2014-15. The basis on which the funding allocation has been 
calculated for Haringey is split between 891 children for the first term of the 2014-15 
financial year and 1790 for the remaining two terms.  Funding allocations have been 
based on estimates for children meeting the economic criteria only (i.e. children from 
families meeting the benefits-related criteria also used for free school meals or children 
whose parents are in receipt of working tax credits and earning under £16,190) 
 

5.17 Numbers used to calculate funding allocations do not include children eligible under 
non-economic criteria (i.e. looked after children, children with special educational 
needs, children from asylum seekers, adopted children) and the DfE’s expectation is 
that funding for those children meeting the non-financial eligibility criteria is provided 
through the allocation of trajectory funding. 

 
Panel Project 

 
5.18 The Panel’s project began in September and has looked in detail at plans by the 

Page 173



   

Page 6 of 12 

 

Council to implement the early entitlement offer and, in particular, ensuring that there 
are sufficient high quality places available for two-year-olds in all areas of the borough 
where they are needed and that take up levels meet targets.  In addition, it also looked 
at the transition process for places for three-year-olds. The objective of the project was 
to make recommendations for endorsement by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
and submission to the Cabinet on potential measures that could be taken by the 
Council and its partners to improve support for the most disadvantaged children and 
maximise the benefits and outcomes of the new entitlement.  

 
5.19 The terms of reference were as follows:  

 
“To consider and make recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
local arrangements to implement the early entitlement offer for two-year-olds and, in 
particular, measures to ensure that; 

• Sufficient high quality places are available for two-year-olds in all areas of the 
borough where they are needed; 

• Take up levels meet targets;  

• There is a smooth transition to provision for three-year-olds.” 
 

5.20 The work of the Panel was informed by evidence from a number of sources: 
 

• The Children and Young Peoples Service (C&YPS) provided briefings to the Panel 
on progress with implementation locally;  

 

• London Councils made a presentation to the Panel and answered questions on  
the  specific research that they have commissioned on the issue and the 
implementation of the entitlement across London; 

 

• Local providers from across the borough, including maintained and independent 
ones, on the challenges that they face; and  
 

• The Chair of the Early Years Working Group of the Schools Forum on the work 
undertaken by them on the issues and the conclusions that they reached. 

 
6. Conclusions and Recommendations 
 
6.1. For the two-year-old entitlement to be effectively implemented, it is dependent on the 

following: 

• Enough places of the required quality being available for children eligible for a 
place; and 

• Parents and carers taking up the places to which they are entitled to in sufficient 
numbers. 

 
6.2. 666 places have been established in Haringey to date for eligible two-year-olds. The 

number of children taking up their entitlement in Haringey has increased from 266 at 
the end of the pilot to 423 of the 882 who are eligible by December 2013.   
 

Page 174



   

Page 7 of 12 

 

6.3. The number of children that will be eligible for a place in the next academic year 
(2014-15) will be 1790.  Whilst the aspiration is that all eligible children will take up 
their two-year-old programme place, the DfE has anticipated that 80% of all eligible 
children will actually take up a place.  If this was the case, a minimum of 1432 places 
would be required.  
 
Challenges 
 

6.4. In ensuring that sufficient places are available and take-up levels meet the anticipated 
level, there are some specific challenges that all London boroughs are facing to some 
extent.   A number of these are particularly relevant to Haringey. 
 

6.5. There are currently insufficient providers within the capital that meet the necessary 
quality threshold.  The Panel notes the view of London Councils that funding from 
government is not sufficiently high enough to offer a competitive hourly rate to attract 
many providers to expand or set up new provision to provide additional places for two 
year-olds. Their research has found that a rate closer to £8 is required.  There are 
additional costs associated with looking after two-year-olds.  It is not possible, for 
instance, to use the same toys as for three-year-olds.  There are also additional costs 
associated with children with additional needs, such as family support, disability, 
attending conferences, reviews.   
 

6.6. A proposal to increase the current place funding rate from £5.18 per hour to £6.00 per 
hour was approved by the Council’s Cabinet on the 11th February 2014.  This was 
strongly supported by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and will bring the funding 
rate in line with the minimum rate being paid by many neighbouring local authorities 
and encourage more childcare providers to participate in the scheme.  This has been 
made possible due to underspends arising from low participation  in the Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG).   Although this will be sufficient to fund the increase for the next 
two years, after this time additional resources will need to be identified.   
 

6.7. The Panel noted that families from minority ethnic communities are less likely to take 
up early entitlement places and that parents/carers from such communities were also 
generally less likely to place their children in early years settings.  London has a higher 
percentage of families from ethnic minorities than other regions and boroughs are 
therefore likely to have greater challenge in ensuring that places are taken up.  In 
addition, residential mobility in London is the highest of any English region. Amongst 
other things, this can result in extra costs to local authorities and early years’ 
providers, including additional costs of enrolment outside normal cycles.  
 

6.8. The anticipated take-up rate of 80% has also proven to be a very challenging target for 
London boroughs so far. The Panel noted that anecdotally, according to London 
Councils, take-up of the entitlement across London was likely to be below the 
government target of 80% and that average take up rate was likely to be 
approximately 50%, although some authorities may achieve higher.   
 
Provision of Places 
 

Page 175



   

Page 8 of 12 

 

6.9. Officers from C&YPS estimate that significant numbers of additional places will be 
required in some wards to provide enough places from September 2014. The largest 
numbers of places required are in the following wards: 
§ Bruce Grove 
§ Northumberland Park 
§ Seven Sisters 
§ Tottenham Hale 
§ White Hart Lane 
§ West Green 
§ Tottenham Green. 
 

6.10. Work is being carried out by the Children and Young Peoples Services (C&YPS) to 
develop provision for the scheme across the early years sector and maximise the 
capacity of current providers to expand.  This will take into account the need to ensure 
effective transition for two-year-old children once they reach the term after their third 
birthday and become eligible for a universal three and four-year-old free entitlement 
place.   
 

6.11. The Panel received evidence from providers who were restricted in their capacity to 
offer places due to lack of physical capacity and were keen to expand.  As previously 
mentioned there is some limited capital funding available to assist with this.   

 

• 1. The Panel recommends that further intensive work be undertaken with childcare 
providers to develop the two-year-old early entitlement scheme, particularly where 
they have expressed an interest in expanding, with a proactive approach adopted. 

 
6.12. The Panel noted that there are currently only 13 childminders offering 43 places within 

the borough in total as part of the scheme.  In addition, there are comparatively fewer 
childminders than elsewhere and, in addition, some parents and carers can be reticent 
to use them. Work is being undertaken by C&YPS to encourage more good and 
outstanding childminders within the borough to participate in the programme. 
Childminders are also being provided access to training and business support.  
 

• 2. The Panel recommends that action be taken to enhance the status of 
childminders so that they are encouraged to provide places as part of the 
entitlement and parents are more likely to consider using them.  This could be 
done through, for instance, improved training arrangements and the development 
of links with Children’s Centres. In addition, consideration could be given to forming 
them into groups/cooperatives.  Childminding could also be promoted in Haringey 
People. 
 

6.13. The Panel noted the suggestion from London Councils that moving three-year-olds 
from Private, Voluntary and Independent (PVI) providers to schools, thus freeing up 
space for two-year-olds, could assist in maximising available spaces.  In addition, 
effective liaison with Primary schools is important in order to encourage children to 
move onto nursery classes therefore liberating places for two-year-olds in PVIs.  
However, evidence from a local provider suggested that such moves could have the 

Page 176



   

Page 9 of 12 

 

potential to impact adversely on providers as three and four-year-olds are more 
lucrative sources of income for them than the two-year-old entitlement.  
 

• 3. The Panel recommends that further consideration be given by C&YPS to the 
transition process to provision for three-year-olds, with a view to identifying how 
available funding streams can be most effectively exploited. 

 
6.14. Plans to develop further the childcare market in the borough are also being 

implemented by C&YPS and include the commissioning of additional places from new 
providers and the establishment of cross-borough protocols. Planned market 
expansion and engagement activity includes targeted work with schools and 
childminders to support the development of good quality places, particularly in areas 
where we anticipate the highest demand for places.  
 

6.15. In order to assist in developing additional provision to meet the number of places 
required, the Panel would emphasise the need for services to liaise closely with 
people who have local knowledge in order to assist in identifying potential sites for 
provision.  For example, Panel Members have suggested a number of potential 
premises for provision through their knowledge of their local area.  Ward Councillors 
are particularly well placed to assist.  In addition, a wider call for suggestions for sites 
might assist in identifying sites with potential.  Childcare provision could also be 
prioritised when considering the future use of empty Council premises and properties. 
 

• The Panel recommends; 
o 4. That work is undertaken to identify potential sites through liaison with Ward 

Councillors and that consideration is given to a wider call for suggested sites 
which could be promoted through residents associations, the Council’s website 
and Haringey People. 
 

o 5.  That childcare provision be prioritised when considering the future use of 
empty Council premises and properties. 

 
  

Take Up 
 
6.16. Haringey’s current level is approximately 48%, which is very close to the average.  

However, the Panel is of the view that the borough should aspire to be better than the 
average for London, particularly in the light of the challenges that it faces and the work 
that is being undertaken as part of the Haringey 54000 scheme.  In addition, revenue 
funding will be dependent on participation levels in future years and therefore any 
underachievement will have an impact on resources for the scheme.   
 

6.17. Termly lists of potentially eligible families are provided by the DfE. The eligibility 
checking system that the Council currently uses to check these lists will be enhanced 
from April 2014 to enable checking of families who may meet the Working Family Tax 
Credit criteria. This will support plans for the early introduction of this eligibility criteria 
which it is anticipated will increase access to, and the take-up of, the scheme. 
 

Page 177



   

Page 10 of 12 

 

6.18. The Panel concurs with the view of C&YPS that active engagement with parents and 
carers to encourage more children to benefit from the free entitlement is required.  
Promotion of the two-year-old offer will be a top priority for the borough in the coming 
months, with the launch of a marketing and awareness-raising campaign, including 
parent road shows and established information points at key locations in the 
community. Action is also being taken, together with partners, to improve 
communication.  As part of this, a marketing day is being held.   

 
6.19. The Panel is of the view that communication with parents and carers needs to be 

reviewed to ensure that its effectiveness is maximised in order to encourage further 
those entitled to free places to take them up.  The Panel feel that personalised letters 
to parents and carers could help promote higher levels of response.  It suggests that a 
Freephone number would assist residents who needed advice and information and 
that this should also be free for people using mobile phones.    
 

• 6. The Panel recommends that communication with parents and carers be 
improved, including: 
o More user-friendly and attractive letters, with a named contact; and 
o A Freephone contact number that is also free from mobile phones. 
 

6.20. The Panel believes that all professionals in contact with expectant mothers and 
mothers with very young children should be encouraged to disseminate information on 
the two-year-old entitlement as a means of promoting the scheme.  Health visitors 
could play a particularly important role and this should be built into protocols, 
particularly as the local authority will be taking over responsibility for commissioning 
the Health Visiting Service from 2015 and there is an aspiration for a return to a 
Universal Offer.  In addition, “playground champions” could also be identified to 
promote the scheme to parents and carers who might be entitled. 
 

• The Panel recommends: 
o 7. That work be undertaken with NHS commissioners to facilitate the 

involvement of Health Visitors in promoting the two-year-old early entitlement 
by providing information to parents during their visits. This should be built into 
protocols as the local authority will be taking over responsibility for 
commissioning the Health Visiting Service from 2015 and there is an aspiration 
for a return to a Universal Offer; 

 
o 8.  That work to promote the entitlement be extended to other professionals in 

contact with expectant mothers and mothers with very young children, who 
should be encouraged to disseminate information on the two-year-old 
entitlement.  

 
o 9.  That work is undertaken to look at setting up 'Playground Champions' within 

infant and primary schools as a means of promoting the scheme.  
 

6.21. The implementation of the scheme initially relied on self-referral for the allocation of 
places, with parent/carers receiving letters informing them of their entitlement which 
they could then take to providers who were offering places.  The Panel received 

Page 178



   

Page 11 of 12 

 

evidence from providers that there had been a lack of awareness of where there were 
vacancies.  In addition, whilst some providers were oversubscribed, others in the 
same area had vacancies.    
 

6.22. The Panel is of the view that self-referral has not proven to be effective in allocating 
places and that it is important that the process is managed.  It notes that C&YPS has 
been addressing this issue.   The Panel feels that much could be learnt from the very 
effective and efficient way that school admissions are administered and suggests that 
this could be the template for good practice.   
 

• The Panel recommends: 
o 10.  That the model used by the School Admissions service should be the 

template for arrangements to allocate places and fill vacancies for the two-
year-old early entitlement; and  
 

o 11.  Mapping should be published which shows levels of take up, available 
places and children awaiting placement in each ward. A system of tracking 
outcomes should also be developed.  This could include case studies. 

 
6.23. London Councils research has identified the need for a flexible approach to deliver 

long term improved outcomes for the most disadvantaged two-year-olds that also 
included working with the family.  They are of the view that the government should 
relax the requirement to only provide 15 hours of funded childcare for the most 
disadvantaged children and allow flexibility for an alternative model whereby local 
authorities would instead be allowed to make two offers to parents, based on 15 hours 
funded childcare: 

 

• 10 hours of early education, plus additional home learning and parenting, developing 
the model trialled by the Royal Borough of Greenwich and in more local authorities in 
the 2009 offer.  Evidence had so far suggested it was the model that delivered the 
best long term outcomes; and 

 

• 15 hours of early education. 
 

6.24. To date, the DfE had rejected any calls for greater flexibility in the programme. The 
Panel endorses London Councils proposal that flexibility should be built into the 
scheme so that the hours can be used in innovative ways that maximise outcomes. 

 

7. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications 
 
Funding for the free early education offer for two-year-olds is provided through the 
Dedicated Schools Grant.  As explained in the body of the report, this funding has been 
ring-fenced within the Early Years Block.  Through modelling take-up from September 
2013, it became clear that significant underspends would occur in 2013-14 and 2014-15 
as a result of low take-up.  In order to support increasing the supply of places, Cabinet 
has now approved an hourly rate of £6 per hour.  This exceeds the £5.28 per hour funding 
provided with the result that a funding gap is projected by 2016-17.  Schools Forum has 

Page 179



   

Page 12 of 12 

 

committed to continuing to fund a rate of £6 per hour through a combination of increasing 
3 and 4 year old participation and reductions in other Early Years Block budgets. 
 
Whilst the recommendation to focus limited capital funding on increasing places through 
expansion is supported, members should note that it is increased participation that will 
ultimately maximise future funding and outcomes for vulnerable children. 
 
Although the specific cost of the recommendations are unclear, it is anticipated that they 
would be met through two-year-old participation and trajectory funding. 

 
8. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications 
 

From 1st September 2013 as a result of section 7 of the Childcare Act 2006 and the Local 
Authority (Duty to Secure Early Years Provision Free of Charge) Regulations 2012, the 
Council has had the duty to secure for all eligible two-year-olds in its area free early 
education for 570 hours a year over no fewer than 38 weeks of the year. Children are 
eligible for such education if they are looked after by a local authority or if they come 
within the criteria used to determine eligibility for free school meals.  One of the aims of 
the recommendations in this report is to ensure that the Council complies with this duty by 
putting forward measures to ensure that sufficient high quality places are available for 
two-year-olds in all areas of the borough where they are needed. 

 
9. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments 
 
9.1. The report concerns the implementation of the two-year-old early free entitlement, 

which aims to improve outcomes for identified two-year-olds who would benefit from 
access to high quality early years and childcare provision.  The scheme is particularly 
targeted at the most disadvantaged children from within the community.  The 
recommendations within the report seek to enhance the effectiveness of the scheme 
and maximise its effectiveness in addressing disadvantage.  

 
10. Head of Procurement Comments 

 
10.1. N/A 

 
11. Use of Appendices 

 
N/A 
 

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

Page 180



 

 

Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel 
Work Plan 2013-14 
 
Future Meetings: 

• Strategies; 
Ø School Improvement  
Ø Strategic Place Planning 
Ø Children and Young People’s Plan 

• Other Issues: 
Ø Aspirational Advice to Young People in Schools 
Ø School Improvement – Academies and Role of Sponsor 
Ø Professional Development Centre – Future Plans 
Ø SEN Transport Savings 
Ø Education Attainment – Closing the Gap with other London authorities 
Ø Commissioning of High Quality Services – Update 
Ø Rhodes Avenue School – Overspend on Building Works 
Ø Haringey Families First – Update on Interventions 
Ø Pupil Premium – Update  
Ø Progress with partnership arrangement with Highgate School  
Ø School Expansion – Further Update 
Ø Commissioning of Children’s Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

.    
 

Agenda Item 11Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	$$Minutes3
	$$Minutesfin
	Minutes2

	6 Fostering Service Review and Implementation
	LAC Sufficiency Strategy (2)

	7 Early Help Offer for Children and Young People
	8 Early Years Review (Corporate Delivery Unit) and Update on Work to date
	EY Design Review - Full Report 2014-01-13 (Final)

	9 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) and First Response Service Information Sharing - Outcome of Audit
	Skylakes audit report

	10 Two-year-old Early Entitlement - Conclusions and Recommendations of Children and Young People's Scrutiny Panel Project
	11 Work Plan

